
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 8 November 2019 at 9.30 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
Item  Report By  Marked 

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 
2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Pension Fund Valuation.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 13 - 84) 

7.  
  

Summary Valuation of Pension Fund 
Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 85 - 124) 

8.  
  

Pension Fund Annual Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 125 - 
198) 

9.  Investment Strategy Statement Update.  Director of (Pages 199 - 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


 

 

   Corporate 
Resources 
 

214) 

10.  
  

Advisor Objectives.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 215 - 
218) 

11.  
  

Actions of the Investment Subcommittee.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 219 - 
230) 

12.  
  

Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 231 - 
242) 

13.  
  

Pension Fund Training Policy.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 243 - 
248) 

14.  
  

The Pensions Regulator "Deep Dive" Findings.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 249 - 
282) 

15.  
  

LGPS Transfer of Pension Rights  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 283 - 
290) 

16.  
  

Date of Next Meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Local Pension Committee will take place at 
9.30am on 24 January 2020. 
 

 

17.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

18.  
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public.  
 

 
 

 

 The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of the remaining 
items in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
(Exempt Information). 
 

 

19.  
  

Emerging Markets Equity Active Multi Manage 
Fund Quarterly Factsheet  
 

LGPS Central 
 

 

20.  
  

Leicestershire Pension Fund Emerging 
Markets Debt Portfolio.  
 

LGPS Central 
 

 

21.  
  

Leicestershire Targeted Return Portfolio.  
 

LGPS Central 
 

 

22.  
  

Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund 
Quarterly Factsheet.  
 

LGPS Central 
 

 

23.  
  

Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

24.  
  

Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

25.  
  

Legal and General Investment Manager 
Quarterly Report  

Fund Manager 
 

 



 

 

 
26.  

  
Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

27.  
  

Pictet Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

28.  
  

Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

TO: 
   

Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. P. Bedford CC 
 
 
Leicester City Council 
 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Cllr Deepak Bajaj and Cllr. Ratilal Govind 
 

 

District Council Representatives 
 
Cllr Chris Frost and Cllr. Malise Graham MBE 
 
University Representative   
  
Mr Z. Limbada 
 

 

 

Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. R. Bone 
Mr. N. Booth 
 

Ms. J. Dean 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 6 September 2019.  
   

PRESENT: 
Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mrs. H. Fryer CC 
Mr. D. Harrison CC 
Dr. S. Hill CC 

 

  
 

Leicester City Council 
 
Cllr. R. Govind 

 

  
University Representative 
 
Mr. Z. Limbada 
  
Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. R. Bone 
 

Mr. N. Booth 
 

 

31. Chairman's Announcements.  
 
The Chairman reported with great sadness the death of County Councillor and Vice-
Chairman of the Council, Mr David Jennings CC who died on the 30th August 2019 aged 
72. 
 
David had served on many Committee’s since his election in 1992, including as 
Chairman of the Local Pension Board since its inception in 2015. 
 
Members joined the Chairman in standing in silent tribute to the memory of Mr David 
Jennings. 
 

32. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

33. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

34. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 

5 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

35. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

36. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. No declarations were made. 
 

37. Club Vita  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Club Vita which detailed how its longevity 
analysis was used as part of the Leicestershire Pension Fund’s triennial valuation. A copy 
of the presentation is filed with these minutes. 
 
It was noted that Club Vita provided a bespoke set of assumptions specifically tailored to 
fit the membership profile of the Leicestershire Fund. The assumptions were continually 
updated to take allowance of changes in longevity, based on the actual experience of the 
Fund.  
 
Arising from the presentation the following points were noted:- 
 

i) Club Vita used detailed data on lifestyle, affluence, ill-health retirement and 
occupation to provide an objective view on longevity trends.  

 
ii) The 2016 Club Vita analysis had been between a 1-2% variance of predicted 

versus the actual death rate, evidencing how accurate the data was for predicting 
mortality. If the prediction had not been accurate the methodology would be 
changed. 

  
iii) The approximate change in liability for the Fund using the latest VitaCurves data, 

that spanned from 2015-17 had changed by -1.3% which was similar across other 
schemes. This was as a result of higher than expected mortality rates, resulting in 
reduced liabilities. 

 
iv) There was not a definitive reason for the slowdown of longevity improvement, 

however members noted that Fund members classed as ‘comfortable’ pensioners 
(based on lifestyle factors) may continue to experience higher improvements than 
other pensioners. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 

38. Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources the purpose 
of which was to present a summary valuation of the Fund’s investments as at 30 June 
2019. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ’7’. 
 
Members welcomed the latest performance data of the fund, which showed that the 
majority of its investments had made a positive return over the three year period. Arising 
from the discussion the following points were noted:- 

6



 
 

 

 
i) The continuing uncertainty over the UK’s departure from the EU had resulted in 

the reduction of the valuation of sterling, which is beneficial for the Fund’s 
overseas holdings. However, some of the benefit is lost due to the currency 
hedging arrangements this is in place  to mitigate some of the currency risk rather 
than for performance. 

 
ii) LGPS Central’s view on markets set out in its Tactical Asset Allocation report did 

not impact Leicestershire Fund’s current strategic position. The Fund’s annual 
strategy review in January would consider Central’s views. 

 
iii) It was noted that Central Bank intervention  had played a significant part in the 

disappointing performance of the Fund’s currency overlay programme. Th 
allocation had previously been reviewed by the Investment Subcommittee and 
would be reconsidered on an on-going basis.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

39. Pension Fund Administration - Current Developments  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources on the 
current developments in relation to the administration of the Fund. A copy of the report is 
filed with these minutes, marked ’8’. 
 
Members noted that the effect of the McCloud ruling on the Fund was currently unknown. 
The Fund would continue to work with the actuary to consider the financial impact. 
 
Whilst there remained in the region of 450 outstanding annual benefit statements for 
2018/19, it was a significant improvement on previous years’ performance as a result of 
enhanced data collection methods. Members noted that most outstanding queries were 
from the City Council and would not have a wider impact on the Fund. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

40. Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources on the 
revised risk register and the work to develop a training policy for members of the 
Committee and Board. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ’9’. 
 
Members noted that the effect of the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) was varied 
across the country, and for the Leicestershire Pension Fund it was considered 
immaterial.  McCloud was considered a far bigger risk, hence its inclusion on the risk 
register as a potentially significant financial and administrative impact. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the revised risk register of the Pension Fund be approved. 

 

7



 
 

 

b) That the Committee notes the work being undertaken to develop training for 
members of the Committee and Local Pension Board. 

 
41. Dates of Future Meetings.  

 
The Committee noted the dates of the future meetings of the Local Pension Committee:- 
 
8 November 2019 
24 January 2020 
28 February 2020 
19 June 2020 
11 September 2020 
27 November 2020 
 

42. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the remaining items of business on the grounds that they involved 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(A) of the Act. 
 

43. Presentation by LGPS Central  
 
The Committee considered an exempt presentation by LGPS Central, a copy of which is 
filed with these minutes. The presentation was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 

44. LGPS Central - Leicestershire Property Portfolio  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LGPS Central, a copy of which marked 
‘14‘ is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

45. LGPS Central - Targeted Return Portfolio  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LGPS Central, a copy of which marked 
‘15‘ is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

8



 
 

 

46. LGPS Central - Fixed Income Portfolio.  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LGPS Central, a copy of which marked 
‘16‘ is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

47. Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ashmore, a copy of which marked ‘17‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

48. Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Aspect, a copy of which marked ‘18‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

49. IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by IFM, a copy of which marked ‘19‘ is filed 
with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 10 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

50. Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Kames, a copy of which marked ‘20‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 

 

51. JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by JP Morgan, a copy of which marked ‘21‘ 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

52. KKR Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by KKR, a copy of which marked ‘22‘ is filed 
with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 10 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

53. LaSalle Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LaSalle, a copy of which marked ‘23‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

54. Macquarie Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Macquarie, a copy of which marked ‘24‘ 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

55. Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Millennium, a copy of which marked ‘25‘ 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 
 

 

56. Pictet Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Pictet, a copy of which marked ‘26‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

57. Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Legal and General, a copy of which 
marked ‘27‘ is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

58. Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Stafford Timberland, a copy of which 
marked ‘28‘ is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

59. Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ruffer, a copy of which marked ‘29‘ is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(!) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 9.30 – 12.15 CHAIRMAN 
06 September 2019 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
8 NOVEMBER 2019  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND VALUATION  

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform Committee of the Leicestershire Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) draft valuation results and to 
recommend a consultation with the employers on the Funding Strategy 
Statement. The Fund Actuary is attending the meeting to present the Fund 
2019 Valuation results. 

 
Background 

 
2. Each LGPS administering authority has a statutory obligation to have an 

actuarial valuation carried out every three years and all Funds in England and 
Wales need to have a valuation carried out as at 31st March 2019. 
Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund’s actuarial valuation has been 
carried out by Richard Warden of Hymans Robertson LLP. 

 
3. The major purpose of the actuarial valuation is for the actuary to set employer 

contribution rates for a three year period, that commences one year after the 
valuation date (i.e. for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023). In order to 
set these contribution rates the actuary must take account of a large number 
of factors, most of which are assumptions of what will happen in the future. 
These assumptions do not impact onto the ultimate cost of paying benefits 
they simply calculate the liability derived from these benefits, which in turn 
impacts the level of contributions set. 

 
4. In May 2019 MHCLG launched a consultation which included a proposed 

change to the valuation cycle from 3 years to 4 years so that the dates of the 
national LGPS cost management valuation and LGPS valuations aligned 
from March 2024. The Fund has been informed the next valuation will take 
place of the 31 March 2022 regardless of the outcome of the consultation, 
meaning the actuary will certify three years worth of contributions for the 
period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 in the Rates and Adjustment certificate 
in the Fund’s 2019 valuation report. This is welcomed by the Fund.   

 
5. Throughout the Valuation process the actuary has a professional 

responsibility to certify contribution rates that are considered reasonable. 

13 Agenda Item 6



 

 

There is also a requirement within the LGPS Regulations that there is an 
element of prudence built into the actuarial assumptions and that the actuary 
sets contributions in line with these prudent assumptions and that they are as 
stable as possible. 

 
6. In 2016 the valuation calculated a 76% funding level. The draft results in the 

2019 valuation calculate a 89% funding level using a discount rate of 3.8%, 
which is significant funding improvement. In the main, this has been delivered 
from significant investment returns in the three years.  Previously, the Fund 
considered using a discount rate of 4.1% for the 2019 valuation, but during 
subsequent valuation work, the Fund has decided to use a more prudent 
rate. Such investment returns are highly unlikely to recur, so the Fund will 
need to ensure the right balance between investment returns and employer 
contributions is achieved, to close the remaining deficit.  

 
7. Whilst the fund valuation is good news, the Fund remains in deficit and work 

continues to close this. In addition, the Fund needs to reduce the deficit 
recovery period for Fund employers. This is the period of time employers 
have to repay their fund deficit. The maximum deficit recovery period was 20 
years in the 2016 valuation and three years later, this has reduced to 17 
years in the 2019 valuation for the majority of employers and 15 years for 
Colleges and Universities. 

 
8. Government Actuaries Department (GAD) and Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance both request Funds continue to 
work to reduce the deficit recovery period so the move from 20 years to 17 
years meets this. 

  
Employer Risk Profiling 
 

9. The Valuation has produced employers’ contribution rates for all employing 
bodies within the Fund. These contribution rates take account of the 
particular circumstances of each employing body, and the rates are a 
combination of the cost of paying for future service as it accrues, plus an 
adjustment for paying off the deficit over an appropriate period of time. 

 
10. To protect Fund employers it is essential that the potential for an organisation 

to default on its liabilities is taken into account. To support this a more 
scientific approach to employer risk profiling for this Valuation has been 
included. Officers have considered the risk profiles of certain Fund’s 
employers.  

 
11. The level of risk, presented to the Fund, is a key determinant in the period of 

time that the deficit can be recovered over. For example; tax raising bodies 
tend to be classified as low risk employers; affording them the greatest 
flexibility in repaying the deficit. Conversely private sector companies are 
classified as highest risk, although this is managed with public sector 
guarantors and bonds. Deficits are not usually permitted to extend beyond 
the length of the contract for private sector companies. Higher risk employers 

14



 

 

have been reviewed to ensure suitable deficit recovery periods and security 
is in place.  

 
Deficit Recovery 
 

12. The repayment of the historic deficit is usually expressed as a percentage of 
pensionable pay, for active members. This benefits from simplicity in 
application, as it is in line with the contribution for future service, and 
comparability. However, an assumption is required on future pensionable 
pay. This could result in an organisation with a declining membership 
underpaying, hence it is recommended that where practical employers deficit 
repayments are set as cash values. 

 
Stabilisation  

 
13. To avoid large increases or decreases in employer contributions employers, 

who are deemed to be the lowest risk, are offered a stabilisation rate. The 
lowest risk category relates to employers who have tax raising powers and 
are legally required to offer employees membership of LGPS.   The 
stabilisation mechanism works by limiting increases or decreases in 
contributions by a set amount each year. This avoids significant or sudden 
contribution changes and smooths the impact of any short term volatility on 
contributions. It also aids employers budgeting. The downside of stabilisation 
is that the Fund remains in deficit for longer ultimately making paying off the 
deficit more expensive than it otherwise would have been.  

 
14. Hymans has a modelling tool which was used in the previous three 

Valuations, called comPASS, which can assess contribution rate strategies 
over the long-term. This allows a judgement to be made whether the 
strategies are likely to be sufficient to return the sub-fund of an individual 
employer to a fully funded position within the agreed deficit spreading period. 

 
15. ComPASS uses 5,000 separate economic scenarios with different potential 

outcomes (investment returns, inflation etc.), thereby giving a very robust 
result. The Actuary has carried out modelling to allow the Fund to understand 
the long term likelihood of meeting the funding target and assess the 
downside risk. 

 
16. To ensure that the contribution strategies are reasonable the requirement is 

for the modelling to show that: 
 

 75% of the outcomes will result in a fully funded position and 

 The funding level in the worst 5% of outcomes does not fall below 50% 
 

17. All the low risk employers listed below have met the required level, assessed 
on an employer rate increasing by 1.0% per year using a 17 year deficit 
recovery period. The results mean stabilised employers should budget for 
1.0% increases in their current total contribution rate each year. The Actuary 
has indicated that this rate could be justified for five years, not just the 
standard three. 

15



 

 

 Leicestershire County Council  

 Leicester City Council 

 Blaby District Council 

 Charnwood Borough Council 

 Harborough District Council 

 Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council 

 Melton Borough Council 

 North West Leicestershire District Council 

 Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 

 Rutland County Council 

 Leicestershire Fire Authority  (civilian staff) 

 Leicestershire Police and Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(civilian staff) 

 
 

18. For the non-stabilised employers, their employer rates have been calculated 
taking into account their employer risk, agreed assumptions and for the 
admission bodies, their length of their main contract of service. The whole 
Fund results are included in Appendix A. 

 
Agreement of key actuarial assumptions 
 

19. As presented to Committee at its meeting on the 5 July 2019, the key 
financial assumptions required for the valuation are: 

 Investment returns 

 Inflation 

 Salary Growth 

 Longevity 
 

20. Investment returns are based on two separate assumptions. The first 
assumption is the Fund’s future investment returns for the next 20 years. This 
is derived in a similar way to the comPASS modelling with multiple economic 
projections being created. These projections are used to calculate the 
expected performance of each of the asset classes the Fund holds. This 
range of expected returns over the 20 year period is applied to the holdings in 
the Fund’s asset allocation strategy.  

 
21. Beyond a 20 year time horizon uncertainty increases greatly, hence a 

different approach is taken. A single assumption about future investment 
returns is set, this is known as the discount rate. The discount rate is set 
independently of today’s economic conditions. To make a prudent estimate of 
future investment returns the following steps are taken: 

 Estimate the risk free rate of return – uses long-term UK government 
bonds yields (gilts) 

16



 

 

 Estimate the expected return in excess of gilt yields, know and the 
asset outperformance assumption (AOA) 

 Assess the likelihood of the AOA being met based upon the Fund’s 
current strategic asset allocation. 

 
22. The table below shows the outcome of the assessment: 

 

Likelihood of achieving 
this margin from year 20 

Asset outperformance assumption (% p.a.) 

1.8% 2.0% 2.2% 

Current strategy 78% 75% 72% 

 
23. In the 2016 valuation the AOA was 1.8%, hence based upon this assessment 

Committee approved in July 2019, to maintain the discount rate assumption 
of Gilts + 1.8% p.a.    

 
24. The inflation assumption is derived from the difference between yields on 

index-linked and conventional government bonds. This produces an estimate 
of the Retail Prices Index (RPI). However, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) is 
more relevant to the Fund, hence the actuary uses a standard assumption to 
derive the CPI figure (RPI – 1%) p.a. 

 
25. The salary growth assumption is required due to the final salary benefits of 

active scheme members. The importance of this assumption is declining. In 
2014 all benefits were final salary, as at March 2019 it is estimated that 62% 
will be final salary, with the balance being based upon career average. Note 
promotional increases are set separately. 

 
26. Based upon the latest national pay award (2%) and the impact of the National 

Living Wage (c.0.5%) for 2019/20 three scenarios were modelled for future 
salary increases: 

 

Increase p.a. CPI CPI + 0.5% CPI + 1.0% 

Approximate change 
to funding level 

2% 1% 0% 

 
27. The 2016 assumption of CPI + 1% (RPI) reflected the more common used 

measure of local government inflation at the time. Subsequently the level of 
CPI has been the main consideration for items such as pay awards and tax 
increases. Hence Committee approved the recommendation in July 2019 the 
salary assumption is CPI + 0.5% p.a.  

 
28. Recent announcement by the main political parties suggest the National 

Living Wage will increase at a faster rate than previously experienced. Whilst 
this will be detrimental to the funding position it is not sufficiently material to 
require a change in assumptions at this stage of the valuation. 

 
29. Longevity estimates are based upon modelling performed by Club Vita. From 

the 2019 whole Fund results the reduction in liabilities is approximately 3%.  
 
 

17



 

 

Other Factors 
 

30. In November 2018 the Committee received a report outlining that the LGPS 
“cost cap” was likely to be breeched. The implication of this would be for 
benefits to be increased or employee contributions reduced. Prior to a 
decision being made on the approach the Government lost an Employment 
Tribunal appeal regarding the transitional provisions for a reduction in 
benefits. This is also applicable to the LGPS. The case is widely referred to 
as McCloud. 

 
31.  Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) subsequently confirmed in the absence of 

any further detail, fund actuaries should value the benefits accrued from 1 
April 2014 in line with the current Regulations for the purpose of the 2019 
valuations. The guidance also directed funds to consider how they manage 
the risk associated with the uncertainty around the actual cost of LGPS 
benefits due to the McCloud case (including the approach to setting employer 
contribution rates). At a more recent meeting MHCLG confirmed that their 
expectation is for each LGPS fund to explicitly state in their actuarial 
valuation report and/or Funding Strategy Statement how they have made an 
allowance for the McCloud ruling. In particular, where any employer 
contribution rates are being reduced from those currently in payment, Funds 
should be clear that they have taken account of the McCloud ruling before 
taking the decision to reduce contribution rates.  It is expected the 
Government Actuary Department (GAD) will look at this when they carrying 
out their Section 13 valuations next year.  

 
32. The Leicestershire Fund has agreed with the Fund Actuary to account for the 

potential uncertain impact of McCloud by a targeting a higher probability of 
success in setting employer rates. This will be clearly documented in the 
revised version of the Funding Strategy Statement and the actuary will 
consider how this is best presented in the final valuation report.   

 
Funding Strategy Statement  

 
33. The Fund’s draft Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) has been amended to 

reflect the Fund’s approach to the 2019 valuation. The key changes are 
highlighted in the report in yellow and relate to the following; 

 Full details of the Fund’s stabilisation policy  

 Fund’s approach to setting employer contribution rates 

 Fund’s cessation policy 
 

Page 12 of the draft FSS includes a table detailing the Fund’s framework for 
setting differing employer groups rates. 
 
The Fund will start a consultation with employers on the FSS after the AGM 
on the 18 November, ending on the 31 December 2019. Any replies received 
from employers will be considered. The final FSS will be brought back to the 
Committee in January 2020 with the final valuation results. The draft FSS is 
attached as Appendix B  
 

18



 

 

Timeline  
 

34. The timeline for providing information to employers about the valuation is as 
follows:  

 8 November 2019. Officers and the Actuary to present the full fund 
results and the draft Funding Strategy Statement to the Local Pension 
Committee. 

 18 November 2019. The Pension Fund Annual General Meeting 
including an employer forum. All employer results will be presented by 
Officers and the Actuary. 

 January 2020. Pensions Committee to formally sign off the Funding 
Strategy Statement after consultation ends and the final valuation 
results.  

 1 April 2020. New employer rates commence.      
 
Recommendation 
 

35. It is recommended; 
 

(a) That a consultation with the Fund Employer on the draft Funding 
Strategy Statement commence after the Leicestershire Pension 
Fund Annual General Meeting on the 18 November 2019; 
 

(b) That the framework for setting individual employer rates be noted; 
 

(c) That the whole fund results, as detailed in Appendix A, be noted. 
 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

36. None 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Whole fund results 
Appendix B – Draft Funding Strategy Statement  
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 

19

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


 

 

      

20



 

 

 

  

  

Leicestershire County 

Council Pension Fund 
2019 Actuarial Valuation 

Initial Results 

October 2019 
 

 

                          

Richard Warden FFA                   Anne Cranston AFA 

 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

 

 
 

 

21



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019   

 

Contents 
 

 

2019 Actuarial Valuation Initial Results Page 

 

1 Introduction 1 
2 Data 2 
3 Assumptions 2 
4 Funding position as at 31 March 2019 7 
5 Sensitivity analysis of the funding position 11 
6 Next steps 13 

 

Appendices   

 

Appendix 1 – Projecting the Fund’s Assets 
Appendix 2 – Economic Scenario Service 

 

 

 

  

22



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 001 

 

 

1 Introduction 

We have been commissioned by Leicestershire County Council (“the 

Administering Authority”) to carry out a full actuarial valuation of the 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund. (“the Fund”) as at 31 March 

2019 as required under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 (“the Regulations”).   

This report is addressed to the Administering Authority. The purpose of this 

document is to; 

• present the current funding position of the Fund using a range of 

actuarial assumptions; and 

• explain why the funding position has changed since the previous 

actuarial valuation was carried out in 2016; and 

• show the sensitivity of the funding position. 

This information can be used by the Administering Authority to support the 

development of the funding strategy and to identify and understand areas of 

potential risk for which it may wish to explore possible avenues of risk 

mitigation during the valuation process.  

This report should not be shared with any third parties without our prior 

written consent.  Where consent is given, the report should be supplied in full 

including any related reliances and limitations. 

                                                      

1 Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and 

set standards for certain items of actuarial work. 

Please note that Hymans Robertson LLP accept no liability to any third parties.  

The reliances and limitations in this report apply equally to all users of this 

report.  

The following Technical Actuarial Standards1 are applicable in relation to this 

report and have been complied with where material:  

• TAS 100 – Principles for technical actuarial work; 

• TAS 300 – Pensions. 

However, it should be noted that this report does not comply with paragraph 12 

b) or c) of TAS 300.The figures in this report provide a notification of the whole 

fund funding position. This report does not include individual employer 

contributions. Therefore, we do not believe the exclusion of the information 

required under these paragraphs is material. 

 

  

23



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 002 

 

 

2 Data 

We have relied on the following items of data provided by the Administering 

Authority when carrying out our calculations: 

• Membership data initially uploaded to the Data Portal on 15 August 2019 

and finalised on 25 September. 

• Cashflow data uploaded over the course of the inter-valuation period for 

HEAT. The final monthly data submission was uploaded to the Data 

Portal on 4 September 2019. 

• Investment data provided by the Administering Authority over the course 

of the inter-valuation period (summarised in Section 4).  

The accuracy of our results is limited by the quality of the data provided.  We 

have carried out validations on the data provided to ensure it is fit for the 

purpose of the valuation.  Further details can be found in our paper entitled 

“Data report for 2019 valuation”. We believe the membership data is fit for the 

purposes of this valuation. 

The figures in this report are based on our understanding of the benefit 

structure of the LGPS in England and Wales as at 31 March 2019. Details can 

be found at http://www.lgpsregs.org/. The Administering Authority should note 

that the LGPS benefit structure is currently under review following the 

Government’s loss of the right to appeal the McCloud court case. At the time of 

writing we have not been provided with details for any subsequent benefit 

improvements and as such have not allowed for any in our calculations. This is 

approach is in line with the advice issued by the Scheme Advisory Board in 

May 2019. 

 

3 Assumptions 

The key assumptions required to carry out the formal valuation, and our 

approach to setting the assumptions, are discussed in guides 7 (Longevity and 

other demographic assumptions), 8 (Financial Assumptions) and 9 (Measuring 

a funding level) of our 2019 valuation toolkit.  

To set appropriate assumptions for the valuation of the Leicestershire County 

Council Pension Fund, the Administering Authority commissioned the following 

actuarial advice to assist its assumption setting: 

• Paper entitled “2019 Valuation: Setting the discount rate” dated May 

2019 

• Paper entitled “2019 Valuation: Salary growth assumption” dated May 

2019.  

The valuation assumptions were provisionally agreed by Officers following 

these papers and discussed at a Pensions Committee meeting on 5 July 2019.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

24

http://www.lgpsregs.org/
http://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Advice_from_the_SAB_on_McCloud_May_2019.pdf
http://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Advice_from_the_SAB_on_McCloud_May_2019.pdf
https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2019_Valuation_Toolkit_Guides.pdf


Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 003 

 

 

Demographic assumptions 

Longevity 

The proposed 2019 valuation longevity assumptions are set out below, along 

with the assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation: 

 

The proposed longevity assumptions result in the following typical future life 

expectancies from age 65 (figures for 2016 shown for comparison): 

 

Non-pensioners are assumed to be aged 45 at the valuation date 

Other demographic assumptions  

The other proposed 2019 valuation demographic assumptions are set out 

below:  

 

 

 

 

 

Longevity Assumptions 31 March 2016 31 March 2019

Baseline Longevity Club Vita Club Vita

Future improvements CMI2013, Peaked, 

1.25% p.a. long term

CMI2018, Smoothed, 

1.25% p.a. long term

Assumed Life Expectancy 31 March 2016 31 March 2019

Male

Pensioners 22.1 years 21.5 years

Non-pensioners 23.8 years 22.2 years

Female

Pensioners 24.3 years 23.8 years

Non-pensioners 26.2 years 25.2 years

Demographic Assumptions

Retirements in normal health

Death in Service

Retirements in ill health

Withdrawals See sample rates below

Promotional salary increases

Family details

Commutation

50:50 option

For example, at age 60 this is assumed to be 90% 

50:50 option.

age, service and salary range) will choose the 

1.0% of members (uniformly distributed across the 

male member is assumed to be 3 years younger 

than him and the dependant of a female member is 

assumed to be 3 years older than her.

50% of future retirements elect to exchange 

pension for additional tax free cash up to HMRC 

limits for service to 1 April 2008 (equivalent 75% for 

service from 1 April 2008).

for males and 85% for females. The dependant of a 

See sample rates below

We have adopted the retirement age pattern 

assumption as used for the purpose of the 2016

LGPS cost cap valuation. Further details are

available on request.

See sample rates below

See sample increases below

A varying proportion of members are assumed to 

have a dependant at retirement or on earlier death. 25



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 004 

 

 

Sample rates for demographic assumptions 

Males 

Female

 

Financial assumptions  

The key financial assumptions used to assess the funding position as at 31 

March 2019 are set out below.  

Salary and Benefit Increases 

The table below details the salary increase, CARE revaluation rate and benefit 

increase assumptions at 31 March 2019. The equivalent assumptions used in 

the 2016 valuation are shown for comparison. 

 
 
*CPI plus 1.0% 
**CPI plus 0.5% 

 
Combining the membership data and the demographic and financial 
assumptions described above allows us to project the future benefit payments 
from the Fund for all benefits accrued up to 31 March 2019. The chart below 
shows this projection. 

 

 

Death 

Before 

Retirement

FT & PT FT PT FT PT FT PT

20 105 0.21 252.69 439.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25 117 0.21 166.91 290.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

30 131 0.26 118.43 205.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

35 144 0.30 92.53 160.88 0.10 0.07 0.02 0.01

40 150 0.51 74.50 129.48 0.16 0.12 0.03 0.02

45 157 0.85 69.98 121.60 0.35 0.27 0.07 0.05

50 162 1.36 57.68 100.12 0.90 0.68 0.23 0.17

55 162 2.13 45.42 78.88 3.54 2.65 0.51 0.38

60 162 3.83 40.49 70.28 6.23 4.67 0.44 0.33

65 162 6.38 0.00 0.00 11.83 8.87 0.00 0.00

Age
Salary 

Scale

Incidence per 1000 active members per annum

Withdrawals Ill Health Tier 1 Ill Health Tier 2

Death 

Before 

Retirement

FT & PT FT PT FT PT FT PT

20 105 0.12 227.37 252.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

25 117 0.12 152.99 169.97 0.10 0.07 0.02 0.01

30 131 0.18 128.25 142.46 0.13 0.10 0.03 0.02

35 144 0.30 110.69 122.91 0.26 0.19 0.05 0.04

40 150 0.48 92.12 102.26 0.39 0.29 0.08 0.06

45 157 0.77 85.97 95.41 0.52 0.39 0.10 0.08

50 162 1.13 72.48 80.35 0.97 0.73 0.24 0.18

55 162 1.49 54.08 60.02 3.59 2.69 0.52 0.39

60 162 1.90 43.58 48.31 5.71 4.28 0.54 0.40

65 162 2.44 0.00 0.00 10.26 7.69 0.00 0.00

Age
Salary 

Scale

Incidence per 1000 active members per annum

Withdrawals Ill Health Tier 1 Ill Health Tier 2

Financial Assumptions 31 March 2016 31 March 2019

Benefit increases and CARE 

revaluation (CPI) (% p.a.) 2.1% 2.3% 

Salary increases (% p.a.) 3.2%* 2.8%**

26



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 005 

 

 

Investment Return 

For the purpose of measuring the funding position, we need to be able to 

compare the value of the Fund’s assets against the value of all these future 

benefit payments (the liabilities). To be able to place a value on these payments 

in today’s money we need to make an assumption about the future investment 

returns that will be generated from the Fund’s assets after the valuation date. 

The higher the assumed return, the lower the liability value and therefore the 

higher the funding level.   

The value placed on the liabilities, and hence the funding level, is extremely 

sensitive to the investment return assumption. Whilst there is a requirement for 

this assumption to be prudent, there is a range of assumptions that the Fund 

could consider meets this prudence criteria. We believe the valuation outputs 

are more meaningful when stakeholders can understand the likelihood, and 

hence the level of prudence, attached to them.  

Using the Fund’s current investment strategy and running 5,000 simulations of 

our proprietary economic model, the Economic Scenario Service (ESS), we 

have generated a distribution of possible future annual investment returns over 

the 20 years from the valuation date: 

 

Details of the investment strategy and assumptions underlying the ESS model 

can be found in the Appendix.   

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

1 6 11 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76 81 86 91 96

B
en

ef
it

s 
(£

m
)

Years from 31 March 2019

27



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 006 

 

 

From the above chart, we can derive that: 

• There is a 50% likelihood of the Fund’s investments achieving at least an 

annual return of 5.9% p.a. over the next 20 years; 

• There is a 70% likelihood of the Fund’s investments achieving at least an 

annual return of 4.5% p.a. over the next 20 years; and 

• There is a 80% likelihood of the Fund’s investments achieving at least an 

annual return of 3.8% p.a. over the next 20 years. 

5.9% p.a. would not be an appropriate investment return assumption for the 

purpose of the valuation as this represents our ‘best estimate’ of future 

investment returns and therefore does not include a margin for prudence.  

For the purpose of reporting a funding level and funding surplus/deficit for the 

2019 valuation, we have selected the investment return assumption which has 

an associated 80% likelihood, namely 3.8% p.a.. 

The assumption used in the valuation as at 31 March 2016 was 4.0% p.a.. 

Note, that this was derived using a different method from that described above.  

Leaving this unchanged at the 2019 valuation would equate to a likelihood of 

77% under the new methodology. 

 

 

 

 

Employer Contributions  

The ESS model is also used in our approach to setting employer contribution 

rates (set out in guides 5 and 6 of our 2019 valuation toolkit).  This approach 

does not rely on a single set of assumptions but involves the projection of the 

employer’s future benefit payments, contributions and investment returns under 

5,000 future economic scenarios. In this modelling, inflation (and therefore 

benefit payments) and investment returns for each asset class (and therefore 

investment return) are variables and take different values in each projection.   

Further details on the assumptions required to set employer contribution rates 

are set out in guide 8 (Financial Assumptions) of the 2019 valuation toolkit. The 

assumptions which comprise each employer’s Funding Target will be set out in 

the Funding Strategy Statement. 

Comment on the proposed assumptions for the 2019 valuation 

As required for Local Government Pension Scheme valuations, our approach to 

this valuation must include a degree of prudence. For the purpose of measuring 

the funding position, this has been achieved by explicitly allowing for a margin 

of prudence in the future investment return assumption.   

We believe that all other proposed assumptions represent the “best estimate” of 

future experience. This effectively means that there is a 50% chance that future 

experience will be better or worse than the chosen assumption.  

Taken as a whole, we believe that our proposed assumptions are more prudent 

than the best estimate. 

 

 

  

Financial Assumptions 31 March 2016 31 March 2019

Investment return (% p.a.) 4.0% 3.8% 

28

https://www.hymans.co.uk/media/uploads/LGPS_2019_Valuation_Toolkit_Guides.pdf


Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 007 

 

 

4 Funding position as at 31 March 2019 

Understanding the likelihood associated with certain levels of assumed future 

investment returns (based on the information discussed in Section 3) means we 

can better understand the Fund’s funding position.  

The following chart shows how the funding level varies with the future 

investment return assumption. For comparison, the funding level associated 

with the same choice of investment return assumption at the 2016 valuation is 

also shown.  

 

 

 

 

From this chart, we can see that: 

• The funding position would be 100% if future investment returns were 

around 4.5% p.a.. The likelihood of the Fund’s assets yielding at least 

this return is around 70%.  

• Conversely, if future investment returns are on average 3.8% p.a. over 

the long term then the Fund currently holds sufficient assets to meet 89% 

of the accrued liabilities. The likelihood of achieving at least this level of 

future investment return is 80%.  

It can be seen from the above chart that for any given expected future 

investment return, the funding position of the Fund has improved since the 

previous actuarial valuation in 2016. This is mainly a result of the strong 

investment performance of the Fund over the period from 31 March 2016 to 31 

March 2019. 

Whilst this chart gives the Fund a better understanding of the funding position 

than a single funding level, the Fund is still required to report a single funding 

balance sheet. Using the assumptions outlined in Section 3, including the 

selected investment return assumption of 3.8% p.a., the reported funding 

position of the Fund at the valuation date is summarised below. The asset 

figures are the market value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2019. The 

results at the 2016 formal valuation are shown for comparison. 

29



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 008 

 

 

 

There has been an improvement in the reported funding level of the Fund from 

76% to 89% and a reduction in the funding deficit from £989m to £537m. 

It is critical to note that the reported funding level does not directly drive 

the contributions that will be set.  A robust funding plan will be set for 

each employer which considers how the assets and liabilities will evolve 

over time in different economic scenarios. 

The funding level and surplus/deficit figures provide a high-level snapshot of the 

funding position of the Fund as at 31 March 2019, however the limitations of 

these figures should be noted.  

The funding position is calculated using a single set of assumptions about the 

future and is very sensitive to the choice of assumptions (see Section 5).  The 

funding level is also volatile and will change as the market value of the assets 

held by the Fund changes. 

Although the funding level is limited in nature, tracking it can help the Fund gain 

an understanding of the factors that cause their pensions costs to change over 

time.  As part of the valuation exercise, we analyse the experience of the Fund 

and its membership since the previous formal valuation and quantify the impact 

of this experience on the funding surplus or deficit. The analysis helps to 

identify where changes may be needed in some assumptions or the Fund may 

wish to review existing risk management policies. 

Since the previous valuation, various events have taken place which affect the 

funding position of the Fund. 

 

Financial Markets experience 

Investment returns 

 

The Fund has experienced better than anticipated investment returns.  The 

investment return in excess of the 2016 valuation assumption serves to ‘pay 

back’ a greater portion of the deficit than expected.  Therefore, all other things 

being equal, this improves the funding position.  

Inflation 

 

Long term expectations for Consumer Prices Inflation (CPI) have increased 

slightly since 2016. Taken in isolation, this slightly worsens the funding position.  

Fund expenses 

The Fund’s expenses (in relation to non-investment activities) over the last 3 

years have totalled £5.1m.  This figure is equivalent to 0.3% when expressed 

as a percentage of pensionable pay which is slightly higher than the last 

valuation (0.2%).  Unless otherwise instructed, we propose to make allowance 

for the Fund’s expenses by adding an allowance of 0.3% of pay to employer 

contribution rates payable from 1 April 2020. 

Valuation Date 31 March 2016 31 March 2019

Past Service Liabilities (£m) (£m)

Employees 1,684 1,842

Deferred Pensioners 812 966

Pensioners 1,658 2,041

Total Liabilities 4,153 4,849

Assets 3,164 4,312

Surplus / (Deficit) (989) (537)

Funding Level 76% 89% Investment returns Expected Actual Difference
Impact on funding 

position

Over 3 year period 12.6% 35.2% 22.7% Positive

Annual 4.0% 10.6% 6.6% Positive

Future inflation expectations 2016 2019 Difference
Impact on funding 

position

Expected CPI inflation (p.a.) 2.1% 2.3% 0.2% Negative

30



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 009 

 

 

Membership experience 

The areas of membership experience that have had the greatest impact on the 

surplus/deficit position of the Fund are set out below: 

 

 

 

Regulatory experience 

Indexation and equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) 

In their January 2018 consultation response, HMT stated that their preferred 

long term indexation solution of converting GMP to scheme pension will also 

meet the requirements of equalisation.  

For the 2019 valuation we have assumed that all increases on GMPs for 

members reaching State Pension Age after 6 April 2016 will be paid for by 

LGPS employers. This has served to increase the value placed on the liabilities.  

LGPS cost sharing mechanism and the McCloud court case 

Following the results of the first LGPS cost sharing valuation (communicated in 

Autumn 2018), it was expected that benefit improvements would be granted in 

respect of future benefit accrual from 1 April 2019. It was estimated that the 

improvement would cost 0.9% of payroll for a typical LGPS employer. This 

change in the LGPS benefit structure has been put on hold whilst the recent 

age discrimination cases in public sector pension schemes (colloquially known 

as “McCloud”) are resolved. The benefits earned by some members since 1 

April 2014 could be materially improved as a result of the McCloud case, 

increasing the value of the Fund’s liabilities.   

Based on advice issued by the Scheme Advisory Board in May 2019 we have 

based our 2019 valuation calculations on the benefits as currently set out in the 

Regulations. That is, we have not made an allowance for the impact on (past 

and future service) liabilities of either the first LGPS cost sharing valuation or 

McCloud court case.  

Comments on employers 

Every employer is valued separately based on their own membership data as 

part of the valuation and their change in funding position will therefore vary 

compared to that of the whole fund based on their individual experience. This 

information will be available later in the valuation process. 

Reconciling the change in the funding position  

Quantifying and combining the impact of financial markets, membership and 

regulatory experience on the Fund’s assets and liabilities provides an overall 

insight into how the funding position has changed between valuations. This is 

detailed in the following table: 

 

Expected Actual Difference
Impact on funding 

position

Pre-retirement experience

Early leavers (no.of lives) 7,624 11,699 4,075 Positive

Ill-health retirements (no.of lives) 293 160 (133) Positive

Salary increases (p.a.) 3.8% 3.9% 0.1% Negative

Post-retirement experience

Benefit increases (p.a.) 2.1% 2.1% (0.0%) Positive

Pensions ceasing (£000) 7,995 7,573 (422) Negative

31

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/675360/Indexation_and_equalisation_of_GMP_in_public_service_pension_schemes_government_response_web.pdf
http://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Advice_from_the_SAB_on_McCloud_May_2019.pdf


Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 010 

 

 

Change in the surplus/deficit position Assets (£m) Liabilities (£m) Surplus / (Deficit) (£m)

Last valuation at 31 March 2016 3,164 4,153 (989)

Cashflows

Employer contributions paid in 401 401 

Employee contributions paid in 116 116 

Benefits paid out (457) (457) 0 

Net transfers into / out of the Fund* (8) (8)

Other cashflows (e.g. Fund expenses) (5) (5)

Expected changes in membership

Interest on benefits already accrued 525 (525)

Accrual of new benefits 516 (516)

Membership experience vs expectations

Salary increases greater than expected 2 (2)

Benefit increases less than expected (1) 1 

Early retirement strain (and contributions) 13 11 1 

Ill health retirement strain** 7 (21) 28 

Early leavers greater than expected (5) 5 

Pensions ceasing less than expected 2 (2)

Commutation less than expected 5 (5)

Other membership experience (14) 14 

Changes in market conditions

Investment returns on the Fund's assets 1,082 1,082 

Changes in future inflation expectations 139 (139)

Changes in actuarial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions (excl. longevity) (14) 14 

Change in longevity assumptions (137) 137 

Change in salary increase assumption (41) 41 

Change in discount rate 185 (185)

This valuation at 31 March 2019 4,312 4,849 (537)

**Payments received in respect of ill health liability insurance are included in the assets

* We have insufficient data to value the impact on the liabilities as a result of all transfers in/out. 

32



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 011 

 

 

5 Sensitivity analysis of the funding 
position 

The valuation funding position results depend critically on the actuarial 

assumptions that are made about the future of the Fund. If all of the 

assumptions made as at 31 March 2019 were exactly borne out in practice then 

the liability results presented in this document would represent the true cost of 

providing benefits from the Fund as it currently stands at 31 March 2019.  

However, no one can predict the future with certainty and future experience will 

not exactly match all of our assumptions. The future therefore presents a 

variety of risks to the Fund which should be identified and, where possible, the 

financial significance should be quantified.  Thereafter the Fund can assess 

how (or if) these risks can then be controlled or mitigated and put in place 

monitoring to assess whether any mitigation is actually working.  

In this Section we quantify how sensitive the funding position as at 31 March 

2019 is to the assumptions made about the future.  

Financial assumptions 

Sensitivity of the funding position to future investment returns 

The amount of assets needed by the Fund to meet its accrued benefits 

(liabilities) is extremely sensitive to the assumption for future investment 

returns. This was considered in Section 4.  

Sensitivity of the funding position to future inflation 

Pensions (both in payment and in deferment) in the LGPS increase annually in 

line with CPI. Furthermore, benefits accrued in the CARE scheme are revalued 

annually in line with CPI. If future CPI inflation is higher than our assumption as 

at 31 March 2019 then the value of the benefits will be higher than we have set 

out in Section 4.  

To help understand the impact of CPI being different from our assumption, we 

have shown the effects on the funding position of varying the benefit increases 

and CARE revaluation (CPI) assumption below.  

 

Employer contribution rates  

The above analysis focuses on financial risk to the funding position as 

measured at 31 March 2019.  Our approach to setting employer contribution 

rates recognises the uncertainty around future investment returns and inflation 

and therefore does not rely on a single set of financial assumptions.  

Demographic assumptions  

Sensitivity of the funding position to life expectancy  

The main area of demographic risk is people living longer than expected. We 

have shown below the high level impact of people living longer than currently 

expected by using a more prudent assumption for future longevity 

improvements.  The proposed valuation assumption assumes that in the longer 

term mortality rates will fall at a rate of 1.25% each year.  The more prudent 

assumption shown for this sensitivity analysis assumes that mortality rates will 

fall at a rate of 1.5% each year in the longer term. 

 

CPI Assumption Surplus / (Deficit) Funding Level

% pa (£m) %

2.1% (398) 92%

2.3% (537) 89%

2.5% (676) 86%

Long term rate of improvement Surplus / (Deficit) Funding Level

% pa (£m) (£m)

1.25% (537) 89%

1.50% (576) 88%

33



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 012 

 

 

Other demographic risks to consider  

There are other risk factors which would have an impact on the funding 

position.  Examples of these include the level of ill health retirements, 

withdrawals from the scheme and take up of the 50:50 option.  These are 

probably unlikely to change in such a way that would rank them as amongst the 

highest risks facing the Fund and therefore we have not sought to provide 

further quantification of their risk. 

Other risks 

Regulatory, Administration and Governance risks 

As well as financial and demographic risks, the Fund also faces: Regulatory 

risks – central government legislation could significantly change the cost of the 

scheme in the future; and: Administration and governance risk – failures in 

administration processes could lead to incorrect data and inaccuracies in the 

actuarial calculations.  The risks should be considered and monitored by the 

Fund as part of its ongoing risk management framework. 

Resource and environment risks 

The Fund is exposed to risks relating to future resource constraints and 

environmental changes. These risks may prove to be material. 

We have not sought to quantify the potential impact of these risks for the 

purpose of the results shown in this report, given the complexity and uncertainty 

involved.  Further analysis is available to the Fund to illustrate the future impact 

of adverse climate outcomes.   

Given their potential impact, the Administering Authority may wish to seek direct 

advice on resource and environment risks. 

  

34



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

October 2019 013 

 

 

6 Next steps 

The next steps in the process are as follows.  

• All parties to understand the whole fund reported funding position 

result and agree the assumptions on which it is based, discuss any 

questions or issues before moving on to the next stage of the valuation 

process.  This includes the Fund identifying any areas of risk that it is 

concerned about and wishes to explore further and understand how the 

risk can be identified, quantified, mitigated and monitored. 

• All parties to understand that the whole fund reported funding position 

does not directly drive the contributions that will be set for individual 

employers. 

• We will agree the parameters with you (funding target, time horizon, 

probability of reaching target) for the assessment of each employer’s 

proposed contribution rate. When we present you with these results, we 

will set out the contribution rates that each employer should pay for the 

next three years from 1 April 2020 based on these parameters.  

• We will measure the valuation funding position that will be reported for 

each individual employer that participates in the Fund.  

 

 

 

 

 

• For some employers, the contribution rate that they should pay in principle 

may be different to what they will actually pay in practice. Any deviation by 

the Administering Authority should only be based on each employer’s own 

circumstances.  The Administering Authority may consider a range of 

factors including (but not limited to) each employer’s perceived security, 

pooling arrangements or budgetary constraints. We expect there to be a 

consultation period where you gather together all of these issues and 

come back to us with a set of final agreed contribution rates for each 

employer. 

• We understand that you may require additional input from us before 

agreeing the final contribution rates. You may want us to look at the 

viability of different contribution strategies that are proposed by 

individual employers. 

• Once a set of final contribution rates have been agreed for all employers, 

we will provide you with a final valuation report which will clearly set out 

the final valuation results and will meet all the relevant regulatory 

requirements. Included in this report will be the Certificate of Rates and 

Adjustments, which will certify the minimum contribution rates to be paid by 

each employer for the three-year period beginning on 1 April 2020. This 

final valuation report must be provided to you no later than 31 March 2020. 
  

35



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

October 2019   

 

 Appendices  
  

36



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

October 2019   

 

 
Appendix 1 – Projecting the Fund’s Assets 
 

The following investment strategy has been used to set the future investment return assumption as at 31 March 2019: 

 

 

  

% allocation Current strategy

UK equities 8%

Overseas equities 35%

Diversified Growth 5%

Infrastructure (equity) 9%

Private equity 4%

Total growth assets 61%

Index-linked gilts 8%

Total protection assets 8%

Multi asset credit 4%

Private lending 10%

Emerging Market Debt 3%

Fund of hedge funds 4%

Property 10%

Total income generating assets 31%

Grand total 100%

37



Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

October 2019   

 

 
Appendix 2 – Economic Scenario Service 
 

The following figures have been calculated using 5,000 simulations of the Hymans Robertson Economic Scenario Service, calibrated using market data as at 31 March 
2019.  All returns are shown net of fees.  Percentiles refer to percentiles of the 5,000 simulations and are the annualised total returns over 5, 10 and 20 years, except 
for the yields which refer to the (simulated) yields in force at that time horizon. 

 

The current calibration of the model indicates that a period of outward government bond yield movement is expected.  For example, over the next 20 years our model 
expects the 17 year maturity annualised real (nominal) yield to rise from -2.1% (1.5%) to 0.8% (4.0%) 

 

Cash

Index 

Linked 

Gilts 

(medium)

Fixed 

Interest 

Gilts 

(medium) UK Equity

Overseas 

Equity Property

A rated 

corporate 

bonds 

(medium)

RPI 

inflation 

expectation

17 year 

real govt 

bond yield

17 year 

govt 

bond 

yield

16th %'ile -0.4% -2.3% -2.9% -4.1% -4.1% -3.5% -2.7% 1.9% -2.5% 0.8%

50th %'ile 0.7% 0.5% 0.3% 4.0% 4.1% 2.4% 0.8% 3.3% -1.7% 2.1%
84th %'ile 2.0% 3.3% 3.4% 12.7% 12.5% 8.8% 4.0% 4.9% -0.8% 3.6%

16th %'ile -0.2% -1.8% -1.3% -1.5% -1.4% -1.5% -0.9% 1.9% -2.0% 1.2%

50th %'ile 1.3% 0.0% 0.2% 4.6% 4.7% 3.1% 0.8% 3.3% -0.8% 2.8%
84th %'ile 2.9% 1.9% 1.7% 10.9% 10.8% 7.8% 2.5% 4.9% 0.4% 4.8%

16th %'ile 0.7% -1.1% 0.1% 1.2% 1.3% 0.6% 0.7% 2.0% -0.7% 2.2%

50th %'ile 2.4% 0.3% 1.0% 5.7% 5.8% 4.3% 1.9% 3.2% 0.8% 4.0%
84th %'ile 4.5% 2.0% 2.0% 10.3% 10.4% 8.1% 3.0% 4.7% 2.2% 6.3%

Volatility (Disp) 

(1 yr) 1% 7% 10% 17% 17% 14% 11% 1%

2
0

y
e
a
rs

Annualised total returns

5

y
e
a
rs

1
0

y
e
a
rs

38



 

 

  APPENDIX B 

 

 

L
e

ic
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d

 
D

R
A

F
T

 -
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
9

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND  

 

November  2019  

 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

 

Funding Strategy Statement PAGE 

 

1 Introduction 1 
2 Basic Funding issues 4 
3 Calculating contributions for individual Employers 9 
4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy 23 
5 Statutory reporting and comparison to other LGPS Funds 24 

 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix A – Regulatory framework 26 
Appendix B – Responsibilities of key parties 28 
Appendix C – Key risks and controls 30 
Appendix D – The calculation of Employer contributions 34 
Appendix E – Actuarial assumptions 37 
Appendix F – Glossary 41 
 

 

40



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 001 

 

November  2019  

1 Introduction 

1.1 What is this document? 

This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”), 

which is administered by Leicestershire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”).  

It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson 

LLP, and after consultation with the Fund’s employers and investment adviser.  It is effective from TBC 2020.  

This FSS supersedes the FSS in place from 1 January 2017. 

1.2 What is the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund? 

The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS was set up by the UK 

Government to provide retirement and death benefits for local government employees, and those employed in 

similar or related bodies, across the whole of the UK.  The Administering Authority runs the Leicestershire 

County Council Pension Fund, in effect the LGPS for the Leicestershire area, to make sure it:  

 receives the proper amount of contributions from employees and employers, and any transfer payments; 

 invests the contributions appropriately, with the aim that the Fund’s assets grow over time with investment 

income and capital growth; 

 uses the assets to pay Fund benefits to the members (as and when they retire, for the rest of their lives), 

and to their dependants (as and when members die), as defined in the LGPS Regulations. Assets are 

also used to pay transfer values and administration costs. 

The roles and responsibilities of the key parties involved in the management of the Fund are summarised in 

Appendix B. 

1.3 Why does the Fund need a Funding Strategy Statement? 

Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not change with market values or 

employer contributions.  Investment returns will help pay for some of the benefits, but probably not all, and 

certainly with no guarantee.  Employees’ contributions are fixed in those Regulations also, at a level which 

covers only part of the cost of the benefits.   

Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the benefits to members and their 

dependants.   

The FSS focuses on how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which these liabilities are funded, and 

how employers or pools of employers pay for their own liabilities.  This statement sets out how the Administering 

Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of: 

 affordability of employer contributions,  

 transparency of processes,  

 stability of employers’ contributions, and  

 prudence in the funding basis.  

There are also regulatory requirements for an FSS, as given in Appendix A. 

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities, and this includes reference to the Fund’s 

other policies; it is not an exhaustive statement of policy on all issues.  The FSS forms part of a framework of 

which includes: 

41



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 002 

 

November  2019  

 the LGPS Regulations; 

 the Rates and Adjustments Certificate (confirming employer contribution rates for the next three years) 

which can be found in an appendix to the formal valuation report; 

 the Fund’s policies on admissions, cessations and bulk transfers; 

 actuarial factors for valuing individual transfers, early retirement costs and the costs of buying added 

service; and 

 the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (see Section 4). 

1.4 How does the Fund and this FSS affect me? 

This depends who you are: 

 a member of the Fund, i.e. a current or former employee, or a dependant: the Fund needs to be sure it is 

collecting and holding enough money so that your benefits are always paid in full; 

 an employer in the Fund (or which is considering joining the Fund): you will want to know how your 

contributions are calculated from time to time, that these are fair by comparison to other employers in the 

Fund, in what circumstances you might need to pay more and what happens if you cease to be an 

employer in the Fund.  Note that the FSS applies to all employers participating in the Fund; 

 an Elected Member whose council participates in the Fund: you will want to be sure that the council 

balances the need to hold prudent reserves for members’ retirement and death benefits, with the other 

competing demands for council money; 

 a Council Tax payer: your council seeks to strike the balance above, and also to minimise cross-subsidies 

between different generations of taxpayers. 

1.5 What does the FSS aim to do? 

The FSS sets out the objectives of the Fund’s funding strategy, such as:  

 to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, using a prudent long term view.  This will ensure that 

sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment; 

 to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

 to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund, by recognising 

the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return 

(NB this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers); 

 to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates.  This 

involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer 

can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

 to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer 

from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

 

 

 

 

42



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 003 

 

November  2019  

1.6 How do I find my way around this document? 

In Section 2 there is a brief introduction to some of the main principles behind funding, i.e. deciding how much 

an employer should contribute to the Fund from time to time. 

In Section 3 we outline how the Fund calculates the contributions payable by different employers in different 

situations. 

In Section 4 we show how the funding strategy is linked with the Fund’s investment strategy. 

In the Appendices we cover various issues in more detail if you are interested: 

A. the regulatory background, including how and when the FSS is reviewed, 

B. who is responsible for what, 

C. what issues the Fund needs to monitor, and how it manages its risks, 

D. some more details about the actuarial calculations required, 

E. the assumptions which the Fund actuary currently makes about the future, 

F. a glossary explaining the technical terms occasionally used here. 

If you have any other queries please contact Ian Howe in the first instance at e-mail address 

ian.howe@leics.gov.uk or on telephone number 0116 305 6945.  

  

43



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 004 

 

November  2019  

2 Basic Funding issues 

(More detailed and extensive descriptions are given in Appendix D). 

2.1 How does the actuary calculate the required contribution rate? 

In essence this is a three-step process: 

 Calculate the funding target for that employer, i.e. the estimated amount of assets it should hold in order 

to be able to pay all its members’ benefits. See Appendix E for more details of what assumptions we 

make to determine that funding target; 

 Determine the time horizon over which the employer should aim to achieve that funding target. See the 

table in 3.3 and Note (c) for more details; 

 Calculate the employer contribution rate such that it has at least a given likelihood of achieving that 

funding target over that time horizon, allowing for various possible economic outcomes over that time 

horizon. See 2.3 below, and the table in 3.3 Note (e) for more details. 

2.2 What is each employer’s contribution rate? 

This is described in more detail in Appendix D. Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements: 

a) the estimated cost of benefits being built up each year, after deducting the members’ own contributions 

and including an allowance for administration expenses. This is referred to as the “Primary rate”, and is 

expressed as a percentage of members’ pensionable pay; plus 

b) an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the 

employer needs to pay, referred to as the “Secondary rate”.  In broad terms, payment of the Secondary 

rate is in respect of benefits already accrued at the valuation date. The Secondary rate may be expressed 

as a percentage of pay and/or a monetary amount in each year.  

The rates for all employers are shown in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustments Certificate, which forms part of the 

formal Actuarial Valuation Report.  Employers’ contributions are expressed as minima, with employers able to 

pay contributions at a higher rate.  Account of any higher rate will be taken by the Fund actuary at subsequent 

valuations, i.e. will be reflected as a credit when next calculating the employer’s contributions. 

2.3 What different types of employer participate in the Fund? 

Historically the LGPS was intended for local authority employees only.  However over the years, with the 

diversification and changes to delivery of local services, many more types and numbers of employers now 

participate.  There are currently more employers in the Fund than ever before, and a significant number of the 

newer employing bodies are academies.  

In essence, participation in the LGPS is open to public sector employers providing some form of service to the 

local community. Whilst the majority of members will be local authority employees (and ex-employees), the 

majority of participating employers are those providing services in place of (or alongside) local authority 

services: academy schools, contractors, housing associations, charities, etc. 

The LGPS Regulations define various types of employer as follows: 

Scheduled bodies - councils, and other specified employers such as academies and further education 

establishments.  These must provide access to the LGPS in respect of their employees who are not eligible to 

join another public sector scheme (such as the Teachers Scheme).  These employers are so-called because 

they are specified in a schedule to the LGPS Regulations.     

44



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 005 

 

November  2019  

It is now possible for Local Education Authority schools to convert to academy status, and for other forms of 

school (such as Free Schools) to be established under the academies legislation. All such academies (or Multi 

Academy Trusts), as employers of non-teaching staff, become separate new employers in the Fund.  As 

academies are defined in the LGPS Regulations as “Scheduled Bodies”, the Administering Authority has no 

discretion over whether to admit them to the Fund, and the academy has no discretion whether to continue to 

allow its non-teaching staff to join the Fund.  There has also been guidance issued by the  MHCLG regarding 

the terms of academies’ membership in LGPS Funds. 

Designating employers - employers such as town and parish councils are able to participate in the LGPS via 

resolution (and the Fund cannot refuse them entry where the resolution is passed).  These employers can 

designate which of their employees are eligible to join the scheme. 

Other employers are able to participate in the Fund via an admission agreement, and are referred to as 

‘admission bodies’.  These employers are generally those with a “community of interest” with another scheme 

employer – community admission bodies (“CAB”) or those providing a service on behalf of a scheme 

employer – transferee admission bodies (“TAB”).  CABs will include housing associations and charities, TABs 

will generally be contractors.  The Fund is able to set its criteria for participation by these employers and can 

refuse entry if the requirements as set out in the Fund’s admissions policy are not met. (NB The terminology 

CAB and TAB has been dropped from recent LGPS Regulations, which instead combine both under the single 

term ‘admission bodies’; however, we have retained the old terminology here as we consider it to be helpful in 

setting funding strategies for these different employers). 

2.4 How does the calculated contribution rate vary for different employers? 

All three steps above are considered when setting contributions (more details are given in Section 3 and 

Appendix D). 

1. The funding target is based on a set of assumptions about the future, (e.g. investment returns, inflation, 

pensioners’ life expectancies). If an employer is approaching the end of its participation in the Fund then 

its funding target may be set on a more prudent basis, so that its liabilities are less likely to be spread 

among other employers after its cessation; 

2. The time horizon required is the period over which the funding target is achieved. Employers may be 

given a lower time horizon if they have a less permanent anticipated membership, or do not have tax-

raising powers to increase contributions if investment returns under-perform; and 

3. The likelihood of achieving the funding target over that time horizon will be dependent on the Fund’s 

view of the strength of employer covenant and its funding profile. Where an employer is considered to be 

weaker then the required likelihood will be set higher, which in turn will increase the required contributions 

(and vice versa). 

For some employers it may be agreed to pool contributions 3.4 

Any costs of non ill-health early retirements must be paid by the employer, see 3.6. 

Costs of ill-health early retirements are covered in 3.7 and 3.8. 

 

 

 

45



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 006 

 

November  2019  

2.5 How is a funding level calculated? 

An employer’s “funding level” is defined as the ratio of: 

 the market value of the employer’s share of assets (see Appendix D, section D5, for further details of how 

this is calculated), to  

 the value placed by the actuary on the benefits built up to date for the employer’s employees and ex-

employees (the “liabilities”).  The Fund actuary agrees with the Administering Authority the assumptions 

to be used in calculating this value. 

If this is less than 100% then it means the employer has a shortfall, which is the employer’s “deficit”; if it is more 

than 100% then the employer is said to be in “surplus”.  The amount of deficit or shortfall is the difference 

between the asset value and the liabilities value. 

It is important to note that the funding level and deficit/surplus are only measurements at a particular point in 

time, on a particular set of assumptions about the future. Whilst we recognise that various parties will take an 

interest in these measures, for most employers the key issue is how likely it is that their contributions will be 

sufficient to pay for their members’ benefits (when added to their existing asset share and anticipated 

investment returns).  

In short, funding levels and deficits are short term, high level measures, whereas contribution-setting is a longer 

term issue. 

2.6 How does the Fund recognise that contribution levels can affect council and employer service 

provision, and council tax? 

The Administering Authority and the Fund actuary are acutely aware that, all other things being equal, a higher 

contribution required to be paid to the Fund will mean less cash available for the employer to spend on the 

provision of services.  For instance: 

 Higher Pension fund contributions may result in reduced council spending, which in turn could affect the 

resources available for council services, and/or greater pressure on council tax levels; 

 Contributions which Academies pay to the Fund will therefore not be available to pay for providing 

education; and 

 Other employers will provide various services to the local community, perhaps through charitable work, or 

contracting council services. If they are required to pay more in pension contributions to the LGPS then 

this may affect their ability to provide the local services at a reasonable cost. 

Whilst all this is true, it should also be borne in mind that: 

 The Fund provides invaluable financial security to local families, whether to those who formerly worked in 

the service of the local community who have now retired, or to their families after their death; 

 The Fund must have the assets available to meet these retirement and death benefits, which in turn 

means that the various employers must each pay their own way.  Lower contributions today will mean 

higher contributions tomorrow: deferring payments does not alter the employer’s ultimate obligation to the 

Fund in respect of its current and former employees; 

 Each employer will generally only pay for its own employees and ex-employees (and their dependants), 

not for those of other employers in the Fund; 

46



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 007 

 

November  2019  

 The Fund strives to maintain reasonably stable employer contribution rates where appropriate and 

possible. However, a recent shift in regulatory focus means that solvency within each generation is 

considered by the Government to be a higher priority than stability of contribution rates; 

 The Fund wishes to avoid the situation where an employer falls so far behind in managing its funding 

shortfall that its deficit becomes unmanageable in practice: such a situation may lead to employer 

insolvency and the resulting deficit falling on the other Fund employers. In that situation, those employers’ 

services would in turn suffer as a result; 

 Council contributions to the Fund should be at a suitable level, to protect the interests of different 

generations of council tax payers. For instance, underpayment of contributions for some years will need 

to be balanced by overpayment in other years; the council will wish to minimise the extent to which 

council tax payers in one period are in effect benefiting at the expense of those paying in a different 

period.  

Overall, therefore, there is clearly a balance to be struck between the Fund’s need for maintaining prudent 

funding levels, and the employers’ need to allocate their resources appropriately.  The Fund achieves this 

through various techniques which affect contribution increases to various degrees (see 3.1).  In deciding which 

of these techniques to apply to any given employer, the Administering Authority takes a view on the financial 

standing of the employer, i.e. its ability to meet its funding commitments and the relevant time horizon. 

The Administering Authority will consider a risk assessment of that employer using a knowledge base which is 

regularly monitored and kept up-to-date.  This database will include such information as the type of employer, its 

membership profile and funding position, any guarantors or security provision, material changes anticipated, etc.   

For instance, where the Administering Authority has reasonable confidence that an employer will be able to 

meet its funding commitments, then the Fund will permit options such as stabilisation (see 3.3 Note (b)), a 

longer time horizon relative to other employers, and/or a lower likelihood of achieving their funding target. Such 

options will temporarily produce lower contribution levels than would otherwise have applied.  This is permitted 

in the expectation that the employer will still be able to meet its obligations for many years to come. 

On the other hand, where there is doubt that an employer will be able to meet its funding commitments or 

withstand a significant change in its commitments, then a higher funding target, and/or a shorter time horizon 

relative to other employers, and/or a higher likelihood of achieving the target may be required. 

The Fund actively seeks employer input, including to its funding arrangements, through various means: see 

Appendix A.   

2.7 What approach has the Fund taken to dealing with uncertainty arising from the McCloud court 

case and its potential impact on the LGPS benefit structure? 

The LGPS benefit structure from 1 April 2014 is currently under review following the Government’s loss of the 

right to appeal the McCloud and other similar court cases. The courts have ruled that the ‘transitional 

protections’ awarded to some members of public service pension schemes when the schemes were reformed 

(on 1 April 2014 in the case of the LGPS) were unlawful on the grounds of age discrimination.  At the time of 

writing, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has not provided any details of 

changes as a result of the case. However it is expected that benefits changes will be required and they will likely 

increase the value of liabilities. At present, the scale and nature of any increase in liabilities are unknown, which 

limits the ability of the Fund to make an accurate allowance.   

The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) issued advice to LGPS funds in May 2019.  As there was no finalised 

outcome of the McCloud case by 31 August 2019, the Fund Actuary has acted in line with SAB’s advice and 

valued all member benefits in line with the current LGPS Regulations. 

47

http://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Advice_from_the_SAB_on_McCloud_May_2019.pdf


LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 008 

 

November  2019  

 

The Fund, in line with the advice in the SAB’s note, has considered how to allow for this risk in the setting of 

employer contribution rates.  

 

The Fund has taken the following action: 

 

An additional margin of prudence has been included in the method for setting contribution rates to allow for the 

uncertainty in the cost of past and future benefits.  This margin has been established by targeting a higher 

likeliehood of success for employers – see table 3.3. 

 

The Fund has also considered the McCloud judgement in its approach to cessation valuations. Please see note 

(j) to table 3.3 for further information.  

 

2.8 When will the next actuarial valuation be? 

On 8 May 2019 MHCLG issued a consultation seeking views on (among other things) proposals to amend the 

LGPS valuation cycle in England and Wales from a three year (triennial) valuation cycle to a four year 

(quadrennial) valuation cycle.  

On 7 October 2019 MHCLG confirmed the next LGPS valuation cycle in England and Wales will be 31 March 

2022, regardless of the ongoing consultation.  The Fund therefore instructed the Fund Actuary to certify 

contribution rates for employers for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 as part of the 2019 valuation of the 

Fund. 

  

48

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-changes-to-the-local-valuation-cycle-and-management-of-employer-risk


LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 009 

 

November  2019  

3 Calculating contributions for individual Employers 

3.1 General comments 

A key challenge for the Administering Authority is to balance the need for stable, affordable employer 

contributions with the requirement to take a prudent, longer-term view of funding and ensure the solvency of the 

Fund.  With this in mind, the Fund’s three-step process identifies the key issues: 

1. What is a suitably (but not overly) prudent funding target?  

2. How long should the employer be permitted to reach that target? This should be realistic but not so long 

that the funding target is in danger of never actually being achieved. 

3. What likelihood is required to reach that funding target? This will always be less than 100% as we cannot 

be certain of the future. Higher likelihood “bars” can be used for employers where the Fund wishes to 

reduce the risk that the employer ceases leaving a deficit to be picked up by other employers.  

These and associated issues are covered in this Section. 

The Administering Authority recognises that there may occasionally be particular circumstances affecting 

individual employers that are not easily managed within the rules and policies set out in the Funding Strategy 

Statement.  Therefore the Administering Authority, reserves the right to direct the actuary to adopt alternative 

funding approaches on a case by case basis for specific employers. 

3.2 The effect of paying lower contributions  

In limited circumstances the Administering Authority may permit employers to pay contributions at a lower level 

than is assessed for the employer using the three step process above.  At their absolute discretion the 

Administering Authority may:  

 extend the time horizon for targeting full funding; 

 adjust the required likelihood of meeting the funding target; 

 permit an employer to participate in the Fund’s stabilisation mechanisms;  

 permit extended phasing in of contribution rises or reductions; 

 pool contributions amongst employers with similar characteristics; and/or 

 accept some form of security or guarantee in lieu of a higher contribution rate than would otherwise be the 

case. 

Employers which are permitted to use one or more of the above methods will often be paying, for a time, 

contributions less than required to meet their funding target, over the appropriate time horizon with the required 

likelihood of success..  Such employers should appreciate that: 

 their true long term liability (i.e. the actual eventual cost of benefits payable to their employees and ex-

employees) is not affected by the pace of paying contributions,  

 lower contributions in the short term will result in a lower level of future investment returns on the 

employer’s asset share.  Thus, deferring a certain amount of contribution will lead to higher contributions 

in the long-term, and 

 it will take longer to reach full funding, all other things being equal.   

Overleaf (3.3) is a summary of how the main funding policies differ for different types of employer, followed by 

more detailed notes where necessary. 

49



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 010 

 

November  2019  

Section 3.4 onwards deals with various other funding issues which apply to all employers. 

 

50



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 011 

 

November  2019  

3.3 The different approaches used for different employers 

Type of employer Scheduled Bodies Community Admission Bodies and 
Designating Employers (including 

Parish/Town Councils) 

Transferee Admission Bodies* 

Sub-type Local 
Authorities 

(incl. Police & 
Fire)  

Colleges & 
Universities  

Academies Open to new 
entrants 

Closed to new 
entrants 

(all) 

Funding Target basis 
used 

Ongoing participation basis, assumes long-term Fund 
participation  

(see Appendix E) 

Ongoing participation basis, but may move to 
“gilts basis” - see Note (a) 

 Contractor exit basis, assumes fixed contract 
term in the Fund (see Appendix E) 

Primary Contribution  
rate 

 (see Appendix D – D.2) 

 

Stabilised contribution 
rate? 

Yes - see 
Note (b) 

No 

Maximum time horizon 
– Note (c) 

17 years 15 years 17 years 17 years Future working lifetime Outstanding contract term 

Secondary rate – Note 
(d) 

% of payroll / 
monetary 
amount 

% of payroll / 
monetary 
amount 

% of payroll % of payroll % of payroll/monetary 
amount 

% of payroll/monetary amount depending on 
circumstances 

Treatment of surplus Covered by 
stabilisation 
arrangement 

Preferred approach: contributions kept at Primary contribution  rate. However, reductions 
may be permitted by the Admin. Authority 

Reduce contributions by spreading the surplus 
over the remaining contract term 

Likelihood of 
achieving target – 

Note (e) 

75% 80% 80% 80% 80% TBC% 

Phasing of contribution 
changes 

Covered by 
stabilisation 
arrangement 

3 years 
- Note (e) 

None, unless increases are particularly large 

Review of rates – Note 
(f) 

Administering Authority reserves the right to review contribution rates and amounts, and the level of 
security provided, at regular intervals between valuations 

Particularly reviewed in last 3 years of contract 

New employer n/a n/a Note (g) Note (h) Notes (h) & (i) 

Cessation of 
participation: cessation 
exit  debt/credit 
payable 

Cessation is assumed not to be generally possible, as 
Scheduled Bodies are legally obliged to participate in the 

LGPS.  In the rare event of cessation occurring 
(machinery of Government changes for example), the 
cessation principles applied would be as per Note (j). 

Can be ceased subject to terms of admission 
agreement.  Cessation surplus or debt will be 

calculated on a basis appropriate to the 
circumstances of cessation – see Note (j). 

Participation is assumed to expire at the end of 
the contract.  Cessation credit or debt 

calculated on ongoing basis, unless cessation 
is caused by deliberate action taken by the 

employer. Awarding Authority will be liable for 
future deficits  that arise. 

 

51



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 012 

 

November  2019  

* Where the Administering Authority recognises a fixed contribution rate agreement between a letting authority and a contractor, the certified employer 

contribution rate will be derived in line with the methodology specified in the risk sharing agreement.  Additionally, in these cases, upon cessation the 

contractor’s assets and liabilities will transfer back to the letting employer with no crystallisation of any deficit or surplus. Further detail on fixed contribution 

rate agreements is set out in note (i). 

52



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 013 

 

November  2019  

Note (a) (Gilts exit basis for CABs and Designating Employers closed to new entrants) 

In the circumstances where: 

 the employer is a Designating Employer, or an Admission Body but not a Transferee Admission Body, 

and 

 the employer has no guarantor, and 

 the admission agreement is likely to terminate, or the employer is likely to lose its last active member, 

within a timeframe considered appropriate by the Administering Authority to prompt a change in funding,  

the Administering Authority may set a higher funding target  (e.g.  based on the return from long-termgilt yields) 

by the time the agreement terminates or the last active member leaves, in order to protect other employers in 

the Fund.  This policy will increase regular contributions and reduce, but not entirely eliminate, the possibility of 

a final deficit payment being required from the employer when a cessation valuation is carried out.   

The Administering Authority also reserves the right to adopt the above approach in respect of those Designating 

Employers and Admission Bodies with no guarantor, where the strength of covenant is considered to be weak 

but there is no immediate expectation that the admission agreement will cease or the Designating Employer 

alters its designation. 

Note (b) (Stabilisation) 

Stabilisation is a mechanism where employer contribution rate variations from year to year are kept within a pre-

determined range, thus allowing those employers’ rates to be relatively stable. In the interests of stability and 

affordability of employer contributions, the Administering Authority, on the advice of the Fund Actuary, believes 

that stabilising contributions can still be viewed as a prudent longer-term approach.  However, employers whose 

contribution rates have been “stabilised” (and may therefore be paying less than their theoretical contribution 

rate) should be aware of the risks of this approach and should consider making additional payments to the Fund 

if possible. 

This stabilisation mechanism allows short term investment market volatility to be managed so as not to cause 

volatility in employer contribution rates, on the basis that a long term view can be taken on net cash inflow, 

investment returns and strength of employer covenant. 

The current stabilisation mechanism applies if: 

 the employer satisfies the eligibility criteria based on tax raising status, financial security and time horizon 

in the Fund set by the Administering Authority  and; 

 there are no material events which cause the employer to become ineligible, e.g. significant reductions in 

active membership (due to outsourcing or redundancies), or changes in the nature of the employer 

(perhaps due to Government restructuring).or changes in the security of the employer. 

On the basis of modelling carried out as part of the 2019 valuation exercise (see Section 4), the stabilised 

details are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

53



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 014 

 

November  2019  

Type of employer Max cont increase p.a. Max cont decrease p.a. 

Tax raising body (excl. Town & Parish 

Coucnils) 

+1% of pay -1% of pay 

 

The stabilisation criteria and limits will be reviewed at the next formal valuation.  However the Administering 

Authority reserves the right to review the stabilisation criteria and limits at any time before then, on the basis of 

membership and/or employer changes as described above. 

Note (c) (Maximum time horizon) 

The maximum time horizon starts at the commencement of the revised contribution rate (1 April 2020 for the 

2019 valuation).  The Administering Authority would normally expect the period to reduce at successive triennial 

valuations so that the deficit recovery plan is a natural continuation of the previous plan, but would reserve the 

right to propose alternative spreading periods. 

Where stabilisation applies, the resulting employer contribution rate would be amended to comply with the 

stabilisation mechanism. 

For employers with no (or very few) active members at this valuation, the deficit should be recovered by a fixed 

monetary amount over a period to be agreed with the body or its successor, not to exceed the expected future 

working lifetime of active members. 

Note (d) (Secondary rate) 

For employers where stabilisation is not being applied, the Secondary contribution rate for each employer 

covering the period until the next formal valuation will often be set as a percentage of salaries.  However, the 

Administering Authority reserves the right to amend these rates between formal valuations and/or to require 

these payments in monetary terms instead, for instance where: 

 the employer is relatively mature, i.e. has a large Secondary contribution rate (e.g. above 15% of payroll), or 

 there has been a significant reduction in payroll due to outsourcing or redundancy exercises, or 

 the employer has closed the Fund to new entrants, or 

 for smaller employers. 

Note (e) (Likelihood of achieving funding target) 

Each employer has its funding target calculated, and a relevant time horizon over which to reach that target. 

Contributions are set such that, combined with the employer’s current asset share and anticipated market 

movements over the time horizon, the funding target is achieved with a given minimum likelihood. A higher 

required likelihood bar will give rise to higher required contributions, and vice versa. 

The way in which contributions are set using these three steps, and relevant economic projections, is described 

in further detail in Appendix D. 

Different likelihoods are set for different employers depending on their nature and circumstances: in broad 

terms, a higher likelihood will apply due to one or more of the following: 

 the Fund believes the employer poses a greater funding risk than other employers,  

54



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 015 

 

November  2019  

 the employer does not have tax-raising powers; 

 the employer does not have a guarantor or other sufficient security backing its funding position; and/or 

 the employer is likely to cease participation in the Fund in the short or medium term. 

 Note (f) (Regular Reviews) 

Such reviews may be triggered by significant events including but not limited to: an employer approaching exit 

from the Fund, significant reductions in payroll, altered employer circumstances, Government restructuring 

affecting the employer’s business, or failure to pay contributions or arrange appropriate security as required by 

the Administering Authority. 

The result of a review may be to require increased contributions (by strengthening the actuarial assumptions 

adopted and/or moving to monetary levels of deficit recovery contributions), and/or an increased level of security 

or guarantee.   

Note (g) (New Academy conversions) 

At the time of writing, the Fund’s policies on academies’ funding issues are as follows:  

i. The new academy will be regarded as a separate employer in its own right and will not be pooled with 

other employers in the Fund.  The only exception is where the academy is part of a Multi Academy Trust 

(MAT) in which case the academy’s figures will be calculated as below but can be combined with those of 

the other academies in the MAT; 

ii. The new academy’s past service liabilities on conversion will be calculated based on its active Fund 

members on the day before conversion.  For the avoidance of doubt, these liabilities will include all past 

service of those members, but will exclude the liabilities relating to any ex-employees of the school who 

have deferred or pensioner status; 

iii. The new academy will be allocated an initial asset share from the ceding council’s assets in the Fund.  

This asset share will be calculated using the estimated funding position of the ceding council at the date 

of academy conversion.  The share will be based on the active members’ funding level, having first 

allocated assets in the council’s share to fully fund deferred and pensioner members.  The asset 

allocation to the academy will be limited if necessary so that its initial funding level is subject to a 

maximum of 100%.  The asset allocation will be based on market conditions and the academy’s active 

Fund membership on the day prior to conversion.  

iv. It is possible for for an academy to leave one MAT and join another. If this occurs, all active, deferred and 

pensioner members of the academy transfer to the new MAT. The transferring academy will pay the 

certified contribution rate of the MAT they are joining.  If two MAT’s merge during the period between 

formal valuations the new merged MAT will pay the higher of the two certified individual MAT rates until 

the rates are reassessed at the next formal valuation. 

The Fund’s policies on academies are subject to change in the light of any amendments to MHCLG and/or Dfe 

guidance (or removal of the formal guarantee currently provided to academies by the DfE). Any changes will be 

notified to academies, and will be reflected in a subsequent version of this FSS. In particular, policy (iv) above 

will be reconsidered at each valuation. 

Note (h) (New Admission Bodies) 

55



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 016 

 

November  2019  

With effect from 1 October 2012, the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations introduced mandatory new 

requirements for all Admission Bodies brought into the Fund from that date.  Under these Regulations, all new 

Admission Bodies will be required to provide some form of security, such as a guarantee from the letting 

employer, an indemnity or a bond.  The security is required to cover some or all of the following: 

 the strain cost of any redundancy early retirements resulting from the premature termination of the 

contract; 

 allowance for the risk of asset underperformance; 

 allowance for the risk of a greater than expected rise in liabilities; 

 allowance for the possible non-payment of employer and member contributions to the Fund; 

 the current deficit. 

For all new Transferee Admission Bodies, the security must be to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority 

as well as the letting employer, and will be reassessed on an annual basis. See also Note (i) below. 

The Administering Authority will only consider requests from Community Admission Bodies (or other similar 

bodies, such as section 75 NHS partnerships) to join the Fund if they are sponsored by a Scheduled Body with 

tax raising powers, guaranteeing their liabilities and also providing a form of security as above.  

The above approaches reduce the risk to other employers in the Fund, of potentially having to pick up any 

shortfall in respect of Admission Bodies ceasing with an unpaid deficit. 

Note (i) (New Transferee Admission Bodies) 

A new TAB usually joins the Fund as a result of the letting/outsourcing of some services from an existing 

employer (normally a Scheduled Body such as a council or academy) to another organisation (a “contractor”).  

This involves the TUPE transfer of some staff from the letting employer to the contractor.  Consequently, for the 

duration of the contract, the contractor is a new participating employer in the Fund so that the transferring 

employees maintain their eligibility for LGPS membership.  At the end of the contract the employees revert to 

the letting employer or to a replacement contractor. 

Historically, the TAB would be set up in the Fund as a new employer with responsibility for all the accrued 

benefits of the transferring employees; in this case, the contractor would usually be assigned an initial asset 

value equal to the past service liability value of the employees’ Fund benefits.  The quid pro quo is that the 

contractor is then expected to ensure that its share of the Fund is also fully funded at the end of the contract: 

see Note (j). 

 The Fund’s policy is that new admission body outsourcings are set up under a “pass through” arrangement 

(although exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis at the Fund’s discretion). Pass through 

arrangements allow for the pension risks to be shared between the letting employer and new contractor. 

Typically the majority of the pension risk is borne by the letting employer and thus the liability is retained on their 

balance sheet – as such the contractor would not be required to pay any deficit or receive any surplus at the 

end of the contract (subject to any agreed exceptions). However, there is some flexibility within a pass through 

arrangement. In particular there are three different routes that the letting employer may wish to adopt.  Clearly 

as the risk ultimately resides with the employer letting the contract, it is for them to agree the appropriate route 

with the contractor: 

i) Pooling 

56



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 017 

 

November  2019  

 Under this option the contractor is pooled with the letting employer.  In this case, the contractor pays the 

 same or similar rate as the letting employer. 

ii) Letting employer retains pre-contract risks 

 Under this option the letting employer would retain responsibility for assets and liabilities in respect of 

 service accrued prior to the contract commencement date.  The contractor would be responsible for the 

 future liabilities that accrue in respect of transferred staff.  The contractor’s contribution rate could vary 

 from one valuation to the next. It would be liable for any deficit, or be entitled to any surplus at the 

 end of the contract term in respect of assets and liabilities attributable to service accrued during the 

 contract term and actions wholly attributable to the new employer for example excessive pay awards. 

iii) Fixed contribution rate agreed 

 Under this option the contractor pays a fixed contribution rate throughout its participation in the Fund 

 and doesn’t pay any cessation deficit or  receive an exit credit at the end of the contract term.  In 

other words, the pension risks “pass through” to the letting employer. 

The Administering Authority’s preferred approach is that a new TAB will participate in the Fund via a fixed 

contribution rate arrangement with the letting employer.  The certified employer contribution rate will be set 

equal to the fixed contribution rate agreed between the letting authority and the contractor. The fixed rate that 

will be paid is at the discretion of the letting authority and contractor subject to a minimum of the letting 

authority’s primary rate on the contract start date. Upon cessation the contractor’s assets and liabilities will 

transfer back to the letting authority with no crystallisation of any deficit or surplus. 

 

Although each matter will be dealt with on a case by case basis the Administering Authority default position is 

pooling with any surplus or deficit passing back to the letting employer. The Admission Agreement as well as 

the transfer agreement reflects this. The Admission Agreement should ensure that some element of risk 

transfers to the contractor where it relates to their decisions and it is unfair to burden the letting employer with 

that risk.  For example the contractor should typically be responsible for pension costs that arise from; 

 

 above average pay increases, including the effect in respect of service prior to contract commencement 

even if the letting employer takes on responsibility for the latter under (ii) above;   

 redundancy and early retirement decisions. 

Employers which outsource should be aware that all actuarial costs relating to the outsourcing (which will 

include any work that is required at the end of a contract) will be charged to either the outsourcing employer or 

the contractor, and will NOT be met by the Fund. The exception will be the setting of employer contribution rates 

as part of a normal actuarial valuation, where the Fund pays actuarial fees as the work covers all employing 

bodies.  

Note (j) (Admission Bodies Ceasing) 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Admission Agreement, the Administering Authority may consider any of 

the following as triggers for the cessation of an admission agreement with any type of body: 

 Last active member ceasing participation in the Fund (NB recent LGPS Regulation changes mean that 

the Administering Authority has the discretion to defer taking action for up to three years, so that if the 

employer acquires one or more active Fund members during that period then cessation is not triggered. 

 The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the Admission Body; 

57



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 018 

 

November  2019  

 Any breach by the Admission Body of any of its obligations under the Agreement that they have failed to 

remedy to the satisfaction of the Fund; 

 A failure by the Admission Body to pay any sums due to the Fund within the period required by the Fund; 

or 

 The failure by the Admission Body to renew or adjust the level of the bond or indemnity, or to confirm an 

appropriate alternative guarantor, as required by the Fund; 

 The failure by the Admission Body to sign the admission agreement and/or bond documents and secure 

the required guarantee as required by the Fund. 

On cessation, the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund actuary to carry out a cessation valuation to 

determine whether there is any deficit or surplus. Where there is a deficit, payment of this amount in full would 

normally be sought from the Admission Body; where there is a surplus following the LGPS (Amendment) 

Regulations 2018 which came into effect on 14
th
 May 2018, this will normally result in an exit credit payment to 

the Admission Body within three months of the cessation date (or another date agreed between the 

Administering Authority and the the Admission Body). If a risk-sharing agreement has been put in place (please 

see note (i) above) no cessation debt or exit credit may be payable, depending on the terms of the agreement. 

As discussed in Section 2.7, the LGPS benefit structure from 1 April 2014 is currently under review following the 

Government’s loss of the right to appeal the McCloud and other similar court cases. The Fund has considered 

how it will reflect the current uncertainty regarding the outcome of this judgement in its approach to cessation 

valuations. For cessation valuations that are carried out before any changes to the LGPS benefit structure (from 

1 April 2014) are confirmed, the Fund’s policy is that the actuary will 

 

apply a [x%] loading to the ceasing employer’s post 2014 benefit accrual value, as an estimate of the possible 

impact of resulting benefit changes. 

OR 

make adjustments to the liability valuation, at individual member level, of the post 2014 benefit accrual, as an 

estimate of the possible impact of resulting benefit changes.  

The Fund Actuary charges a fee for carrying out an employer’s cessation valuation [, and there will be other 

Fund administration expenses associated with the cessation, both of] which the Fund will recharge to the 

employer. For the purposes of the cessation valuation, this fee will be treated as an expense incurred by the 

employer and will be deducted from the employer’s cessation surplus or added to the employer’s cessation 

deficit, as appropriate. This process improves administrative efficiency as it reduces the number of transactions 

required to be made between the employer and the Fund following an employer’s cessation.  

For Transferee Admission Bodies any cessation valuation would normally be carried out on an on-going basis, 

as this will be the basis on which their opening position was calculated. Where a Transferee Admission Body 

has taken, in the view of the Administering Authority, action that has been deliberately designed to bring about a 

cessation event (stopping future accrual of LGPS benefits, for example) then the cessation valuation will be 

carried out on a gilts basis. 

Any cessation valuation, whether carried out on an on-going or a gilts basis, will calculate the surplus or deficit 

at the point of the cessation and full payment of any deficit amount will release the Transferee Admission Body 

from any further liability to the Fund. In the event that the sub-fund of the Transferee Admission Body 

subsequently falls into a deficit position, the outsourcing organisation will become responsible for the deficit 

58



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 019 

 

November  2019  

even if they did not act as a guarantor for the admission agreement. At no stage will the Fund, and hence all 

ongoing employing bodies within it, bear any financial risk in respect of any Transferee Admission Body.   

For non-Transferee Admission Bodies whose participation is voluntarily ended either by themselves or the 

Fund, or where a cessation event has been triggered, the Administering Authority must look to protect the 

interests of other ongoing employers.  The actuary will therefore adopt an approach which, to the extent 

reasonably practicable, protects the other employers from the likelihood of any material loss emerging in future: 

a) Where there is a guarantor for future deficits and contributions, the details of the guarantee will be 

considered prior to the cessation valuation being carried out.  In some cases the guarantor is simply 

guarantor of last resort and therefore the cessation valuation will be carried out consistently with the 

approach taken had there been no guarantor in place.  Alternatively, where the guarantor is not simply 

guarantor of last resort, the cessation may be calculated using the ongoing participation basis or 

contractor exit basis  as described in Appendix E; 

b) Alternatively, depending on the nature of the guarantee,  it may be possible to simply transfer the former 

Admission Body’s liabilities and assets to the guarantor, without needing to crystallise any deficit or 

surplus. This approach may be adopted where the employer cannot pay the contributions due, and this is 

within the terms of the guarantee; 

c) Where a guarantor does not exist then, in order to protect other employers in the Fund, the cessation 

liabilities and final deficit (or surplus) will normally be calculated using a “gilts  exit basis”, which is more 

prudent than the ongoing participation basis.  This has no allowance for potential future investment 

outperformance above gilt yields, and has added allowance for future improvements in life expectancy. 

This could give rise to significant cessation debts being required..   

Under (a) and (c), any shortfall would usually be levied on the departing Admission Body as a single lump sum 

payment.  If this is not possible then the Fund may spread the payment subject to there being some security in 

place for the employer such as a  bondindemnity or guarantee. 

In the event that the Fund is not able to recover the required payment in full, then the unpaid amounts fall to be 

shared amongst all of the other employers in the Fund.  This may require an immediate revision to the Rates 

and Adjustments Certificate affecting other employers in the Fund, or instead be reflected in the contribution 

rates set at the next formal valuation following the cessation date. 

As an alternative, where the ceasing Admission Body (whether a Transferee Admission Body or a Community 

Admission Body) is continuing in business, the Fund at its absolute discretion reserves the right to enter into an 

agreement with the ceasing Admission Body.  Under this agreement the Fund would accept an appropriate 

alternative security to be held against any deficit on the gilts exit basis, and would carry out the cessation 

valuation on  the ongoing participation basis.  Secondary contributions  would be derived from this cessation 

debt.  This approach would be monitored as part of each formal valuation and secondary contributions would be 

reassessed as required. The Admission Body may terminate the agreement only via payment of the outstanding 

debt assessed on the gilts exit basis. Furthermore, the Fund reserves the right to revert to the  “gilts exit basis” 

and seek immediate payment of any funding shortfall identified.  The Administering Authority may need to seek 

legal advice in such cases, as the Admission Body would have no contributing members. 

3.4 Pooled contributions 

The Administering Authority will only allow employer pools to be set up if it legally required (perhaps as a result 

of LGPS Regulations) or where a request is received from a group of employers that they wish to become a 

pool.  

59



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 020 

 

November  2019  

Even if such a request is received, the Administering Authority will only agree to an employer pool if it is 

satisfied that the relevant employers have adequately considered the consequences of the pool and that there is 

a legal agreement in place which makes it impossible for the pool to be dissolved without the agreement of all 

parties, which will include an agreement on how the assets and liabilities will be split upon dissolution. Allowing 

pooling is entirely at the discretion of the Administering Authority.  

Maintained schools do not have a separate legal identity so are not pooled with the relevant local authority; they 

are part-and-parcel of it. However there may be exceptions for specialist or independent schools.  

Those employers which have been pooled are identified in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate. 

3.5 Additional flexibility in return for added security 

The Administering Authority may permit greater flexibility to the employer’s contributions if the employer 

provides added security to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority.   

Such flexibility includes a reduced rate of contribution, an extended time horizon, or permission to join a pool 

with another body (e.g. the Local Authority).  

Such security may include, but is not limited to, a suitable bond, a legally-binding guarantee from an appropriate 

third party, or security over an employer asset of sufficient value. 

The degree of flexibility given may take into account factors such as: 

 the extent of the employer’s deficit; 

 the amount and quality of the security offered; 

 the employer’s financial security and business plan;  

 whether the admission agreement is likely to be open or closed to new entrants. 

3.6 Non ill health early retirement costs 

It is assumed that members’ benefits are payable from the earliest age that the employee could retire without 

incurring a reduction to their benefit (and without requiring their employer’s consent to retire).  (NB the relevant 

age may be different for different periods of service, following the benefit changes from April 2008 and April 

2014).  Employers are required to pay additional contributions (‘strain’ or ‘capitalised costs’) wherever an 

employee retires before attaining this age.  The actuary’s funding basis makes no allowance for premature 

retirement except on grounds of ill-health.      

For any early retirements that occur after 31/3/17, and where the Administering Authority had not previously 

agreed to payment in instalments, all costs must be met by way of a single payment in the year of retirement. 

3.7 Ill health early retirement costs 

Each employer has an ‘ill health allowance’ built into the full contribution rate that is set at each actuarial 

valuation. If an employer decides to insure against the risk of ill-health retirements there will be a reduction to 

the employer’s contribution rate that is the equivalent to the external insurance premium rate. 

The Administering Authority receives a cash figure from the actuary for the cost of ill-health retirements that is 

built into each employer’s contribution rate for the period covered by the actuarial valuation (i.e. for the period 

1/4/19 – 31/3/22 for the 2019 valuation). Where an employer does not take out ill-health insurance, they will be 

invoiced for any cumulative ill-health retirement costs over the three year period that are above their allowance.  

60



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 021 

 

November  2019  

3.8 Ill health insurance 

If an employer provides satisfactory evidence to the Administering Authority of a current insurance policy 

covering ill health early retirement strains, then: 

- the employer’s contribution to the Fund each year is reduced by the amount of that year’s insurance 

premium, so that the total contribution is unchanged, and 

- there is no need for monitoring of ill-health allowances versus experience. 

When an active member retires on ill health early retirement the claim amount will be paid directly from the 

insurer to the insured employer. This amount should then be paid to the Fund to allow the employer’s asset 

share to be credited. 

The employer must keep the Administering Authority notified of any changes in the insurance policy’s coverage 

or premium terms, or if the policy is ceased. 

3.9 Employers with no remaining active members 

In general an employer ceasing in the Fund, due to the departure of the last active member, will pay a cessation 

debt or receive an exit credit on an appropriate basis (see 3.3, Note (j)) and consequently have no further 

obligation to the Fund. Thereafter it is expected that one of two situations will eventually arise: 

a) The employer’s asset share runs out before all its ex-employees’ benefits have been paid. If this 

employer was a former Transferee Admission Body, the outsourcing employer will become responsible 

for any deficit (even if they did not act as a guarantor within the admission agreement). If the employer 

was not a Transferee Admission Body the other Fund employers will be required to contribute to pay all 

remaining benefits: this will be done by the Fund actuary apportioning the remaining liabilities on a pro-

rata basis at successive formal valuations, but it should be noted that all surpluses in respect of non-

Transferee Admission Bodies will be netted off any deficits so that it is only the net deficit position that will 

be apportioned; 

b) The last ex-employee or dependant dies before the employer’s asset share has been fully utilised.  If this 

employer was a former Transferee Admission Body, the outsourcing employer will receive the benefit of the 

surplus (even if they did not act as a guarantor within the admission agreement). If the employer was not a 

Transferee Admission Body, any surplus will be netted off the deficit of similar types of employers as 

described in 3.9 a). In the event that the net position is a surplus the net surplus will be apportioned; 

In exceptional circumstances the Fund may permit an employer with no remaining active members and a 

cessation debt to continue contributing to the Fund, as opposed to paying a cessation deficit amount. This 

would require the provision of a suitable security or guarantee, as well as a written ongoing commitment to fund 

the remainder of the employer’s obligations over an appropriate period. The Fund would reserve the right to 

invoke the cessation requirements in the future, however.  The Administering Authority may need to seek legal 

advice in such cases, as the employer would have no contributing members. 

3.10 Policies on bulk transfers 

Each case will be treated on its own merits, but in general: 

 The Fund will not pay bulk transfers greater than the lesser of (a) the asset share of the transferring 

employer in the Fund, and (b) the value of the past service liabilities of the transferring members; 

 The Fund will not grant added benefits to members bringing in entitlements from another Fund unless the 

asset transfer is sufficient to meet the added liabilities; 

61



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 022 

 

November  2019  

 The Fund may permit shortfalls to arise on bulk transfers if the Fund employer has suitable strength of 

covenant and commits to meeting that shortfall in an appropriate period.  This may require the employer’s 

Fund contributions to increase between valuations.   

  

62



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 023 

 

November  2019  

4 Funding strategy and links to investment strategy 

4.1 What is the Fund’s investment strategy? 

The Fund has built up assets over the years, and continues to receive contribution and other income.  All of this 

must be invested in a suitable manner, which is the investment strategy. 

Investment strategy is set by the Local Pension Committee of Leicestershire County Council, after taking 

investment advice.  The precise mix, manager make up and target returns are set out in the Investment Strategy 

Statement (ISS), which is available to members and employers. 

The investment strategy is set for the long-term, but is reviewed annually.  The Fund’s liability profile is one of 

the considerations taken into account when setting investment strategy.   

The same investment strategy is currently followed for all employers. 

4.2 What is the link between funding strategy and investment strategy? 

The Fund must be able to meet all benefit payments as and when they fall due.  These payments will be met by 

contributions (resulting from the funding strategy) or asset returns and income (resulting from the investment 

strategy). To the extent that investment returns or income fall short, then higher cash contributions are required 

from employers, and vice versa. 

Therefore, the funding and investment strategies are inextricably linked.   

4.3 How does the funding strategy reflect the Fund’s investment strategy? 

In the opinion of the Fund actuary, the current funding policy is consistent with the current investment strategy of 

the Fund.  The actuary’s assumptions for future investment returns (described further in Appendix E) are based 

on the current benchmark investment strategy of the Fund. The future investment return assumptions underlying 

each of the fund’s three funding bases include a margin for prudence, and are therefore also considered to be 

consistent with the requirement to take a “prudent longer-term view” of the funding of liabilities as required by 

the UK Government (see Appendix A1). 

In the short term – such as the three yearly assessments at formal valuations – there is the scope for 

considerable volatility in asset values.  However, the actuary takes a long term view when assessing employer 

contribution rates and the contribution rate setting methodology takes into account this potential variability. The 

Fund does not hold a contingency reserve to protect it against the volatility of equity investments.   

4.4 Does the Fund monitor its overall funding position? 

The Administering Authority monitors the relative funding position, i.e. changes in the relationship between 

asset values and the liabilities value, quarterly.  It reports this to the regular Local Pension Committee meetings. 

  

63



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 024 

 

November  2019  

5 Statutory reporting and comparison to other LGPS Funds 

5.1 Purpose 

Under Section 13(4)(c) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (“Section 13”), the Government Actuary’s 

Department must, following each triennial actuarial valuation, report to the MHCLG on each of the LGPS Funds 

in England & Wales. This report will cover whether, for each Fund, the rate of employer contributions are set at 

an appropriate level to ensure both the solvency and the long term cost efficiency of the Fund.   

This additional  MHCLG oversight may have an impact on the strategy for setting contribution rates at future 

valuations. 

5.2 Solvency 

For the purposes of Section 13, the rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an 

appropriate level to ensure solvency if: 

(a) the rate of employer contributions is set to target a funding level for the Fund of 100%, over an 

appropriate time period and using appropriate actuarial assumptions (where appropriateness is 

considered in both absolute and relative terms in comparison with other funds); and either  

(b) employers collectively have the financial capacity to increase employer contributions, and/or the Fund is 

able to realise contingent assets should future circumstances require, in order to continue to target a 

funding level of 100%; or 

(c) there is an appropriate plan in place should there be, or if there is expected in future to be, a material 

reduction in the capacity of fund employers to increase contributions as might be needed.   

5.3 Long Term Cost Efficiency 

The rate of employer contributions shall be deemed to have been set at an appropriate level to ensure long term 

cost efficiency if: 

i. the rate of employer contributions is sufficient to make provision for the cost of current benefit accrual, 

ii. with an appropriate adjustment to that rate for any surplus or deficit in the Fund. 

In assessing whether the above condition is met, MHCLG may have regard to various absolute and relative 

considerations.  A relative consideration is primarily concerned with comparing LGPS pension funds with other 

LGPS pension funds.  An absolute consideration is primarily concerned with comparing Funds with a given 

objective benchmark. 

Relative considerations include: 

1. the implied deficit recovery period; and 

2. the investment return required to achieve full funding after 20 years.  
 

Absolute considerations include: 

1. the extent to which the contributions payable are sufficient to cover the cost of current benefit accrual and 

the interest cost on any deficit; 

2. how the required investment return under “relative considerations” above compares to the estimated 

future return being targeted by the Fund’s current investment strategy;  

64



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 025 

 

November  2019  

3. the extent to which contributions actually paid have been in line with the expected contributions based on 

the extant rates and adjustment certificate; and  

4. the extent to which any new deficit recovery plan can be directly reconciled with, and can be 
demonstrated to be a continuation of, any previous deficit recovery plan, after allowing for actual Fund 
experience. 

 

MHCLG may assess and compare these metrics on a suitable standardised market-related basis, for example 
where the local funds’ actuarial bases do not make comparisons straightforward.  

65



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 026 

 

November  2019  

Appendix A – Regulatory framework 

A1 Why does the Fund need an FSS? 

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) has stated that the purpose of the FSS 

is:  

 “to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers’ pension 

liabilities are best met going forward; 

 to support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer contribution rates as 

possible; and    

 to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities.” 

These objectives are desirable individually, but may be mutually conflicting. 

The requirement to maintain and publish a FSS is contained in LGPS Regulations which are updated from time 

to time.  In publishing the FSS the Administering Authority has to have regard to any guidance published by 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) (most recently in 2016) and to its Investment 

Strategy Statement (ISS). 

This is the framework within which the Fund’s actuary carries out triennial valuations to set employers’ 

contributions and provides recommendations to the Administering Authority when other funding decisions are 

required, such as when employers join or leave the Fund.  The FSS applies to all employers participating in the 

Fund. 

A2 Does the Administering Authority consult anyone on the FSS? 

Yes.  This is required by LGPS Regulations.  It is covered in more detail by the most recent CIPFA guidance, 

which states that the FSS must first be subject to “consultation with such persons as the authority considers 

appropriate”, and should include “a meaningful dialogue at officer and elected member level with council tax 

raising authorities and with corresponding representatives of other participating employers”. 

In practice, for the Fund, the consultation process for this FSS is  as follows: 

a) A draft version of the FSS was presented to the Local Pension Committee on the 8 November 2019 for 

initial comment; 

b) The draft version of the FSS was issued to all participating employers in November 2019 for comment; 

c) Comments from employers were requested  before 1 January 2020, so that it can be brough back to 

Local Pension Committee meeting in January 2020 for final approval.  

d) Following the approval of the FSS by Local Pension Committee, it was published in February 2020 and 

became effective immediately upon publication. 

A3 How is the FSS published? 

The FSS is made available through the following routes: 

 Published on the website, at http://www.leics.gov.uk/pensions; 

 A copy sent by email to each participating employer in the Fund; 

 Copies made available on request. 

66



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 027 

 

November  2019  

A4 How often is the FSS reviewed? 

The FSS is reviewed in detail at least every three years as part of the triennial valuation which may move to 

every four years in future – see Section 2.8). .  This version is expected to remain unaltered until it is consulted 

upon as part of the formal process for the next valuation in 2022.  

It is possible that (usually slight) amendments may be needed within the three year period.  These would be 

needed to reflect any regulatory changes, or alterations to the way the Fund operates (e.g. to accommodate a 

new class of employer). Any such amendments would be consulted upon as appropriate:  

 trivial amendments would be simply notified at the next round of employer communications, 

 amendments affecting only one class of employer would be consulted with those employers,  

 other more significant amendments would be subject to full consultation. 

In any event, meaningful changes to the FSS would need agreement by the Local Pension Committee and 

would be included in the relevant Committee Meeting minutes.  

A5 How does the FSS fit into other Fund documents? 

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding liabilities.  It is not an exhaustive statement of policy 

on all issues, for example there are a number of separate statements published by the Fund including the 

Investment Strategy Statement, Governance Strategy and Communications Strategy.  In addition, the Fund 

publishes an Annual Report and Accounts with up to date information on the Fund.   

These documents can be found on the web at http://www.leics.gov.uk/pensions. 

  

67



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 028 

 

November  2019  

Appendix B – Responsibilities of key parties 

The efficient and effective operation of the Fund needs various parties to each play their part. 

B1 The Administering Authority should:- 

 operate the Fund as per the LGPS Regulations; 

 effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as Administering Authority 

and a Fund employer; 

 collect employer and employee contributions, and investment income and other amounts due to the Fund; 

 ensure that cash is available to meet benefit payments as and when they fall due; 

 pay from the Fund the relevant benefits and entitlements that are due; 

 invest surplus monies (i.e. contributions and other income which are not immediately needed to pay 

benefits) in accordance with the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) and LGPS Regulations; 

 communicate appropriately with employers so that they fully understand their obligations to the Fund; 

 take appropriate measures to safeguard the Fund against the consequences of employer default; 

 manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary; 

 provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their 

statutory obligations (see Section 5); 

 prepare and maintain a FSS and a ISS, after consultation;  

 notify the Fund’s actuary of material changes which could affect funding (this is covered in a separate 

agreement with the actuary); and  

 monitor all aspects of the fund’s performance and funding and amend the FSS/ISS as necessary and 

appropriate. 

B2 The Individual Employer should:- 

 deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly; 

 pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date; 

 have a policy and exercise discretions within the regulatory framework; 

 make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for example, 

augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement strain; and  

 notify the Administering Authority promptly of all changes to its circumstances, prospects or membership, 

which could affect future funding. 

B3 The Fund Actuary should:- 

 prepare valuations, including the setting of employers’ contribution rates.  This will involve agreeing 

assumptions with the Administering Authority, having regard to the FSS and LGPS Regulations, and 

targeting each employer’s solvency appropriately;  

 provide data and information as required by the Government Actuary’s Department to carry out their 

statutory obligations (see Section 5); 

 provide advice relating to new employers in the Fund, including the level and type of bonds or other forms 

of security (and the monitoring of these); 

68



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 029 

 

November  2019  

 prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual benefit-related matters; 

 assist the Administering Authority in considering possible changes to employer contributions between 

formal valuations, where circumstances suggest this may be necessary; 

 advise on the termination of employers’  participation in the Fund; and 

 fully reflect actuarial professional guidance and requirements in the advice given to the Administering 

Authority. 

B4 Other parties:- 

 investment advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s ISS remains appropriate, and 

consistent with this FSS; 

 investment managers, custodians and bankers should all play their part in the effective investment (and 

dis-investment) of Fund assets, in line with the ISS; 

 auditors should comply with their auditing standards, ensure Fund compliance with all requirements, 

monitor and advise on fraud detection, and sign off annual reports and financial statements as required; 

 governance advisers may be appointed to advise the Administering Authority on efficient processes and 

working methods in managing the Fund; 

 legal advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s operation and management remains 

fully compliant with all regulations and broader local government requirements, including the 

Administering Authority’s own procedures. 

 MHCLG(assisted by the Government Actuary’s Department) and the Scheme Advisory Board, should 

work with LGPS Funds to meet Section 13 requirements. 

  

69



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 030 

 

November  2019  

Appendix C – Key risks and controls 

C1 Types of risk 

The Administering Authority has an active risk management programme in place.  The measures that it has in 

place to control key risks are summarised below under the following headings:  

 financial;  

 demographic; 

 regulatory; and 

 governance. 

C2 Financial risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the 

anticipated returns underpinning valuation of 

liabilities and contribution rates over the long-

term. 

Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively prudent 

basis to reduce risk of under-performing. 

Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in a 

suitably diversified manner across asset classes, 

geographies, managers, etc. 

Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for all 

employers.   

Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between 

valuations at whole Fund level.    

Inappropriate long-term investment strategy.  Overall investment strategy options considered as an 

integral part of the funding strategy.  Used asset 

liability modelling to measure 4 key outcomes.   

Chosen option considered to provide the best balance. 

  

Active investment manager under-performance 

relative to benchmark. 

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market 

performance and active managers relative to their 

index benchmark.   

Pay and price inflation significantly more than 

anticipated. 

The focus of the actuarial valuation process is on real 

returns on assets, net of price and pay increases.  

Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives early 

warning.  

Some investment in bonds also helps to mitigate this 

risk.   

Employers pay for their own salary awards and should 

be mindful of the geared effect on pension liabilities of 

any bias in pensionable pay rises towards longer-

70



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 031 

 

November  2019  

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

serving employees.   

Effect of possible increase in employer’s 

contribution rate on service delivery and 

admission/scheduled bodies 

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed 

as part of the funding strategy.  Other measures are 

also in place to limit sudden increases in contributions. 

Orphaned employers give rise to added costs 

for the Fund 

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 

security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of this 

happening in the future. 

If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the added cost 

spread pro-rata among all employers – (see 3.9). 

 

C3 Demographic risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to 

Fund. 

 

Set mortality assumptions with some allowance for 

future increases in life expectancy. 

The Fund Actuary has direct access to the experience 

of over 50 LGPS funds which allows early identification 

of changes in life expectancy that might in turn affect 

the assumptions underpinning the valuation. 

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively 

contributing employees declines relative to 

retired employees. 

Continue to monitor at each valuation, consider 

seeking monetary amounts rather than % of pay and 

consider alternative investment strategies. 

Deteriorating patterns of early retirements Employers are charged the extra cost of non ill-health 

retirements following each individual decision. 

Employer ill health retirement experience is monitored, 

and insurance is an option. 

Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit 

recovery payments 

In many cases this may not be sufficient cause for 

concern, and will in effect be caught at the next formal 

valuation.  However, there are protections where there 

is concern, as follows: 

Employers in the stabilisation mechanism may be 

brought out of that mechanism to permit appropriate 

contribution increases (see Note (b) to 3.3). 

For other employers, review of contributions is 

permitted in general between valuations (see Note (f) 

to 3.3) and may require a move in deficit contributions 

from a percentage of payroll to fixed monetary 

amounts. 

71



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 032 

 

November  2019  

 

C4 Regulatory risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Changes to national pension requirements 

and/or HMRC rules e.g. changes arising from 

public sector pensions reform. 

 

The Administering Authority considers all consultation 

papers issued by the Government and comments 

where appropriate.  

 

The Administering Authority is monitoring the progress 

on the McCloud court case and will consider an interim 

valuation or other appropriate action once more 

information is known.   

The government’s long term preferred solution to GMP 

indexation and equalisation  - conversion of GMPs to 

scheme benefits - was built into the 2019 valuation. 

Time, cost and/or reputational risks associated 

with any MHCLG intervention triggered by the 

Section 13 analysis (see Section 5). 

Take advice from Fund Actuary on position of Fund as 

at prior valuation, and consideration of proposed 

valuation approach relative to anticipated Section 13 

analysis. 

Changes by Government to particular employer 

participation in LGPS Funds, leading to impacts 

on funding and/or investment strategies. 

The Administering Authority considers all consultation 

papers issued by the Government and comments 

where appropriate.  

Take advice from Fund Actuary on impact of changes 

on the Fund and amend strategy as appropriate. 

 

C5 Governance risks 

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Administering Authority unaware of structural 

changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. 

large fall in employee members, large number of 

retirements) or not advised of an employer 

closing to new entrants. 

The Administering Authority has a close relationship 

with employing bodies and communicates required 

standards e.g. for submission of data.  

The Actuary may revise the rates and Adjustments 

certificate to increase an employer’s contributions  

between triennial valuations 

Deficit contributions may be expressed as monetary 

amounts. 

Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or 

is not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in 

some way 

The Administering Authority maintains close contact 

with its specialist advisers. 

Advice is delivered via formal meetings involving 

72



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 033 

 

November  2019  

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms  

Elected Members, and recorded appropriately. 

Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements 

such as peer review. 

Administering Authority failing to commission 

the Fund Actuary to carry out a termination 

valuation for a departing Admission Body. 

The Administering Authority requires employers with 

Best Value contractors to inform it of forthcoming 

changes. 

Community Admission Bodies’ memberships are 

monitored and, if active membership decreases, steps 

will be taken. 

An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient 

funding or adequacy of a bond. 

 

The Administering Authority believes that it would 

normally be too late to address the position if it was left 

to the time of departure. 

The risk is mitigated by: 

Seeking a funding guarantee from another scheme 

employer, or external body, where-ever possible (see 

Notes (h) and (j) to 3.3). 

Alerting the prospective employer to its obligations and 

encouraging it to take independent actuarial advice.  

Vetting prospective employers before admission. 

Where permitted under the regulations requiring a bond 

to protect the Fund from various risks. 

Requiring new Community Admission Bodies to have a 

guarantor that is a tax-raising body. 

Reviewing bond or guarantor arrangements at regular 

intervals (see Note (f) to 3.3). 

Reviewing contributions well ahead of cessation if 

thought appropriate (see Note (a) to 3.3). 

An employer ceasing to exist resulting in an exit 

credit being payable 

 

The Administering Authority regularly monitors 

admission bodies coming up to cessation 

The Administering Authority invests in liquid assets to 

ensure that exit credits can be paid when required. 

 

73



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 034 

 

November  2019  

Appendix D – The calculation of Employer contributions 

In Section 2 there was a broad description of the way in which contribution rates are calculated.  This Appendix 

considers these calculations in much more detail. 

As discussed in Section 2, the actuary calculates the required contribution rate for each employer using a three-

step process: 

 Calculate the funding target for that employer, i.e. the estimated amount of assets it should hold in order 

to be able to pay all its members’ benefits. See Appendix E for more details of what assumptions we 

make to determine that funding target; 

 Determine the time horizon over which the employer should aim to achieve that funding target. See the 

table in 3.3 and Note (c) for more details; 

 Calculate the employer contribution rate such that it has at least a given likelihood of achieving that 

funding target over that time horizon, allowing for various possible economic outcomes over that time 

horizon. See the table in 3.3 Note (e) for more details. 

The calculations involve actuarial assumptions about future experience, and these are described in detail in 

Appendix E. 

D1 What is the difference between calculations across the whole Fund and calculations for an 

individual employer? 

Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements: 

a) the estimated cost of future benefits being accrued,  referred to as the “Primary contribution rate”; (see D2 

below); plus 

b) an adjustment for the difference between the Primary rate above, and the actual contribution the 

employer needs to pay, referred to as the Secondary Contribution rate (see D3 below).  

The contribution rate for each employer is measured as above, appropriate for each employer’s assets, 

liabilities and membership. The whole Fund position, including that used in reporting to MHCLG (see section 5), 

is calculated in effect as the sum of all the individual employer rates. MHCLG currently only regulates at whole 

Fund level, without monitoring individual employer positions. 

D2 How is the Primary  Rate calculated?  

The Primary  element of the employer contribution rate is calculated with the aim that these contributions will 

meet benefit payments in respect of members’ future service in the Fund.  This is based upon the cost (in 

excess of members’ contributions) of the benefits which employee members earn from their service each year.   

The Primary rate is calculated separately for all the employers, although employers within a pool will pay the 

contribution rate applicable to the pool as a whole.   

The Primary rate is calculated such that it is projected to: 

1. meet the required funding target for all future years’ accrual of benefits*, excluding any accrued assets, 

and 

2.  at the end of the determined time horizon (see note 3.3 Note (c) for further details), 

74



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 035 

 

November  2019  

3. with a sufficiently high likelihood, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note 

(e) for further details). 

* The projection is for the current active membership where the employer no longer admits new entrants, or 

additionally allows for new entrants where this is appropriate. 

The projections are carried out using an economic modeller (the “Economic Scenario Service”) developed by 

the Fund’s actuary Hymans Robertson: this allows for a wide range of outcomes as regards key factors such as 

asset returns (based on the Fund’s investment strategy), inflation, and bond yields. Further information about 

this model is included in Appendix E. The measured contributions are calculated such that the proportion of 

outcomes meeting the employer’s funding target ( at the end of the time horizon) is equal to the required 

likelihood.  

The approach includes expenses of administration to the extent that they are borne by the Fund, and includes 

allowances for benefits payable on death in service and on ill health retirement. 

D3 How is the Secondary contribution rate calculated? 

The Fund aims for the employer to have assets sufficient to meet 100% of its accrued liabilities at the end of its 

funding time horizon based on the employer’s funding target assumptions (see Appendix E). 

The Secondary rate is calculated as the balance over and above the Primary rate, such that the total 

contribution rate is projected to: 

1. meet the required funding target relating to combined past and future service benefit accrual, including 

accrued asset share (see D5 below) 

2.  at the end of the determined time horizon (see 3.3 Note (c) for further details) 

3. with a sufficiently high likelihood, as set by the Fund’s strategy for the category of employer (see 3.3 Note 

(e) for further details). 

The projections are carried out using an economic modeller (the “Economic Scenario Service”) developed by 

the Fund Actuary Hymans Robertson: this allows for a wide range of outcomes as regards key factors such as 

asset returns (based on the Fund’s investment strategy), inflation, and bond yields. Further information about 

this model is included in Appendix E. The measured contributions are calculated such that the proportion of 

outcomes meeting the employer’s funding target (at the end of the time horizon) is equal to the required  

likelihood. 

D4 What affects a given employer’s valuation results? 

The results of these calculations for a given individual employer will be affected by: 

 past contributions relative to the cost of accruals of benefits;   

 different liability profiles of employers (e.g. mix of members by age, gender, service vs. salary); 

 the effect of any differences in the funding target, i.e. the valuation basis used to  value  the employer’s 

liabilities at the end of the time horizon;  

 any different time horizons; 

 the difference between actual and assumed rises in pensionable pay; 

 the difference between actual and assumed increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions; 

 the difference between actual and assumed retirements on grounds of ill-health from active status;  

75



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 036 

 

November  2019  

 the difference between actual and assumed amounts of pension ceasing on death; 

 the additional costs of any non ill-health retirements relative to any extra payments made; 

 differences in the required likelihood of achieving the funding target. 

D5 How is each employer’s asset share calculated? 

The Fund Actuary uses the Hymans Robertson’s  proprietary (“HEAT”) system to track employer assets on a 

monthly basis. Starting with each employer’s assets from the previous month end, cashflows paid in/out and 

investment returns achieved on the Fund’s assets over the course of the month are added to calculate an asset 

value at the month end.   

The Fund is satisfied that this approach provides the most accurate asset allocations between employers that is 

reasonably possible at present. 

D6 How does the Fund adjust employer asset shares when an individual member moves from one 

employer in the Fund to another? 

Under the cashflow approach for tracking employer asset shares, the Fund has allowed for any individual 

members transferring from one employer in the Fund to another, via the transfer of a sum from the ceding 

employer’s asset share to the receiving employer’s asset share. This sum is equal to the member’s Cash 

Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) as advised by the Fund’s administrators. 

 

76



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 037 

 

November  2019  

Appendix E – Actuarial assumptions 

E1 What are the actuarial assumptions used to calculate employer contribution rates? 

These are expectations of future experience used to place a value on future benefit payments (“the liabilities”). 

and future asset values. Assumptions are made about the amount of benefit payable to members (the financial 

assumptions) and the likelihood or timing of payments (the demographic assumptions).  For example, financial 

assumptions include investment returns, salary growth and pension increases; demographic assumptions 

include life expectancy, probabilities of ill-health early retirement, and proportions of member deaths giving rise 

to dependants’ benefits.   

Changes in assumptions will affect the funding target and required contribution rate. However, different 

assumptions will not affect the actual benefits payable by the Fund in future. 

The actuary’s approach to calculating employer contribution rates involves the projection of each employer’s 

future benefit payments, contributions and investment returns into the future under 5,000 possible economic 

scenarios. Future inflation (and therefore benefit payments) and investment returns for each asset class (and 

therefore employer asset values) are variables in the projections. By projecting the evolution of an employer’s 

assets and benefit payments 5,000 times, a contribution rate can be set that results in a sufficient number of 

these future projections (determined by the employer’s required likelihood) being successful at the end of the 

employer’s time horizon. In this context, a successful contribution rate is one which results in the employer 

having met its funding target at the end of the time horizon.  

Setting employer contribution rates therefore requires two types of assumptions to be made about the future: 

1. Assumptions to project the employer’s assets, benefits and cashflows to the end of the funding time 

horizon. For this purpose the actuary uses Hymans Robertson’s proprietary stochastic economic model 

- the Economic Scenario Service (“ESS”). 

2. Assumptions to assess whether, for a given projection, the funding target is satisfied at the end of the 

time horizon. For this purpose, the Fund has three different funding bases.  

 

Details on the ESS assumptions and funding target assumptions are included below (in E2 and E3 

respectively).   

77



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 038 

 

November  2019  

E2  What assumptions are used in the ESS? 

The actuary uses Hymans Robertson’s ESS model to project a range of possible outcomes for the future 

behaviour of asset returns and economic variables. With this type of modelling, there is no single figure for an 

assumption about future inflation or investment returns.  Instead, there is a range of what future inflation or 

returns will be which leads to likelihoods of the assumption being higher or lower than a certain value. 

The ESS is a complex model to reflect the interactions and correlations between different asset classes and 

wider economic variables.  The table below shows the calibration of the model as at 31 March 2019.  All returns 

are shown net of fees and are the annualised total returns over 5, 10 and 20 years, except for the yields which 

refer to the simulated yields at that time horizon. 

 

 

E3 What assumptions are used in the funding target? 

At the end of an employer’s funding time horizon, an assessment will be made – for each of the 5,000 

projections – of how the assets held compare to the value of assets required to meet the future benefit 

payments (the funding target). Valuing the cost of future benefits requires the actuary to make assumptions 

about the following financial factors: 

 Benefit increases and CARE revaluation 

 Salary growth 

 Investment returns (the “discount rate”) 

Each of the 5,000 projections represents a different prevailing economic environment at the end of the funding 

time horizon and so a single, fixed value for each assumption is unlikely to be appropriate for every projection. 

For example, a high assumed future investment return (discount rate) would not be prudent in projections with a 

weak outlook for economic growth.  Therefore, instead of using a fixed value for each assumption, the actuary 

references economic indicators to ensure the assumptions remain appropriate for the prevailing economic 

environment in each projection. The economic indicators the actuary uses are: future inflation expectations and 

the prevailing risk free rate of return (the yield on long term UK government bonds is used as a proxy for this 

rate). 

 

 

 

Cash

Index 

Linked 

Gilts 

(medium)

Fixed 

Interest 

Gilts 

(medium) UK Equity

Overseas 

Equity Property

A rated 

corporate 

bonds 

(medium)

RPI 

inflation 

expectation

17 year 

real govt 

bond yield

17 year 

govt 

bond 

yield

16th %'ile -0.4% -2.3% -2.9% -4.1% -4.1% -3.5% -2.7% 1.9% -2.5% 0.8%

50th %'ile 0.7% 0.5% 0.3% 4.0% 4.1% 2.4% 0.8% 3.3% -1.7% 2.1%
84th %'ile 2.0% 3.3% 3.4% 12.7% 12.5% 8.8% 4.0% 4.9% -0.8% 3.6%

16th %'ile -0.2% -1.8% -1.3% -1.5% -1.4% -1.5% -0.9% 1.9% -2.0% 1.2%

50th %'ile 1.3% 0.0% 0.2% 4.6% 4.7% 3.1% 0.8% 3.3% -0.8% 2.8%
84th %'ile 2.9% 1.9% 1.7% 10.9% 10.8% 7.8% 2.5% 4.9% 0.4% 4.8%

16th %'ile 0.7% -1.1% 0.1% 1.2% 1.3% 0.6% 0.7% 2.0% -0.7% 2.2%

50th %'ile 2.4% 0.3% 1.0% 5.7% 5.8% 4.3% 1.9% 3.2% 0.8% 4.0%
84th %'ile 4.5% 2.0% 2.0% 10.3% 10.4% 8.1% 3.0% 4.7% 2.2% 6.3%

Volatility (Disp) 

(1 yr) 1% 7% 10% 17% 17% 14% 11% 1%

2
0

y
e
a
rs

Annualised total returns

5

y
e
a
rs

1
0

y
e
a
rs

78



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 039 

 

November  2019  

The Fund has three funding bases which will apply to different employers depending on their type. Each funding 

basis has a different assumption for future investment returns when determining the employer’s funding target.  

Funding basis Ongoing participation 

basis 

Contractor exit basis Low risk exit basis 

Employer type All employers except 

Transferee Admission 

Bodies and closed 

Community Admission 

Bodies 

Transferee Admission 

Bodies 

Community Admission 

Bodies that are closed to 

new entrants 

Investment return 

assumption underlying 

the employer’s funding 

target (at the end of its 

time horizon) 

 

Long term government 

bond yields plus an asset 

outperformance 

assumption (AOA) of 

1.8% p.a.  

Long term government 

bond yields plus an AOA 

equal to the AOA used to 

allocate assets to the 

employer on joining the 

Fund 

Long term government 

bond yields with no 

allowance for 

outperformance on the 

Fund’s assets 

 

E4 What other assumptions apply? 

The following assumptions are those of the most significance used in both the projection of the assets, benefits 

and cashflows and in the funding target. 

a) Salary growth 

After discussion with Fund officers, the salary increase assumption at the 2019 valuation has been set to be a 

blended rate combined of: 

1. 2.5% p.a. until 31 March 2020, followed by 

2. CPI plus 0.5% p.a. thereafter.   

This gives a single “blended” assumption of CPI plus 0.5%. This is a change from the previous valuation, which 

assumed RPI p.a. The change has led to a reduction in the funding target (all other things being equal). 

b) Pension increases 

Since 2011 the consumer prices index (CPI), rather than RPI, has been the basis for increases to public sector 

pensions in deferment and in payment.  Note that the basis of such increases is set by the Government, and is 

not under the control of the Fund or any employers. 

  At this valuation, we have continued to assume that CPI is 1.0% p.a. lower than RPI.  (Note that the reduction 

is applied in a geometric, not arithmetic, basis). 

c) Life expectancy 

The demographic assumptions are intended to be best estimates of future experience in the Fund based on 

past experience of LGPS funds which participate in Club Vita, the longevity analytics service used by the Fund, 

and endorsed by the actuary.   

The longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke set of “VitaCurves”, 

produced by the Club Vita’s detailed analysis, which are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the 

Fund.  These curves are based on the data provided by the Fund for the purposes of this valuation.  

79



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 040 

 

November  2019  

Allowance has been made in the ongoing valuation basis for future improvements in line with 2018 version of 

the Continuous Mortality Investigation model published by the Actuarial Profession and a 1.25% per annum 

minimum underpin to future reductions in mortality rates.  This updated allowance for future improvements will 

generally result in lower life expectancy assumptions and hence a reduced funding target (all other things being 

equal). 

The approach taken is considered reasonable in light of the long term nature of the Fund and the assumed level 

of security underpinning members’ benefits 

d) General 

The same financial assumptions are adopted for most  employers (on the ongoing participation basis identified 

above), in deriving the funding target  and the Primary and Secondary rates;  as described in (3.3), these 

calculated figures are translated in different ways into employer contributions, depending on the employer’s 

circumstances. 

The demographic assumptions, in particular the life expectancy assumption, in effect vary by type of member 

and so reflect the different membership profiles of employers. 

  

80



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 041 

 

November  2019  

Appendix F – Glossary 

Funding basis The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the future, to 

calculate the value of the funding target at the end of the employer’s time horizon .  

The main assumptions will relate to the level of future investment returns, salary 

growth, pension increases and longevity.  More prudent assumptions will give a 

higher funding target , whereas more optimistic assumptions will give a lower 

funding target.  

Administering 

Authority 

The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect the Fund’s 

“trustees”. 

Admission Bodies Employers which voluntarily participate in the Fund, so that their employees and ex-

employees are members.  There will be an Admission Agreement setting out the 

employer’s obligations.  For more details (see 2.3). 

  

Covenant The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a 

greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A 

weaker covenant means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties 

meeting its pension obligations in full over the longer term. 

  

  

Designating 

Employer 

Employers such as town and parish councils that are able to participate in the LGPS 

via resolution.  These employers can designate which of their employees are 

eligible to join the Fund. 

  

Employer An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used to employ) 

members of the Fund.  Normally the assets and funding target values for each 

employer are individually tracked, together with its Primary contribution rate  at 

each valuation.  

  

  

Gilt A UK Government bond, i.e. a promise by the Government to pay interest and 

capital as per the terms of that particular gilt, in return for an initial payment of 

capital by the purchaser. Gilts can be “fixed interest”, where the interest payments 

are level throughout the gilt’s term, or “index-linked” where the interest payments 

vary each year in line with a specified index (usually RPI). Gilts can be bought as 

assets by the Fund, but are also used in funding as an objective measure of a risk-

free rate of return. 

Guarantee / A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any pension 

81



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 042 

 

November  2019  

guarantor obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean, 

for instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong 

as its guarantor’s. 

Letting employer An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and workforce to 

another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor will pay towards the LGPS 

benefits accrued by the transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay 

for these benefits will revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually 

be a local authority, but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an 

Academy. 

  

LGPS The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put 

in place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government.  These 

Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’ 

contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements.  The 

LGPS is divided into 100 Funds which map the UK.  Each LGPS Fund is 

autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding investment 

strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.  

Maturity A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where 

the members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the 

investment time horizon is shorter.  This has implications for investment strategy 

and, consequently, funding strategy.  

Members The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the 

Fund.  They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (ex-

employees who have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now 

retired, and dependants of deceased ex-employees).  

  

  

Primary 

contribution rate 

The employer contribution rate required to pay for ongoing accrual of active 

members’ benefits (including an allowance for administrative expenses). See 

Appendix D for further details. 

Profile The profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various measurements 

of that employer’s members, ie current and former employees. This includes: the 

proportions which are active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each 

category; the varying salary or pension levels; the lengths of service of active 

members vs their salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be 

measured for its maturity also. 

Rates and 

Adjustments 

Certificate 

A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be updated at 

the conclusion of the formal valuation. This is completed by the actuary and 

confirms the contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool of employers) in the 

Fund for the period until the next valuation is completed. 

82



LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND 043 

 

November  2019  

Scheduled Bodies  Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose employees 

must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund.  These include Councils, 

colleges, universities, academies, police and fire authorities etc, other than 

employees who have entitlement to a different public sector pension scheme (e.g. 

teachers, police and fire officers, university lecturers).  

Secondary 

contribution rate 

The difference between the employer’s actual and Primary contribution rates. 

See Appendix D for further details.  

  

Stabilisation Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions from one year to 

the next.  This is very broadly required by the LGPS Regulations, but in practice is 

particularly employed for large stable employers in the Fund  

  

Valuation A risk management exercise to review the Primary and Secondary contribution 

rates, and other statutory information for a Fund, and usually individual employers 

too.   

 

83



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8th NOVEMBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
SUMMARY VALUATION OF PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS AND 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF INDIVIDUAL MANAGERS 
 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1.   The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee, an update on the 

investment markets and how individual asset classes are performing, a summary 
valuation of the Fund's investments at 31st September 2019 (attached as an 
appendix to this report), together with figures showing the performance of 
individual managers and a funding position from the funds actuary.   

 
Market Outlook and Performance  
 
2.   An update on asset classes and market performance is provided by LGPS Central 

in appendix B.  LGPS Central continue to prefer Growth and Income assets over 
Stabilising assets.  Within Equities Emerging Markets and Asia Pacific have been 
upgraded but remain underweight, but UK equities have been moved to an 
overweight after the underperformance over the last 9 months.  Gilts and Index 
linked remain underweight and US bonds moved to an overweight from neutral. 
Within factors the only change was that the Quality/ESG factor has moved from 
underweight to neutral.  Infrastructure and Emerging Market debt remain our 
favoured investments in Income Assets.   
   

3.   An extract of Portfolio Evaluation’s view on the market outlook is stated below.  
The full report is included within the appendix. 

 
It would appear that markets are set to remain in a late market cycle phase for a 
while given the economic growth and it is not uncommon for markets to produce 
positive returns in this phase; however, this can be more volatile.  Looking 
forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic growth 
and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly vulnerable.  
Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 
2021 as the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive central 
bank actions and benign inflation.  However, many market commentators are 
discussing more defensive strategies going forwards, and many are also viewing 
emerging markets positively.  Commentators are also investing more in bonds to 
secure income and as a defensive move. There are some risks in the returns that 
can be achieved, these include Trade Wars remain on going between the US, 
China and to some degree Europe, we are also in the position where central 
banks may not be able to continue lowering interest rates much more. We are also 
seeing increased political risk. 
 

 

85 Agenda Item 7



Overall Investment Performance 
 
4. A comprehensive performance analysis over the quarter, year and 3 year period to 

30th September 2019 is provided in Appendix A.  PE collate information directly 
from managers and calculate performance, which will provide an independent 
check of valuations and allow greater reporting flexibility. Introduction of this 
reporting will enhance the control and assurance for the Fund. Current 
performance reporting is limited to 3 years, however work is ongoing to provide 
longer history. 

 
5. It is important to note that the valuations produced can be different to those 

provided by managers or included in the Statement of Accounts. For example, 
timing differences of use of different accounting methodologies.  The differences 
are not expected to be material in the context of the messages being conveyed by 
the report. 

 
6. For the period ending 30th September 2019 the Fund delivered an investment 

return of 3.4% for the quarter, 6.6% over the last 12 months and 8.2% annualised 
over the 3 year period. 
 

7. The Fund’s current asset allocation compared to the investment strategy is shown 
in the table below: 

  

  Weighting Benchmark Difference 

Equities 51.0% 48.0% 3.0% 

Real Income Fund 24.9% 26.5% -1.6% 

Alternatives 23.6% 25.5% -1.9% 

Cash 0.5% 0.0% 0.5% 

  100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
The Fund’s actual allocation varies over time due to different market movements 
across the various asset types.  However, the allocation remains broadly in-line with 
the strategy.  At the end of the quarter, overweight positions in equities (+3.0%) are 
offset by underweight positions in real Income fund assets (-1.6%) and Alternatives 
(-1.9%).  The largest underweight allocation within alternatives has started to be 
addressed with a £100m commitment to private debt which was agreed at the 
October Investment Sub Committee.  Our Equity allocations can be adjusted quickly 
via liquid passive holdings, but the underweight positions in property and 
infrastructure can take longer.  A detailed breakdown of the asset allocation is 
available in Appendix A. 
 

8. There were no significant changes during the quarter.  In the quarter ending June 
2019 there was a transfer of £333.2m of global active equities to the LGPS Central 
Global Equity Fund. 

 
9. The following table provides the performance of the Fund and the asset classes 

over short and longer-term periods, compared to their respective benchmarks.  
 

 
 
 

 
 

86



  3 Months % 1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 
  

Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 4.0 2.1 6.6 5.0 11.1 10.6 
Income Assets 3.1 3.0 9.0 8.0 7.4 

 
 
 

5.9 
Alternative 2.2 1.4 5.7 5.7 4.3 4.6 
TOTAL FUND 3.4 2.2 6.6 6.2 8.2 7.5 

 

10. The investment performance of the individual managers for the year to 30th 
September 2019 is set out in appendix A.  It is worth noting the following 
performance of certain managers: 

 Adams Street – Private Equity, 3.8% excess return over benchmark. The 
benchmark of listed markets can be misleading, in the short-tem, due to the 
less frequent valuations of private equity assets. As a riskier asset class they 
have greater potential volatility.  The 3-year return is more representative and 
exceeds benchmark by 0.6%. 

 
 IFM - global infrastructure, shows 11.2%+ return over benchmark over the last 12 

months.  Over the 3 year (annualised) period the excess returns over benchmark is 
12.0%. 

 
Pictet – Targeted Return, (4.1%) below benchmark returns over the last 12 months.  
The product is one of three targeted return funds which, when aggregated give a 
(1.0%) return below benchmark.  We have, via LGPS Central completed a quarterly 
review of Pictet performance on the 10th October 2019.  Of note was the increase in 
cash holdings over the quarter, from 5% to 15% of total assets which is a drag to 
performance and achievement of benchmark given current interest rates.  Equity 
exposure has been reduced from 37% to 31% over the quarter, fixed income has 
decreased from 50% to 42% and alternatives / gold has increased from 8% to 11%. 

 
 Christofferson Robb & Company –Other Opportunities - 12.7% excess return 

over benchmark. The other opportunities allocation targets a higher return, at a 
higher level of risk. The investments in the opportunities area should be looked at 
as a collective, as not all will perform to target.  The Opportunities class has in total 
achieved +4.2% over benchmark in the last 12 months.  

 
 
Funding Update 

11. The funding level is the ratio of the Fund’s assets compared to the liabilities. At the 
last formal actuarial valuation in March 2016, the funding level on an ongoing basis 
was 76%.  Based on market movements up to 31st March 2019, the Actuary 
estimates that the funding level has increased to 89%.  The report by the Actuary is 
attached as an appendix under the Pension Fund Valuation report elsewhere on 
the agenda. 

 
Recommendation 

12. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
 

87



 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Summary Valuation of Funds performance. 
 
Appendix B: Report of LGPS Central Limited – Strategic Asset Allocation (Market outlook 
and Performance).  
  
Appendix C: Funding Update from the Fund Actuary Hymans Robertson (This is appended 
under the Pension Fund Valuation report. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
13.      None. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
 

88



Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis  

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund  Period ending 30th September 2019

Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

89



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q3 2019 (Sterling) 

 
After a positive first quarter and year most markets continued with positive returns, albeit at a more subdued level, in the quarter ended September 2019. The markets 
continue upwards, even after a small correction in August that was followed by a recovery in September despite lower economic growth and lower corporate earnings 
growth. Some of this could be due to continued global economic growth (albeit slower) supported by dovish central bank policy, continuing low inflation and positive 
consumer demand (it should be noted that there is in the developed world a lower supply of available workers); however the markets appear to be going from panic 
mode to complacency when reviewing risk. The positive global outlook this quarter saw growth stocks continue to outperform value but the difference between the 
two was less than in periods last year. 
 
It would appear that markets are set to remain in a late market cycle phase for a while given the economic growth and it is not uncommon for markets to produce 
positive returns in this phase; however this can be more volatile. Looking forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic growth and 
corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly vulnerable. Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 2021 as 
the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive central bank actions and benign inflation. However many market commentators are discussing more 
defensive strategies going forwards, and many are also viewing emerging markets positively. Commentators are also investing more in bonds to secure income and as 
a defensive move. There are some risks in the returns that can be achieved , these include Trade Wars remain on going between the US, China and to some degree 
Europe, we are also in the position where central banks may not be able to continue lowering interest rates much more. We are also seeing increased political risk. 
 

 

1

90



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

 
Within the UK the obsession and lack of resolution with Brexit has continued through yet another quarter. This continues to lower the economic growth outlook and 
reduce the willingness of both companies and investment managers to invest in the UK. The ‘high street’ sector continues to struggle with high costs and lower revenues 
whilst business is still reviewing how to proceed in the future. Despite posting significant equity market gains the concerns about the future outlook helps to explain the 
relatively lack lustre performance of UK stockmarkets when compared to many others.  
 

 
 
 
Market volatility has continued to increase as a result of the outlook and in particular the risk levels between asset classes has also increased as diversification benefits 
reduce. Many commentators expect this to continue throughout the remainder of this year. 
 
For further information 
If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please contact Nick Kent or 
Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, comments and ideas 

contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

2

91

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.6bn

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending September 2019

1.1

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

2.2 5.4 6.2 7.5

Excess Return Analysis (%)

9.7

QTR

10.9

0.4 0.6

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return 3.4 6.7 6.6 8.2

Benchmark Return

Excess Return 1.2 1.3

Active Risk 1.1 1.5 1.6

Portfolio Risk 6.5 4.8 5.5

Benchmark Risk 6.2 4.9 5.2

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

2.4%

4.8%

16.7%

11.9%

40.5%

7.1% 7.1%

9.5%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

50.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

92



Market Value: 4.6bn

#

0.0

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total Inflation 

Linked

0.0

0.0

1.5

0.7

3.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9 0.2

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

0.2

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

-0.1

0.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

100.0

100.0 11.4

Stock Selection

100.0

100.0

2.7

1.30.0 0.0

0.6

4.8

4.1

15.5

7.7

3.5

4.2

3.1

-0.7

0.3

1.0

9.2

0.0

-0.1

10.0

26.5

0.0

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

2.2

100.0

Total Real 

Income

1.3 0.8

3.0

100.0 24.7

1.3

-0.1

0.2

2.4

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

1.8

Benchmark Return 2.5

1.2

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

0.2

Total Fund 

(Gross)

2.1

Excess Return

100.0

3.4 4.03.5

2.2

44.0 10.0

0.0

-0.2

44.7100.0

99.3

0.2

4.0

45.6

98.6 98.6

2.6

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

0.0

44.0

Excess Return 1.2

99.3

0.0

44.8

44.0

46.1

44.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.2

16.5

16.5

4.6

9.0

26.5

24.9 15.94.9

4.0

0.3

-0.1

0.0

25.5

-0.1

10.0

10.0

0.2

0.0

11.4

0.6

1.7

2.2

12.3

-1.0

0.0

25.5

0.3

24.4

23.6

0.0

11.8

0.0

3.4

Total Other 

Opportunities

2.2

8.6

Total 

Targeted 

Return

3.4

1.2

4.1

0.0

Total 

Alternatives

2.2

1.4

0.9

8.4

Millennium 

Currency

-0.7

-0.7

Cash

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.7

0.0

0.5

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.00.0

0.0

4.1

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th September 2019

100.0

100.0

0.3

0.0

0.4

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

0.3

2.8

2.5

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweight exposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset 
class/manager has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

4

93



Market Value: 4.6bn

2.4

2.6

44.8

0.0

1.7

2.6

-0.1

13.0

0.0

-0.1

5.0

5.0

0.0

0.0

7.2

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Equity Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th September 2019

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

0.0

4.9

4.9

0.2

2.8

7.232.7

32.0

0.0

0.0 0.20.9

2.5

0.0

13.0

0.0 0.0

4.0

0.0

4.1

5.5

4.0

2.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

0.0

4.00.0

12.7

13.0

0.0 0.0

0.02.6

2.5

3.9

1.3

3.5

2.2

0.0

7.0

0.8

44.0

44.044.0

1.3

Benchmark Start

Benchmark Return

2.9

44.0

44.7

Asset Allocation 0.0

Stock Selection 1.3

0.0

Excess Return

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

1.3

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Excess Return

100.0

Portfolio Return

4.6

4.0

0.0

1.5-1.0

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

4.9

1.9

1.4

6.6

6.6

5.6

2.6

1.4

1.3

1.6

4.2

7.7

Total 

Private 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

0.0

3.5

L&G - EMM 

Equity

L&G Pacific 

ex Japan 

Equity

Transition 

Fund

Delaware 

EMM

0.0

0.0

-0.6

32.6

32.0 7.0

-1.7

-1.6

0.30.0

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

4.0

2.1

0.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

45.6

0.0

Total Fund 

(Gross)

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

Total 

Passive 

Equity

0.4

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

-0.2

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

0.0

2.5

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

24.4

Total Real 

Income

0.2

3.1

3.0

24.7

2.2

24.91.8

2.0

2.0

0.2

26.5

26.5

0.0

0.0

0.00.9

Millennium 

Currency

-0.7

-0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

46.1

1.8

Cash 

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.7

23.6 0.5

Total 

Alternative

s

0.9

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

25.5

25.5

0.2

8.1

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

98.5

98.6

0.2

0.7

0.1

8.0

LGPSC - 

EMM

-0.5

-3.7

-3.2

-0.2

1.0

1.1

0.0

0.0

-0.1

LGPSC - 

Global

-0.9

2.6

3.5

8.1

8.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

5

94



Market Value: 4.6bn

1.2

1.5-1.2

2.1

Kames 

Capital II

-1.0

KKR Infra

0.6

1.2

0.0

3.1

JPM Infra

0.0

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

2.6

2.1

IFM Infra

1.0

-0.4

4.6

4.5

0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Real Income Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th September 2019

3.1

3.0

3.0

0.0

1.9

0.0

1.2

-1.2

1.1

1.1

4.1

0.0

0.6

15.5

1.2

7.5

3.0

1.8

4.8

4.1

0.1 0.1

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

7.5

15.9

1.5

2.2 0.6

0.5

0.0

1.0

0.0

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.00.1 0.10.0

16.50.5

Excess Return

0.0

2.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.7

0.0

1.0

Excess Return 1.3

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

Asset Allocation 0.0

Stock Selection 1.3

Total 

Property

0.3

1.0

-0.7

9.2

0.0

100.0

3.5

2.2

10.0

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

1.3

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

0.0

1.0

-1.0

0.7

Kames 

Capital IL

-1.0

2.2

Aviva

0.6

0.7

0.8

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

7.9

7.8

0.2

7.4

7.7

Kames 

Capital 

1.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

0.0

1.0

1.1

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

9.0

10.0

-1.0

0.0

Total Real 

Income

0.2

3.1

-0.1

0.8

0.0-0.1

3.0

24.7

0.0

0.00.0

5.0

0.0

45.6

46.1

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

1.5

1.5

0.0

0.9

0.0

16.5

0.0

3.0

3.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

7.7

3.5

4.6

4.0

4.044.0

Total 

Equity

1.8

4.0

Total 

Private 

Equity

4.2

23.64.9

2.1

25.5

25.5

0.20.2

Total 

Alternativ

es

0.9

2.2

1.4

24.4

0.0

0.20.2

44.0

24.9

26.5

26.5

0.0

0.0

1.0

5.0

0.0

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.7

-0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

Cash 

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.7

0.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

6

95



Market Value: 4.6bn

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Alternative Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th September 2019

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.2

5.3

5.2

7.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

JPM 

Global 

Credit

-1.2

0.0

1.2

0.6

0.6

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

-0.2

1.0

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.0

0.0

3.4

4.1

4.1

0.0

0.0

Aberdeen 

Standard

-0.8

1.8

Infracapital

1.2

1.8

-0.6

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

6.3

1.8

4.4

1.2

1.2

0.0

1.0

1.0

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

3.4

1.2

Total 

Targeted 

Return

1.2

3.4

12.3 3.1

3.2

11.4

3.5

2.2

100.0

7.1

2.2 5.9

11.8

25.5 44.0 4.0 26.5

Excess Return 1.3

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0 11.4 3.4

Asset Allocation 0.0

Portfolio End

Stock Selection

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start

Excess Return 1.3

100.0

Portfolio Start

4.4

0.3 0.2

0.0 0.0

1.3

0.3 0.2

Pictet

0.7

1.2

-0.4

3.4

Ruffer

3.3

1.2

2.1

5.8

0.0

4.0

4.0

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.04.2

4.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

0.6

1.7

-1.0

8.6

EnTrust 

Permal

8.0

1.2

6.8

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.68.4

10.0

10.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.5

2.5

-0.1

0.0

0.5

0.5

7.0

0.5

0.0

0.7

2.2

1.5

3.4

-2.6

0.2

0.2

0.4

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

-0.1

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

0.2

3.1

-3.0

2.7

0.0

2.1

2.1

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

M&G DOF

-1.2

0.0

1.2

1.7

1.7

Cash 

0.4

0.6

0.2

0.7

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.7

-0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

1.8

4.0

2.1

45.6

46.1

44.0

0.8

0.0

0.9

Total 

Private 

Equity

4.2

7.7

3.5

4.6

4.9

0.0

0.2

Total Real 

Income

0.2

3.1

3.0

24.7

24.9

Total 

Alternativ

es

0.9

2.2

1.4

24.4

23.6

25.5

0.2

0.0

0.2

26.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.0

0.2

-4.0

0.0

4.0

8.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

-0.7

0.0

0.7

1.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

7

96



Market Value: 4.6bn

#

-0.5

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-0.6

5.9

6.5

99.3

100.0

100.0

-0.6

98.6

3.8 1.1

Total Fund 

(Net)

Total Fund 

(Gross)
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportunitie

s

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.4 0.8 1.6 -0.8 2.0 0.0 -1.0 -0.4 4.2 -2.0 0.7

Portfolio Return 6.6 7.0 6.6 5.1 11.6 9.0 2.7 12.9 5.7 3.7 6.9 10.3 -2.0 1.5

6.2 6.2 5.0 5.9 7.8 8.0 3.2 10.9 5.7 4.7 7.3 6.0 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 47.6 46.9 4.5 23.7 9.2 14.6 23.5 12.1 8.3 3.1

8.4 3.4 0.0

0.0 0.7

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 46.1 44.7

24.5 10.0

15.9 23.6 11.84.9 24.9 9.0

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return 0.4 0.8 0.4 -0.5 0.2

26.5

-0.3

0.0

-0.1

4.1

0.3

11.4 10.0

-0.1

10.0

0.0 0.0

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1

0.2 -0.1 0.3

0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

-0.1

0.2

0.1 0.0 0.0

Stock Selection 0.0 0.9 0.7 -0.3

99.3

98.6

0.2 0.0 0.0-0.1 0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.1

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th September 2019

100.0

100.0

-0.2

-0.1

-0.1

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.2

6.3

6.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

%%

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

%%%% %%

8

97



Market Value: 4.6bn

0.0

LGPSC - 

EMM

-0.5

-3.7

-3.2

0.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Equity Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Alternativ

es

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwor

t Benson 

- Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delaware 

EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

-0.7-4.3

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total 

Real 

Income

Cash 

3.8 1.1 0.0

Transitio

n Fund

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 1.6 -0.8 0.1 0.6 0.0

9.1 0.3

100.30.0 -0.2 2.7 -1.3

6.0

1.7

7.0

-2.0 0.7

Portfolio Return 7.0 6.6 5.1 5.7 3.3

0.0

0.3

101.0 11.6 9.0 5.74.4 3.5 6.8 -4.5 -1.4

11.3

-2.0 1.5

Benchmark Return 6.2 5.0 5.9 5.6 2.7 9.1 0.7 7.8 8.0 5.74.4 3.7 4.1 -3.1 -3.1 6.7 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 47.6 46.9 34.6 7.6 13.4

13.0

4.1 0.7 4.5 23.72.9 5.8 2.8 2.0

Portfolio End 100.0 46.1 44.7 32.7 7.2 0.08.1

23.5 0.0 0.73.30.0

3.9

4.8

0.0

7.5 13.2

0.0 1.4 4.9 24.92.6 5.5 2.6 1.8

3.30.0

23.6 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 34.0

13.0

4.0 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 2.0 4.7

8.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 44.0 32.0 7.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 0.4 -0.5 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1-0.3

Asset Allocation -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.00.0

0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.00.0 -0.1 0.9 0.2

0.1

0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Stock Selection 0.9 0.7 -0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0-0.1 0.0 -0.1 1.0 0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.2

1.0

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

9

98



Market Value: 4.6bn

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Real Income Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II
JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva
Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return 0.8 1.1 -0.5 8.7 -2.8 -0.7 -1.2 -0.1 2.0 -0.4 11.2 3.5 -2.3 3.8 1.6 3.8 0.0 -2.0 0.7

Portfolio Return 7.0 9.0 2.7 11.9 0.4 2.6 2.0 3.1 12.9 18.1 15.9 8.2 2.4 8.5 6.6 11.6 5.7 -2.0 1.5

Benchmark Return 6.2 8.0 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 10.9 18.4 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 5.0 7.8 5.7 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 23.7 9.2 0.6 2.3 4.7 0.6 0.9 14.6 6.8 1.7 1.0 2.2 2.8 47.6 4.5 23.5 0.0 0.7

Portfolio End 100.0 24.9 9.0 0.7 2.2 4.5 0.6 1.0 15.9 7.7 1.9 1.1 2.1 3.1 46.1 4.9 23.6 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.7 2.5 5.1 0.7 0.9 14.5 7.5 1.7 1.1 2.3 2.0 46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8 2.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5 1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 0.2 -0.1 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.4 0.2 -0.10.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 -0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0

Asset Allocation -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0

-0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Stock Selection 0.9 0.2 -0.1 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0

0.0 0.00.0 0.0-0.1 0.0

0.00.0 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.0 0.00.0 0.0

-6.0

0.0

6.0

12.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

10

99



Market Value: 4.6bn

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Alternative Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 0.8 0.0 -1.0 3.6 -1.2 -4.1 -1.7 -0.4 -2.1 -1.1 -0.1 4.2 -0.2 12.7 4.8 -0.2 1.6 3.8 1.1 -2.0 0.7

Portfolio Return 7.0 5.7 3.7 8.4 3.5 0.7 3.1 6.9 12.9 3.7 4.6 10.3 4.5 20.2 12.2 7.3 6.6 11.6 9.0 -2.0 1.5

Benchmark Return 6.2 5.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 7.3 15.0 4.7 4.7 6.0 4.7 7.5 7.5 7.5 5.0 7.8 8.0 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 23.5 12.1 3.2 6.0 2.8 0.0 8.3 2.5 0.6 5.2 3.1 1.7 1.1 0.2 0.1 47.6 4.5 23.7 0.0 0.7

Portfolio End 100.0 23.6 11.8 3.2 4.4 4.2 0.0 8.4 2.6 0.6 5.2 3.4 1.7 1.2 0.3 0.2 46.1 4.9 24.9 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.5 6.5 3.1 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.8 6.7 2.5 1.4 0.9 0.2 0.1 46.0 4.0 24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1 2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.0 26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 0.8 -0.1 -0.3 0.1 -0.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0

Asset Allocation -0.2 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Stock Selection 0.9 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0-0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.00.0 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0

-7.0

0.0

7.0

14.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

11

100



Market Value: 4.6bn

#

1.9

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-0.8

25.1

25.9

99.0

100.0

100.0

-0.8

98.6

3.3 5.3

Total Fund 

Net

Total Fund 

Gross
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportuniti

es

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 2.2 3.7 1.7 -1.3 7.2 -0.5 -6.1 -1.0 25.8 -1.3 0.4

Portfolio Return 26.5 28.0 37.1 33.5 44.5 23.9 27.1 21.0 14.0 8.1 14.1 39.9 -1.3 1.9

24.3 24.3 35.4 34.9 41.2 18.6 25.2 13.8 14.5 14.2 15.1 14.2 0.0 1.6

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 50.6 49.6 3.8 20.0 8.6 11.5 22.8 12.9 6.5 3.5

8.4 3.4 0.0

0.0 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 46.1 44.7

24.5 10.0

15.9 23.6 11.84.9 24.9 9.0

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return 2.2 3.7 2.6 -0.4 0.2

26.5

-1.0

0.2

0.2

4.1

0.9

11.4 10.0

-0.1

10.0

0.0 -0.6

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.4 -0.4 0.0

1.4 0.1 1.3

0.2

0.3 -0.1 0.4 0.30.0

0.1

0.8

0.1 0.0 -0.6

Stock Selection 0.0 4.1 3.0 -0.4

99.0

98.6

1.1 0.0 0.00.2 0.9 -0.2 -0.9 -0.1

100.0

100.0

0.7

0.0

0.7

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis (Unannualised)

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

0.7

26.6

25.9

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-12.0

0.0

12.0

24.0

%%

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

%%%% %%

12

101



Market Value: 4.6bn

0.0

LGPSC - 

EMM

-0.5

-3.7

-3.2

0.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis (Unannualised) - Equity Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Alternativ

es

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwort 

Benson - 

Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delaware 

EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

4.5-4.2

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income
Cash 

3.3 5.3 -0.5

Transition 

Fund

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 3.7 1.7 -1.3 0.5 0.2 -0.1

47.1 27.3

24.92.5 -0.4 -0.5 -7.1

34.5

-1.9

7.0

-1.3 0.4

Portfolio Return 28.0 37.1 33.5 34.7 21.9

0.3

27.4

26.5 44.5 23.9 14.032.3 25.8 26.4 19.8 25.0

11.3

-1.3 1.9

Benchmark Return 24.3 35.4 34.9 34.3 21.7 46.8 1.6 41.2 18.6 14.529.8 26.2 26.9 26.9 26.9 30.0 0.0 1.6

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 50.6 49.6 37.8 8.2 14.6

13.0

3.9 1.0 3.8 20.03.2 6.2 3.2 2.3

Portfolio End 100.0 46.1 44.7 32.7 7.2 0.08.1

22.8 0.0 2.73.40.0

3.9

4.6

0.0

7.5 13.2

0.0 1.4 4.9 24.92.6 5.5 2.6 1.8

3.40.0

23.6 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 34.3

13.0

3.7 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 2.3 4.6

8.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 44.0 32.0 7.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.7 2.6 -0.4 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3-0.4

Asset Allocation -0.4 -0.4 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.00.0

1.4 0.1 0.0 -0.6-0.1 0.1 3.0 0.2

0.3

0.0 0.0 -0.4 0.00.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.3

0.3 0.3 0.0 -0.6

Stock Selection 4.1 3.0 -0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0-0.3 -0.1 0.1 3.4 0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.2

1.0

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

-8.0

-4.0

0.0

4.0

8.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

13

102



Market Value: 4.6bn

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis (Unannualised) - Real Income Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II
JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva
Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return 3.7 5.3 1.9 -2.1 -4.7 6.3 0.7 -2.3 7.2 2.3 44.2 26.4 -4.6 -4.5 1.7 3.3 -0.5 -1.3 0.4

Portfolio Return 28.0 23.9 27.1 23.0 20.5 31.4 25.9 21.2 21.0 16.5 58.3 40.5 9.6 9.7 37.1 44.5 14.0 -1.3 1.9

Benchmark Return 24.3 18.6 25.2 25.2 25.2 25.2 25.2 23.5 13.8 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 35.4 41.2 14.5 0.0 1.6

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 20.0 8.6 0.6 2.7 4.6 0.7 0.0 11.5 5.0 1.4 1.1 1.9 2.1 50.6 3.8 22.8 0.0 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 24.9 9.0 0.7 2.2 4.5 0.6 1.0 15.9 7.7 1.9 1.1 2.1 3.1 46.1 4.9 23.6 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.7 3.1 5.4 0.8 0.0 14.5 7.5 1.6 1.2 2.2 2.0 46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8 2.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5 1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.7 1.4 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 2.6 0.2 0.10.2 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.3 0.6 0.0 -0.6

Asset Allocation -0.4 0.3 -0.1 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.0

-0.1 0.3

0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.40.0 0.0 0.0 0.4

Stock Selection 4.1 1.1 0.2 0.0 0.9 0.1 0.6 0.3

0.0 -0.60.0 0.30.2 0.0

0.0-0.1 -0.1 3.0 0.2 -0.2 0.00.0 0.0

-8.0

-4.0

0.0

4.0

8.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

14

103



Market Value: 4.6bn

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis (Unannualised) - Alternative Assets

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th September 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 3.7 -0.5 -6.1 -10.4 -2.8 -5.7 -46.5 -1.0 1.7 -5.2 -1.7 25.8 11.8 24.9 16.7 5.9 1.7 3.3 5.3 -1.3 0.4

Portfolio Return 28.0 14.0 8.1 3.8 11.4 8.5 -32.3 14.1 18.7 9.0 12.5 39.9 26.0 33.8 25.7 14.2 37.1 44.5 23.9 -1.3 1.9

Benchmark Return 24.3 14.5 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 15.1 17.0 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 9.0 9.0 8.3 35.4 41.2 18.6 0.0 1.6

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 22.8 12.9 3.7 6.6 2.6 0.0 6.5 2.8 0.7 3.0 3.5 3.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.6 3.8 20.0 0.0 2.7

Portfolio End 100.0 23.6 11.8 3.2 4.4 4.2 0.0 8.4 2.6 0.6 5.2 3.4 1.7 1.2 0.3 0.2 46.1 4.9 24.9 0.0 0.5

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.7 6.6 2.6 0.0 10.0 2.5 1.5 6.0 2.5 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 46.0 4.0 24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0 0.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1 2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.0 26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.7 0.1 -1.0 -0.4 -0.4 -0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.2 1.4 0.0 -0.6

Asset Allocation -0.4 0.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.4 0.0 0.3 0.0 -0.6

Stock Selection 4.1 -0.2 -0.9 -0.4 0.0-0.2 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 0.1 0.0 3.0 0.2 1.1 0.0 0.0-0.1 0.8 0.4 0.3 0.0

-24.0

-12.0

0.0

12.0

24.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

-2.1

0.0

2.1

4.2

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

15

104



Market Value: 4.6bn

2,106.9

2,043.4

1,493.8

327.0

594.8

120.5

250.8

117.6

83.2

370.2

179.4

0.0

0.0

63.6

223.9

1,136.4

410.6

30.2

99.8

206.6

26.2

47.9

725.7

350.5

87.9

49.9

95.2

142.1

1,077.7

537.9

147.7

199.6

190.3

0.4

383.7

118.8

28.0

236.9

156.0

77.4

54.6

16.0

8.1

-1.7

23.3

4,503.0

4,566.6

4,503.0

4,566.6

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

7.00% FTSE All Share

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged

-0.5-3.7 -3.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0-0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0LGPS Central Emerging Market Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Emerging Market Index Jul-19 3.9 -3.7 -3.2

32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked

6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged

8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged

4.00% FTSE All World

0.710.8 10.1-0.6 7.8 8.0 -0.20.2 6.3 5.9 0.4 5.9 6.5Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.6 2.7 2.5

5.1 5.9 13.7 14.1 -0.4Client Weighted Index Mar-16 44.7 2.4 2.6 -0.2

10.9 9.7 1.10.66.6 6.2 0.4 8.2 7.5

11.3 9.7 1.6

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 3.4 2.2 1.2

7.0 6.2 0.8 8.6 7.5 1.1Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 3.5 2.2

3.8 5.14.5 -1.4

3.5 11.4

Mar-16 3.1 2.6 1.2 1.5

7.5 7.7 -0.2

1.1 -1.2 3.7 2.3 1.4 8.2

0.0-0.7 2.0 3.2 -1.2 7.7 7.8

6.8 7.7 -1.0

Kames Capital Property Fund IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16 0.6 0.0 0.9 1.6

3.1 3.2 -0.1

8.3 3.7

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16 1.0 0.0 -1.0 1.0 1.6 -0.6

12.110.9 2.0 6.5 4.4 2.1

7.6

15.9 4.8 4.1 0.6 6.9 5.7 1.2

0.6 0.5 0.11.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.10.6 0.2 0.4 0.8 0.4 0.5Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

Apr-18

None

0.5

5.2

3.4

Dec-13 0.0

LIBOR 1 MonthCash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Client Weighted Index

Millennium Currency Fund

Client Weighted Index

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

9.9

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Other Opportunities Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

3.5

4.4 0.0 0.7

0.3

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

6.3

-1.2

1.3

5.5 1.4 1.3 0.0 9.4 9.1

6.3

-0.1

9.7

6.86.8 0.1

13.6 0.1

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.1

8.1

10.3 0.110.432.7 2.9 2.8

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 46.1 4.0 2.1 8.5 5.0 1.6 10.6

5.6

14.211.1

-0.8

0.0

8.5

6.6

5.7

10.1 10.5

6.9

7.7 8.1 -0.4

0.0

6.0-1.74.7

4.1 4.1 -0.1

0.4

0.1

9.6

2.2

5.9

0.9

-1.01.0

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.6

0.0

Apr-07

1.2 -0.4

1.2Mar-16

2.1 -1.2

0.7

8.0

2.1

1.2 6.8

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index

0.0

Mar-13 -1.7 -1.6

6.6

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13

ERBMPF

3.3

2.1

8.4 0.0

1.6

0.60.2

9.1 9.1

4.8

9.7

11.7

BM

4.6

0.0 0.3

0.0

0.0

PF

13.70.0

8.4

Dec-13

0.5

-0.4

3.0

9.4

2.7

FTSE All World Index

7.2

1.8

2.6

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

LIBOR 1 Month

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

13.0

1.5

2.2 0.0 1.0

7.7 3.54.9

9.0 1.0

0.0

3.1

4.1

3.0

1.0

0.0 1.0

1.0

0.3

1.2

0.6

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.0

7.1

0.0

3.3

Mar-16

24.9

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

Mar-18

9.99.2

4.5

Client Weighted Index

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

Jun-16

Dec-13

-1.0

-0.7

4.2

101.040.2

11.7

3.0

0.8

-0.7 11.6

1.6 -0.9

1.6

-1.6

4.2

0.0

1.1

4.6

-1.6

-0.4

11.91.6

0.0

0.2

0.7

-1.0

3.2 8.7

2.7

9.0

-2.8

-0.5

0.4

8.1

7.8

12.2 0.6

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year 3 Year

1.8

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

FTSE All Share Index

-1.0

4.9

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.6

Dec-13

6.6

-0.6

Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index

7.8

0.7

3.8 12.8

1.7 1.3

100.3

8.1

9.8

4.9

1.36.7 -0.7 11.0

0.5 7.6

4.4

6.8 -0.28.34.1 2.7

-0.2

0.3 0.0 0.0

3.7

8.4

7.9

1.5

-1.4

0.4

6.4 7.8

7.2

3.2

1.1

-0.6

7.48.0

7.8

3.2

-4.3

8.78.4

9.7

ER

-0.1

0.2

1.4

-0.1

-0.2

8.3 8.0

8.4

0.3

13.8

10.710.6

8.3

PF BM

12.8

0.0

6.0 0.06.0

15.4

0.516.3

0.8

0.5 -2.0-1.5

9.0

11.3

10.2

Since Inception

6.6 6.3 0.3

15.3

13.8

15.7

7.5 2.7

Dec-13

11.1

5.2

40.6 0.4Mar-16 0.2 98.598.6

5.90.5

8.2

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

1.9

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.2

4.4

4.2

0.0

Apr-15 0.6

Client Weighted Index

1.4

3.0

FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 7.7

0.0 1.2 -1.2

3.2

13.24.5

2.6 7.8-0.7 1.7

12.9

7.3

7.8 -0.10.2

9.4

5.2

3.9-0.51.6

-0.9 8.9

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund 0.40.77.9

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 15.9 4.7 11.2 16.6

6.9

10.5 2.3 8.1

18.1 -0.49.7 9.8 18.4

4.7

3.0

12.04.5

4.5

9.716.3 6.6

12.8

-2.3

3.6

0.0

4.7 3.7 -1.0

0.1

2.6 5.7 5.7

1.5

2.4 2.3

14.1 2.3 11.8

3.1

2.6 2.3 0.3

2.4 4.7

8.4 4.7

5.7

4.7

2.3 3.3

8.5 4.7

4.7 -4.1

3.1 4.7 -1.79.5 2.3 7.1

3.8 2.3

4.5 -1.5

1.1 4.5 -3.4

3.3 4.5 -1.2

-1.9

3.1

-12.2 4.5 -16.7

4.5 -1.62.9

5.7

4.8

5.4 0.3

13.0

4.4 4.5 -0.1

17.5

-0.5

4.5

4.5 0.6

4.5 0.9

6.7

5.9 5.1 0.8

4.0 4.5

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 30th September 2019

0.6 3.1 -2.5

4.5 2.2

4.5 0.1

5.3

4.6

2.4 2.3 0.1 3.7 4.7 -1.1 2.9 4.5 -1.6

1.0 1.2 -0.2 2.2 2.3 -0.2 4.6 4.04.7 -0.1 4.4 4.5 -0.14.5 -0.5

2.2 1.5 0.7 6.2 3.0 3.2 10.3 6.0 4.2 11.8 5.3 6.5 11.9 5.2 6.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 1.7 0.0 1.2 -1.2 3.4 2.3 1.1 4.5 4.7 -0.2 8.0 4.5 3.5 8.7 4.5 4.2

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.2 6.3 1.8 4.4 11.7 3.7 8.0 20.2 7.5 12.7 18.0 7.5 10.5

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.3 1.2 1.8 -0.6 2.9 3.7

-2.6

-0.8 12.2 7.5

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 0.2 -0.8 1.8 7.3 7.5 -0.2

13.1 7.5 5.64.8

7.9 7.5 0.4

0.0 -0.7 -0.9 0.0 -0.9

5.2 3.7 1.5

0.0 0.0-2.0 -0.5 0.0 -0.5 0.30.3-2.0

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 23.6 2.2 1.4 5.7

Apr-16 8.4

-0.7

4.3 4.6 -0.3

2.6

0.6 1.7 -0.4

7.0 2.3 4.5

-1.0

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 11.8 3.4

2.7

3.5 4.7 -1.2

0.7

1.13.6 6.0-0.4 4.4

LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.6 0.2 3.1 -3.0 6.3 3.7

LGPS Central Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 8.1 2.6

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

3.5

12.97.1 9.7 -2.6

6.9 7.3

4.5

15.0 -2.1

4.2 -0.5

-1.8

7.0

8.0

10.0

7.1

11.2Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.6 2.8 2.5

-1.0

6.5

1.3 6.9 5.4 1.5

5.9

Total Fund Benchmark

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross) 0.6 6.3 6.50.3 10.1 1.10.2

6.7 5.4 1.3

-0.2 8.2

Transition Fund FTSE All World Emerging Market Index Jul-19 0.0 1.0 1.1 0.0 0.0-0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2

Notes:     

Q3 2019:

- Disinvested from Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund as at 1st July 2019

- Invested into the LGPSC Emerging Market Fund as at 19th July 2019

- Assets from Delaware moved to transition Fund COB 1st July, assets then moved to LGPS Central COB 18th July

- Therefore the returns for the above are partial period returns

Q1 2019: Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund & Kempen Global Equity Fund transferred to the LGPS Global Active Equity Fund as at 15th 

February 2019.

L&G may measure their funds versus different benchmarks.

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, therefore please use with caution. If you require 

additional information please contact us.     

1.0 1.10.0 0.0

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return  

16

105



Total Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

LGPS Central Global Active Equity Fund

LGPS Central Emerging Market Active Equity Fund

Transition Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Total Property Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Total Targeted Return Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund

Millennium Currency Fund

Cash Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

0 0.0 0.0

4,503,007 98.6 -1.44,422,269 99.3 -0.7

0.0

30th June 2019

-0.7

-0.4

0.2

-0.1

-0.3

0.0

-0.6

0.0

-1.4

0.2

-1.7

-0.9

0.1

-1.1

0.9

-0.3

1.8

-0.4

-0.4

0.1

0.1

-1.0

-0.1

2.1

0.1

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.5

-1.8

-1.8

-0.8

-0.1

-0.7

30th September 2019

Net Exp

(%)

1.6

0.8

0.6

2,043,378

Net Exp

(%)

-0.2

0.4

0.2

-0.4

0.2

-0.2

0.0

-1.6

0.1

0.1

0.4

-0.4

-0.9

0.1

-1.9

0.4

-0.5

-0.5

0.0

0.1

-0.6

0.2

-0.2

0.0

13.0

-1.6

-1.0

-0.2

3.9 -0.1

1.4

0.9

0.7

0.2

0.0

0.1

0.5

0.1

5.5

4.9

1.2

236,950

156,017

0.744.7

15,964 0.3

5.2

0.7

0.2

1.9

-0.3

0.1

0.6

51,362 1.2 54,575

236,692 5.3

77,351 1.7 77,351 1.7

0.5

215 0.0

3.4

8,298 0.2

152,716 3.4

32,606 0.7

15,706 0.4

23,3490.7

-1,664

8,127 0.2

0.0

383,166 8.6

0.628,011 0.6 28,0110.1

8.4

118,463 2.7 118,764 2.6

152,148 3.4

5.8259,531

383,725

537,935

199,606

190,284

393 0.0

137,579 3.1

364 0.0

15.9

138,309 3.1

87,9000.3

1,077,676

690,777 15.5 725,710

1,085,505

95,208

223,917

250,823

63,555

179,379

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th September 2019
Market Value: 4.6bn

Market Val Exposure

1,452,198 32.6

(£000s)

1,493,841

320,803 7.2

12.7

5.6

0.2

-0.1

1.4

2.6117,563

83,168

7.2326,973

594,813

2.6120,501

2,106,933 46.1

32.7

(%)

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

(%)

2,029,566 45.6

566,851

1,997,570 44.8

113,872 2.6

83,699

360,736 8.1

119,556 2.7

100.04,566,562

1,136,351

0

24.9

1.8

4,454,265 100.0

4.6

0.7

247,417

31,996

184,636 0.1

47,878 1.1

30,177

9.0

24.7

4.1 0.0

0.7

0.6

409,407 9.2

1,100,184

206,188

0.7

4.5

99,755 2.2

328,858 7.4

30,177

7.7

206,605

78,459

205,371

1.8

26,226

4.6

47,878

2.1

26,226 0.6

549,623 12.3

49,942 1.1 -0.4

24.4

1.1

142,135 3.1

23.6

11.8

370,157 8.1

4.2

4.4

2.299,755

410,641

0.1

95,208 2.1

3.2147,651

49,942

0.6

1.0

350,523

1.9

0 0.0 0.00 0.0 -0.1

17

106



 

16 
 

 

 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION 

ISSUE 7        September 2019 

FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CLIENTS ONLY 

https://www.pexels.com/photo/aerial-photography-of-buildings-under-blue-and-white-sky-during-golden-hour-624929/ 

107



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  2 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Introduction  

Welcome to the 7th Edition of our LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) Tactical Asset Allocation Report. 

We see this being used for short to medium term overlays over your strategic asset allocation to take advantage of current 
market conditions by refining your asset weights within your long-term allocation bands.   

The last 3 months has seen LGPSC transitioning the GEMs Fund (completed with 3 investors and ~£600m), and the Climate 
Change Factor Based Fund (2 investors with ~£2,100m of investments) and the Corporate Bonds Fund (now looking to 
transition in the next 6 months). The Product Development Protocol (“PDP”)-the detailed process and time-line for developing 
funds is shared with Partner funds at Monthly Investment Working Group (“IWG”) meetings) now shows a further 8 funds being 
prepared across all asset classes.  We attended the IWG Strategic Asset Allocation meeting with Partner Funds in September 
where the priorities for the new year were set. The following IWG meeting focussed on Infrastructure, UK equities, Property 
and Target Return sub-funds.  

All of these are pooled vehicles and will be made available to all Partner Funds.  

LGPSC is managing 12 mandates/portfolios for individual Partner Funds across all asset classes. Work continues with individual 
Partner Funds on various segregated mandates and portfolios including sustainable equities, G10 bonds and other advisory 
services. 

The review of the legal agreements with these discretionary, advisory and advisory mandates is close to completion. This work 
is being carried out by our legal counsel Andrea Abbott working with Partner Funds external counsel. We will be asking that 
Partner Funds consider signing these agreements to ensure that LGPSC can share its advice with all Partner Funds if it is 
required. 

Working with WMPF we will be holding a summit on Infrastructure investing on Tuesday 26 November and will also be 
focussing on developing a pooled Infrastructure Fund for Partner Funds. We are looking to offer a Climate Risk Monitoring 
Service utilising MSCI, Hermes and Mercers climate change products to Partner Funds in Q4 2019.  

In the past three months we have shared monthly fact sheets on all the ACS funds and monthly reports from the Active Equities 
team, the TAA quarterly report No. 6 and the Fund Closure policy. All of these reports can be found on Cilla available on the 
LGPSC website. (https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/client-login/) 

In this edition of the report we have added a report from Tanya Nolan on “Affordable Housing”.  

The investment team now includes 30 people with the addition of the investment professional graduate trainee scheme. These 
new trainees will be working across all departments as part of their development. We have appointed a portfolio manager to 
work on the Manager of Managers team to assist in the launch of our new funds.  We are currently advertising on four 
Investment positions which are all on our website and advertised on efinancial and Exec Appointments. 

LGPSC is also looking to add to the Risk & Compliance, Legal, Operations, Programme Management and Finance teams who 
have been critical to the delivery of these Funds and services for you and the investment team.  

Summary of Strategy thoughts 
 
The last 12 months has seen good returns from all asset classes except for global equities which saw a disappointing 1.9% return 
in local terms however this was boosted to an 8.2% return in sterling terms. Gilts and UK Index linked saw the best returns over 
that period of 14.6% and 19% returns respectively. 
 
LGPSC continue to prefer Growth and Income assets over Stabilising assets. Within Equities Emerging Markets and Asia Pacific 
have been upgraded but remain underweight, but UK equities have been moved to an overweight after the underperformance 
over the last 9 months. Gilts and Index linked remain underweight and US bonds moved to an overweight from neutral.  Within 
factors the only change was that the Quality/ESG factor has moved from underweight to neutral.  Infrastructure and Emerging 
Market debt remain our favoured investments in Income Assets. 
 
Our views on currency remain the same favouring Sterling against Euros and the US dollar.  Hedging foreign currency assets 
back to Sterling is something LGPSC continues to support in the current market environment.  
 
Please read on for a more detailed analysis of our views. 
 
Jason Fletcher, Chief Investment Officer 
 

CIO SUMMARY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

108



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  3 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S VIEW ON WEIGHTINGS  
 
The following table gives a summary of our view on the 6-18 months tactical positioning horizon. 
 
Table1: Weightings 

 Significant Underweight Underweight Neutral Overweight Significant Overweight 

Estimated Probability 80-70% 70-65% 55-45% 70-65% 70-80% 

BROAD ASSET CLASS  Stabilising  Income, 
 Growth 

 

GROWTH ASSET CLASS 

 
US Equities,   

 Private Equity 
 

GEM Equities  
 

UK Equities, 
EU Equities 

Commodities, 
Asia Pac Equities 

Japan Equities 

INCOME ASSETS  
Credit, 

 Property  
Infrastructure, 

EM Debt  

STABILISING ASSETS JP Bonds 
UK Bonds, 

Index-Linked, 
 EU Bonds  

IG Bonds  US Bonds Gold 

INVESTMENT STYLES Size  Growth, 
 Quality/ESG 

Momentum,  
Value, 

 Low Volatility 
  

CURRENCIES 
 

 US Dollar Euro, 
 Yen  

GBP   

 

 

 

 

  
 

LGPSC’s view on “Weightings”: 
 LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) remains “Underweight” in Stabilising Assets and “Overweight” in Income Assets and Growth Assets.  
 Some parts of the world already in a recession, positive sentiment and attractive valuations support LGPSC’s Overweight position in Growth Assets. 
 Stabilising assets have done well. LGPSC’s outlook remains cautious on those but notes that they can provide downside protection in times of recession. 
 LGPSC prefers exposure to Income Assets as an alternative where yields and expected returns will combine with a low correlation to those riskier Growth 

Assets 
 

      Upgraded,      Downgraded compared to previous quarter 

109



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  4 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Source: Bloomberg Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity 

Source: Bloomberg (NB: assumes dividends were reinvested),  Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity. 

BROAD ASSET CLASSES 
Table 2: Growth/Income/Stabilising Assets  

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

GROWTH 2 Overweight 
Not much changed compared to previous quarter, supported by 

positive sentiment 

INCOME 2 Overweight Safe Income in economic downturn, valuation looking a bit more 
attractive and positive sentiment 

STABILISING -1 Underweight 
Low/Negative expected return, remain expensive, but can provide 

protection in a recession 
 
Table 3: Historical Annualised Returns (* except for the 3 months, where total return is used) 

 
3 months* One year Three years Five years Ten years 

Twenty 
years Bloomberg Ticker 

GLOBAL EQUITIES  0.2% 1.9% 10.3% 7.5% 9.3% 4.9% FTAW01 Index 

PRIVATE EQUITY 7.8% 15.8% 15.9% 16.3% 14.0% na IPRV LN Index 

PROPERTY 7.7% 20.8% 9.0% 11.1% 14.1% 11.6% REIT INDEX 

INFRASTRUCTURE 0.6% 14.6% 8.0% 5.8% 8.2% na SPGTIND Index 

HIGH YIELD 1.9% 6.2% 5.8% 6.5% 11.1% 10.1% HL00 Index 

UK GILTS 6.6% 14.2% 3.4% 6.3% 5.8% 5.9% G0L0 Index 

UK INDEX-LINKED 8.1% 19.0% 5.1% 9.7% 8.9% 7.3% G0LI Index 

GOLD 0.2% 31.4% 5.6% 9.8% 6.7% 9.9% XAUGBP Curncy 
 
 
Table 4: Correlation Matrix (5 year historical correlation) 

 FTSE All 
World AW 

TR GBP 

iShares 
Listed 

Private 
DJ REIT 

S&P 
Global 
Infra 

Sterling 
High-Yield 

UK Gilt UK Inf-Link 
Gilt 

XAUGBP 
Index 

GLOBAL EQUITIES 1 0.651 0.535 0.770 0.512 -0.245 -0.163 -0.274 

PRIVATE EQUITY   1 0.367 0.482 0.423 -0.169 -0.112 0.014 

PROPERTY   0.815 1 0.662 0.223 0.255 0.195 0.058 

INFRASTRUCTURE   0.033 0.029 1 0.425 0.0441 0.056 -0.019 

HIGH YIELD 0.778 0.058 0.082 0.418 1 -0.049 -0.043 -0.195 

UK GILTS 0.617 -0.16 -0.09 0.353 0.455 1 0.818 0.452 

UK INDEX-LINKED 0.525 0.267 0.203 0.218 0.657 0.31 1 0.387 

GOLD -0.231 0.407 0.349 -0.11 0.004 0.05 0.085 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1 Refers to LGPSC model as described on page 7  

LGPSC’s view on “Broad Asset Classes”: 
 LGPSC favours Growth Assets due to significant positive sentiment, reduced economic growth expectations, 

and some leading indicators are suggesting some parts of the world are already in recession. 
 Equity markets have rallied strongly. Most asset classes have seen good returns above inflation over the last 

three, five, ten and twenty years.  
 Commodities and Gold provide good diversification against equity markets and could be added as a 

diversifier to the portfolio.  
 Fixed Income can be allocated to the portfolio for the same reason, but we remain underweight, given its 

poor valuation and low expected returns and LGPSC favours Income Assets. 
 

110



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  5 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

GROWTH ASSET VIEW 
Table 5: Growth Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK Equities 2 Overweight Positive sentiment and neutral valuation, market risk has improved 

NORTH AMERICA 
Equities 

-3 Underweight 
Expensive valuations are back, and economic risk is higher 

compared to other geographies. Sentiment slightly improved 

EUROPE Equities  2 Overweight 
Good dividend yields, neutral valuations, and positive sentiment, 

but economic outlook remains unstable 

JAPAN Equities 5 Overweight 
Very attractive valuation and economics have turned positive, but 

trade war consequences remain, sentiment positive 

ASIA PAC Equities 2 Overweight 
Economic growth potential, sentiment has improved but fears of 

trade war may overshadow the potential performance 

GEMs Equities -1 Underweight 
Mixed picture, new positive sentiment, but economic growth 

concerns, relatively expensive valuation 

PRIVATE EQUITY -3 Underweight 
High investment cost, sentiment negative, long-term economic 

outlook uncertain, we recommend selective positioning in quality 
and stable companies 

COMMODITIES 1 Overweight 
Neutral sentiment and exposure to weakening dollar but provides 

no yield 
 

 

 

 

 

 
INCOME ASSET VIEW 
Table 6: Income Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

CREDIT -1 Underweight 
Economic play, valuations have improved to neutral and 

sentiment remains negative 

EMERGING MARKET 
DEBT 2 Overweight 

Economic play remains strong, and valuation remains good, 
sentiment is improved to neutral 

PROPERTY -1 Underweight 
Relative value, inflation protection, sentiment remains 

negative and high investment costs 

INFRASTRUCTURE 2 Overweight 
Relative value, inflation protection, neutral sentiment but 
high investment costs, renewables & sustainable exposure 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Growth Assets”: 
 The main change across Growth Assets is improved sentiment which has increased the model weight for 

most Growth Assets.  
 Only North America as worsened mainly due to expensive valuations. 
 Japan receives the highest model score, due to attractive valuations, positive sentiment and supported by 

economic stability beginning this year but remains vulnerable to external factors such as the trade war. 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Income Assets”: 
 LGPSC retains its favourable view on Income Assets. Emerging market debt “Overweight” view remains 

mainly based on economic outlook and improved sentiment to neutral.  
 Property is downgraded by a further notch to “Underweight” due to worsened sentiment, and Infrastructure 

remains “Overweight”. 
 We have removed Insurance-linked assets from the LGPSC view. 

 

111



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  6 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 
STABILISING ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Stabilising Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK BONDS -2 Underweight 
UK bonds more underweight due to worsened sentiment 

and unattractive valuation 

INDEX-LINKED -2 Underweight 
Unchanged, due to negative expected return and concern 

about long duration/interest rates 

US BONDS 1 Overweight 
Fair value but increasing deficit and monetary easing, 

inflation risk and economic growth slowing 

JP BONDS -5 Underweight 
Unchanged, poor valuation and Central Bank policy 

supportive market, in addition to currency risk 

EU BONDS -2 Underweight 
Slight improvement but remains underweight due to 

unattractive valuation, economic outlook and sentiment 

IG CORPORATE BONDS 0 Neutral Corp spreads neutral and anchored to government bond 
yields, but general good credit outlook 

GOLD 3 Overweight 
Favoured Stabilising Asset, when we do not like other 

Stabilising Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 
INVESTMENT FACTORS (EQUITIES) 
Factor based investing provides a way of potentially adding outperformance relative to a market-cap-based 
approach at a much lower cost than active investing. It recognises that the market-cap-based index does not provide 
the best risk-adjusted return for a portfolio given its natural overweight to momentum, large cap and expensive 
stocks. In the following factor model, we have taken the seven factors of value, growth, income growth, size (small 
cap), ESG, low volatility and momentum and then applied the same criteria we use to consider other asset classes in 
our model assessing each factor for valuation, sentiment, economic suitability, risk suitability, investment cost and 
currency. Investment cost in factor-based investing is low relative to the other asset classes, though momentum 
factors (given their higher turnover) and ESG factors (given their higher index costs) are both scored neutral. Given 
all strategies are global, the currency scores are all neutral. Note that ESG and quality share similar characteristics. 
Climate change as a factor is little correlated to specific economic cycles given its long-term investment impact 
horizon of 10-20 years. The graph below summarises the preferred overweight factor(s) depending on the various 
stages of the economic cycle. 
Economic Cycle and Investment Factors: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 8: Investment Factors 

LGPSC’s view on “Stabilising Assets”: 
 LGPSC remains “Underweight” for most Stabilising Assets mainly based on the low/negative yields but 

recognises that they should represent a proportion of the portfolio given the downside protection they can 
offer. 

 “Underweight” view remains for most geographies, in particular for Japan. Only US bonds are “Overweight” 
due to neutral valuations and the US economic outlook.  

 Gold offers good diversification and a safe haven in turbulent markets and protects against political and 
economic risks.  

Boom Slowdown Recession Recovery 

Positive 
economic 
growth 

Negative 
economic 
growth 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

 Now 

112



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  7 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

FACTOR ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Investment Factors 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

Value 2 Overweight 
Very attractive valuations, unloved and remains most 

favoured factor 

Growth 0 Neutral Poor sentiment and increased risks, score unchanged 

Size -4 Underweight 
Concern with slowing economy, negative sentiment and 

market risk worsen score 

Momentum 1 Overweight 
Overweight based on current attractive valuation and 

sentiment 

Low Volatility 1 Overweight 
Poor long-term performance but remains attractive due to 

possible change in economic cycle  

Quality/ESG 0 Neutral 
Positioning in light of potential economic slowdown and 
protection against market declines, improved sentiment 

 

 
ABOUT LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S SCORING MODEL 
LGPSC’s model scores each asset class against its valuation, sentiment, economic outlook, market risk, currency and 
investment cost (scored between -2 and +2). Positive scores suggest (strong) overweight and negative scores, 
(strong) underweight positions. Where a zero is assigned, our view is neutral. The scores for the different assessment 
areas, e.g. valuation, sentiment etc. are then added to derive the final score for that asset class. We are constantly 
developing this scoring to include other variables such as ESG measures and technical factors.  
 
RECESSION WATCH 
Key indicators for a recession have worsened over the last quarter with 1) an inverted yield curve, 2) stabilising 
employment and 3) the changing monetary environment in the US. The amount of corporate debt is a worry in 
certain markets alongside EU banks’ non-performing loans. Chinese domestic corporate leverage is of concern and 
some areas of the high yield market could pose problems especially if rates were to rise more sharply than expected. 
Auto finance is also showing some signs of 
stress. The US growth cycle has been rather 
long and increased asset volatility may 
indicate the first signs of a recession in the 
medium term.   
 
LPGS Central Limited View –We see the 
likelihood of a recession as medium over the next 
12 months. 2020 could mark the start of the next 
recession. 
 
 
 
 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Investment Factors”: 
 LGPSC’s view on Investment Factors remains broadly the same in light of increased recession concerns. 
 Quality/ESG has improved form “Underweight” to “Neutral” due to a change in sentiment. 
 In light of the current economic cycle, market risk and sentiment, the favoured factor remains “Value”. 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

1 year US recession risk

1-year US recession risk 

Source: Bloomberg 

113



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  8 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Q3 LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED MARKET UPDATE2  
Global equity markets experienced mixed performance over the quarter amid ongoing geopolitical tension.  The 
Euro STOXX50 and Nikkei indices advanced by 2.76% and 2.26% respectively while the US market (as measured by 
the S&P 500) made more modest gains (+1.19%).  Asia Pacific (ex Japan) was a notable laggard, returning -4.88% as 
the trade war between the US and China continued. 

Volatility (as measured by the VIX index) spiked in August as the trade war intensified.  The University of Michigan 
Consumer Sentiment Index weakened to a three-year low during August before rebounding slightly in September 
as consumer confidence recovered. 

Against a backdrop of global growth concerns and muted inflation, the US Federal Reserve opted to cut rates twice 
during the quarter to a target range of 1.75% to 2.0%.  The benchmark US 10-year Treasury yield fell by 34 bps as risk 
appetite waned, closing the quarter at 1.66%.  Significantly, the Treasury yield curve inverted for the first time since 
2006 during August as the 10-year yield briefly fell below the two-year yield, leading to speculation that a recession 
may be on the horizon.  

In the UK, activity was dominated by continued uncertainty over the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union and 
the appointment of Boris Johnson as Prime Minister.  The Bank of England maintained the base rate at 0.75% and 
the 10-year UK gilt yield ended the quarter 34.5 bps lower (at 0.49%). 

The European Central Bank announced that it would resume its quantitative easing programme in November and 
indicated further interest rate cuts could occur if inflation remains below the target level. 

The oil price closed 8.7% down compared to the previous quarter-end as news emerged of a growing oil surplus while 
the price of gold rose by 4.5%.  In the currency markets sterling weakened against the US dollar by 3.21% but 
strengthened against the euro. 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED Q3 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE  
In a textbook case of the financial materiality of corporate governance, WeWork has pulled its IPO in the face of 
significant investor criticism. CEO Adam Neumann has resigned and conceded majority control of the organisation, 
and the company will postpone its entrance into the public markets. The shared workspace company’s aggressive 
expansion into more than 500 offices in 111 cities has caused it to burn through capital, reporting a 2018 loss of $1.6bn 
on sales of $1.8bn. Public investors were spooked by the IPO prospectus which proposed that Mr Neumann would 
have 20 times the voting power of ordinary shareholders. Such preferential voting rights would have been twice as 
great as those at Facebook and Google; even Uber transformed to a one-share-one-vote model. Other concerns 
abound, including Mr Neuman engaging in self-dealing, and a name change (from WeWork to WeCompany) yielding 
a payment to Neumann of $5.9m for the trademark. We think that, in general, private ownership aligns well with 
investors that place a high value on good governance. If your exit strategy involves an IPO, public investors are 
making it clear that governance is a must, not an optional extra. 

The collapse of Thomas Cook has intensified the already-existing debate in the UK over what should be expected 
from an audit. MPs announced a wide-scale inquiry into the collapse of the travel company, focusing on its 
accounting practices, executive pay and the role of its auditors. Both PwC and EY will come under scrutiny: PwC was 
auditor from 2008 until EY took over the role in 2017. In 2018 EY signed off on Thomas Cook’s accounts as a going 
concern, revealing its judgement that the company could survive another 12 months. Pressure is mounting in favour 
of an expansion to the role of an auditor from a supplier who checks whether international standards have been 
correctly applied, to a genuinely objective verifier of information that is decision-useful for investors.  

More than 400,000 German car owners have signed up to litigate Volkswagen, making “dieselgate” the largest legal 
claim of its kind in German history.  The scandal has already cost the company over $30bn, whilst Daimler was 
recently fined €1bn by EU prosecutors for similar allegations. The auto industry is undergoing huge change as 
companies announce strategies to anticipate (or react to) government policies to phase out internal combustion 
engine technology. This is more than a fig leaf to win back consumer sentiment. Daimler and Ford are among several 

 
2 Performance for the quarter measured over period of 30/06/2019 to 30/09/2019 

114



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  9 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

majors to announce development partnerships. VW is betting on electric, moving from 15m EV units produced per 
year to 22m by 2030. Over 70 new VW EV models will be launched in the next 10 years, taking EVs to 40% of VW’s 
fleet. Auto supply chains face risks and opportunities, for example VW’s EV strategy has led to battery supply deals 
with Samsung, LG Chem, SKI and CATL. Last year alone Volkswagen invested $25bn in battery supplies to bolster 
its EV strategy.  

In July 2019 the rate of Amazonian deforestation was the highest for two and a half years. Whilst Brazilian President 
Jair Bolsonaro’s custody of the rainforest has been repeatedly questioned, his reaction has underwhelmed his 
political peers, notably President Macron of France. Since Mr Bolsonaro’s term started (January 2019), an area bigger 
than the size of Luxembourg has been razed by loggers. In addition, cuts to Brazil’s environmental agency budget 
and reduced pressure to enact strict conservation laws have allowed ranchers to log and burn more freely. The 
Amazon plays a vital role in absorbing carbon dioxide emissions and stabilising global temperatures. There have 
since been measures put in place by Bolsonaro to protect the forest, but many argue this has come too little too late. 
Exposure to Amazonian deforestation can appear in institutional portfolios through commodity producers and meat 
producers. Western businesses are reportedly threatening to boycott Brazilian produce in response, which could 
affect supply and price stability for some value chains. The Brazilian business community has called on the President 
to resolve the situation without further economic harm. We remain alert to the potential for populist policies to cause 
unintended economic consequences.  

RISK ANALYSIS 
Table 8: Risk in order of probability 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to 

protect against the risk 

EQUITY 
DOWNTURN 

Medium Moderate  

Slightly increased possibility for this risk, but not 
enough to assign “high” possibility. Exaggerated 
growth expectations, profit taking in the equity 

market, increased recession risk and limited 
monetary policy stimulus available could see equity 

markets fall. 

Safe haven assets such as 
government bonds and 
gold, increased demand 

for equity downside 
protection makes 
volatility rise, buy 

volatility early, as short-
term measure protect 
through selling futures 

NO DEAL BREXIT Medium High 
 

Scenario changed from general Brexit to No Deal 
Brexit. Hence, we assign possibility Medium now, as 
we believe there is a 50% chance for a No Deal Brexit 

but much of this appears to be already priced into 
the market. In the worst-case scenario, we believe 
this can impact UK assets by 10% down but would 

expect a sterling fall to lift the value of international 
assets by up to 10%. 

A hard Brexit would have 
a negative impact, but 

there is also the 
possibility of no Brexit 

too which is why LGPSC 
has a balanced view on 

UK equities 

GLOBAL RECESSION  
Medium/ 

High Moderate  

Recession watch factors are pointing towards a 
possible global recession in 2020 fuelled by US 
growth stagnating, Chinese debt leverage and 

elevated interest rates in the US. ASR survey reveals 
50% chance of recession of which some is already 
priced into the bond/equity market. Equity could 

suffer by -20%. In a recession liquidity becomes an 
issue which could make matters worse. 

Factors such as 
Quality/ESG and low 

volatility perform 
relatively well in a 

recession.  
Stabilising and income 

assets will outperform if 
economy enters 

recession 

POLITICAL RISKS Medium Low 
 

There is a considerable amount of other political 
risks arounds the globe, such as the Syria/ Turkey 
situation and domestic US political risks. There is 

also an increased UK election risk. We are also 
considering in this scenario the risk of 

nationalisation of assets post a UK election, which 
would have a negative impact on UK equities and 

Infrastructure. 

Overweight protective 
assets such as Gold, non-

Euro assets, buy US 
Dollar 

ISOLATION & 
PROTECTION/CHINA High High 

 

General trade war concerns from 2018 carry on their 
trend in 2019 with increased negative sentiment and 

worries about the possible consequences. Exports 
are down everywhere. General overleveraged China 
concerns in combination with recent demonstration 
in Hong Kong which has had a significant negative 

impact in this market. 

Slowdown of economic 
growth and de-stabilising 

effect, overweight Gold 
and insurance linked, 

overweight US equities, 
underweight GEMs 

115



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  10 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to 

protect against the risk 

CREDIT RISK/DEBT 
ISSUES 

High Moderate 
 

In the event of a marked slowdown highly leveraged 
corporates might find it difficult to refinance 
cheaply, at a time that profitability is under 

pressure. Corporate bond spreads might also widen. 
UK political risks are increasing, EU banks have not 

taken enough non-performing loan action, China 
and Automotive debt are concerns at present. 

Underweight EU and 
China, underweight 

selective credit, such as 
Automotive. 

Incorporating ESG 
reduces Credit Risk. 

US$ WEAKNESS Low Moderate  If significant GDP slow down occurs and US rates 
decrease by 200bps the US$ could fall around 10%. 

Overweight US$ 
government bonds, 

hedge the US$, 
Overweight EM equities 

CLIMATE-RELATED 
TRANSITION RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 

- EU carbon price over €20 per tonne since March 

- Sales of Tesla units nearing 100,000 per Q 

- Labelled green bond issuance USD117.8bn in H1 
2019 (up 48% on H1 2018)  

Underweight Energy & 
GEMs, overweight 

Renewables and 
sustainable investment 

themes such as 
Infrastructure  

CLIMATE-RELATED 
PHYSICAL RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 

- US Billon Dollar Disaster (BDD) Event Frequency: 

10 US BDDs as of October 2019; annual average is 

12.6 

- 77% year on year increase in Amazonian forest fires 

Hold a well-diversified 
portfolio  

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s view on “Scenario Risks”:  
 LGPSC’s view is that with a well-diversified portfolio, the majority of key risks from these scenarios should 

balance out potential strong negative impacts. Alternatively, short term asset adjustments can be made to 
the portfolio to seek protection or a derivative overlay can hedge out undesired potential negative impacts 
and provide protection. 

 The LGPSC Investment Team has undertaken the half yearly review of the emerging risks and updated the 
table accordingly. 

 We have removed FAANG risk as we believe that FAANG’s business models are becoming increasingly 
diversified and the risk is priced into the market. 

 We also have removed monetary surprises as there no longer appears to be upside risk to major interest 
rates movements, and they are more likely more to fall from here. Any surprise is likely to be on the 
downside. 

 We also have modified the Brexit risk to be more specific to a “No Deal” Brexit. 
 We have added a new scenario of the US$ weakening, the implications could be to invest in US$ bonds and 

hedge the US$. 
 It remains our view that the next 12 months should produce a positive return for Income Assets and will 

probably see low to negative returns for Stabilising Assets. Our opinion is that fixed income does not offer 
good risk adjusted returns relative to equities for pension fund money at this time and should remain 
underweight. Growth Assets have become more attractive due to a change in sentiment and the lack of 
other investments offering return alternatives. As a result, we have reduced the equity downturn risk 
although there remains a risk of a recession that is deeper than is currently priced into markets and this 
outcome would be very negative for equity valuations. 
  

116



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  11 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Tanya Nolan 
PM Property &  
Infrastructure 
 

Tanya.nolan@lgpscentral.co.uk 
Phone: 01902 916182 
 

SPECIAL FEATURE 1: AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s Thoughts On Affordable Housing 

There is no doubt that Affordable Housing is very much on the Government’s 
agenda and this appears to be being picked up the asset managers with various 
investment options coming to the market.  

So, what is affordable housing? The Government has specified that affordable 
housing includes intermediate housing, affordable rented and social rented. 

These are all provided to specified eligible households whose needs are not met by the market. It can be 
a new-build property or a private sector property that has been purchased for use as an affordable home. 
 
The threshold for affordability set by the Government is defined as an individual household’s monthly 
rent costing less than 35% of their monthly gross income. For the landlords, the Government have stated 
that affordable homes should cost no more than 80% of the average local market rent. 
 
In more detail, the types of affordable housing that an investor may come across are: 
 
Shared Ownership homes allow the purchaser to buy a share in the equity while paying rent on the non-
purchased share. This scheme aims to allow people the chance to get onto the housing ladder who 
would not have been able to do so via a full equity purchase. The homebuyer will pay rent on the unsold 
share which is owned by the provider of the Help to Buy, who receives the rent.  
 
Rent to Buy homes also sit under intermediate housing. These are let to working households at an 
intermediate rent (intermediate rent must be offered for a minimum of 5 years) to give the tenant the 
opportunity to save for a deposit to buy their first home. 
 
Affordable Rent homes are for those who rent in the private rental sector and need support to be able 
to afford market rents. Affordable rents are usually let at higher rents than Social Rented Housing that 
are let out at rents 20% lower than those in the private rental market.  
 
Social Housing is arranged by Local Authorities or Housing Associations on behalf of Local Authorities. 
Rents are regulated by Government using a formula based on property value, local and tenant income 
and property size. The Government also dictates by how much the rents can then be increased on an 
annual basis. 
 
How does this work for investors? 
 
Statistically it has been shown that there is a shortage of housing alongside a funding gap that needs to 
be filled via private investment. That said there is no guarantee of continued Government support so 
there will always be a political risk factor. 
 
As with any property investment, the investor is looking for a steady income. Formerly, regulated rents 
rose by RPI plus 0.5% which provided predictability and allowed for business planning. However, in 2015 
the Government imposed a 1% per annum reduction in social rents for four years, but they have stated 
that the original figure will be restored after 2020. 
 
It should be noted that except for Social Housing, the fund manager will be able to set the rent levels to 
ensure the required income is generated. 
 

117



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  12 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Returns, although not high, should be reasonable when compared with the current low yields of 
inflation-linked gilts and could be useful for Pension Funds for managing cash flows. In real return 
figures, fund managers are offering yields of up to 3% p.a. It is possible that higher returns may be 
achieved through taking on some construction risk also. 
 
In conclusion, there are opportunities being offered out in the market, many with mixed strategies so 
that they are not solely focused Affordable Housing which can help with yield returns.  There is an 
obvious positive political slant however, investors need to be confident that any fund manager is able 
to produce long term stable cash flows, diversification and inflation hedging characteristics expected 
from the asset class.  
 
Another consideration for Partner Funds investing in housing is the potential for adverse reputation 
issues arising and whilst it may be impossible to remove this risk completely, this would be a key area 
of due diligence when evaluating these opportunities.  
 

118



 

13 
 

 

US Sovereign yield curve shows signs of inversion mainly due to US 
growth concerns and the US-China trade war provoking a more 
dovish policy stance. Recent EUR rate cut. 

….. with initial jobless claims providing a similar positive 
picture below long-term average and showing a falling 
trend. 

Consumer confidence remains well above the average of 85, 
indicating less concerns than other economic indicators.  

0.75

0.85

0.95

1.05

1.15

1.25

1.35

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sc
al

ed
 to

 1
00

%

FX - Trade wWighted Indices

TWI USD TWI EUR
TWI JPY TWI GBP

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

US EU UK JP

CPI and Forecast

2018 2019 2020 2021

-1

-0.5

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y

Sovereign Yield Curves

US UK JPY EU

45

70

95

120

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018

Sentiment and Optimism

Michigan Consumer Sentiment Small Business Optimisim
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

19
70

19
72

19
75

19
78

19
81

19
83

19
86

19
89

19
92

19
94

19
97

20
00

20
03

20
05

20
08

20
11

20
14

20
16

20
19

Initial Jobless Claims

APPENDIX 1: ECONOMIC OUTLOOK  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

US EU UK JP

Real GDP Growth and Forecast

2018 2019 2020 2021

Since last quarter the World Economic forecasts have been 
revised downward globally. 

The trade-weighted strength of the Dollar has remained 
unchanged from the previous quarter. 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 16/09/2019 

Inflation forecasts have not moved much since the last 
quarterly update and broadly remain the same across the 
globe.  

Average: 360 

Please read important information at the end of the report For professional clients only 

Average: 85 

119



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  14 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

The US has significantly outperformed the rest of the world since 
2009, YTD markets have been relatively stable across the globe 
and have steadily climbed.  

The current S&P P/E is 19.6, higher the previous quarter with 
18.6 and now just above its long-term average. 

Implied volatility remains low and close to historical volatility 
indicating a confident equity market. 

Dividend yields show a slight upwards trend, with the UK showing 
a strong dividend yield over the last couple of years.  

Emerging Market Bond Index provides an attractive yield 
advantage. 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

5

10

15

20

25

30

S&P 500 P/E against S&P Performance

Series1 Series2
0.3

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Equity makret performance

S&P 500 Eurostoxx FTSE 100 Nikkei

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Historical Dividend Yield

S&P 500 Eurostoxx 50

FTSE 100 Hang Seng

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

VIX Volatilty

Real Vol VIX

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

Spreads versus US Treasuries

JPM Embi JPM High Yield JPM Investment Grade

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Performance of asset classes - Annualised 
returns %

Three years Five Years Ten Years Twenty Years

APPENDIX 2: MARKET OUTLOOK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Average: 19.5 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 18/09/2019 

Recent positive equity market performance has brought 1 
year performance in positive territory, over the long-term 
good returns can be observed across asset classes. 

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 
14 

P/E ratio S&P 500 

120



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

  15 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Jason Fletcher 
CIO 
 
Jason.Fletcher@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 170 
 
 

Colin Pratt 
ID Manager of 
Managers 
 
Colin.Pratt@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 209 
 

 

David Evans 
ID Passive Equities 
 
David.Evans@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 199 

 
 

Michael Marshall 
Director of Responsible 
Investing & Engagement 
 
Michael.Marshall@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 193 
 

Harinder Sandhu 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
Active Equities 
 
 
Harinder.Sandhu@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 184 

 

Mark Davies 
Senior Portfolio Manager  
Active Equities 
 
 
mark.davies@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 195 

 

 0.70% nominal yield on benchmark 10-year Gilt remains unattractive on a real 
return’s basis. 

 Following ECB rate move, some intermediate European Government Bonds look 
attractive hedged back to GBP. 

 G10 monetary policy likely to remain accommodative until there are signs of 
above-target inflation. 

 Potential for GBP to appreciate irrespective of the Brexit outcome 

 Expensive historically but good value versus bonds 
 Opportunities may arise from some global investors paring back interest in UK 
 Maturing pension schemes and better funding levels should support demand 
 Fears of nationalisation of infrastructure assets under a future Labour government 

could impact investment returns especially in light of political instability emanating 
from Brexit deal rejection 

 

 Heightened sensitivity to Brexit deterring some investors and slowing investment 
activity 

 Continued pressure on Retail valuations likely to accelerate as valuation 
departments assert their independence 

 Retail will present value at some point, just not yet 
 Occupational demand a mixed bag but slowing even in strongest sectors 
 Yield still attractive versus other asset classes 

 Fund raising environment remains robust, with substantial “dry powder” for 
investments; 

 Possibility of PE Managers overpaying for assets due to increased competition; 
 Favour PE downside protection (e.g. private debt) and high quality/low risk 
 Direct investment in defensive companies/sectors and/or upper quartile managers 
 Sell unattractive and legacy assets 

Mike Hardwick 
ID Property &  
Infrastructure 
 

Mike.Hardwick@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 552 089 
 

Vania Clayton 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
(Equity, Fixed Income, Derivatives) 
 
Vania.clayton@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 206 
 
 

Callum Campbell 
Head of Client Services & 
Stakeholder Relations 
 
Callum.Campbell@lgpccentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 204 
 
 

Gordon Ross 
Deputy CIO, 
ID Fixed Income 
Gordon.Ross@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 167 
 
 

 Sentiment for equities at extreme lows and positive sentiment to cash at extreme highs 
 Economic growth expectations set a low level with increased recession expectations 
 Valuations moderately expensive but attractive Dividend Yield of 2.9% in low interest rate environment 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3: INVESTMENT IDEAS – MEET THE TEAM  

 

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please contact Callum Campbell, Head of Client Services and Stakeholder Relations, if you would like to discuss the 
views outlined in this report with LGPS Central’s Investment Directors  

Selective Overweight Private Equity (J. Sidhu) 1

Neutral property – Negative Outlook (M. Hardwick) Overweight infrastructure (M. Hardwick) 3 4
. 

Underweight Fixed Income (G. Ross) 2
. 

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 

15 

5 Overweight Equities (J. Fletcher) 

121



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 7 
 

16 
 

 

GLOSSARY: 

GEMs   Global Emerging Markets 

ESG   Environmental, social and governance 

LTM   Last twelve months 

IG   Investment Grade 

VIX   S&P Implied Volatility Index 

IPO   Initial Public Offering 

OPEC   Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries 

FAANG   Facebook, Apple, Amazon, Netflix & Google 

UNPRI   Principles for Responsible Investment 

YTD   Year to date 

PE    Private Equity 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For professional clients only 
Please read important information at the end of the report 

122



 

13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes. 
Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject 
to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of LGPS Central 
Limited to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the 
future. The information and analysis contained in this 
publication have been compiled or arrived at from sources believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited 
does not make any representation as to their accuracy or completeness and does not accept any liability from 
loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and conclusions expressed in this document are solely those of 
the author. This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of 
LGPS Central Limited. 
 
All information is prepared as of 18.10.2019, if not stated otherwise. 
 
This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only. 
 
LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Registered in England Registered No: 10425159. 
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 

For professional clients only 

123



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8TH NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
  

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

 

 Purpose of the Report 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of the Annual Report 

and Accounts of the Pension Fund for the financial year 2018/19. 

 Background 

 
2. There is a statutory requirement for the Annual Report and Accounts to be available 

on or before 1st December 2019.  This is an opportunity for the Committee members 
to suggest any amendments which they feel are necessary to the Annual Report. The 
accounts are unqualified by the auditor. The Annual report and Accounts will go to the 
Pension Fund AGM on 18th November.  
 

 Recommendation 
 

3. The Committee is asked to approve the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 
for 2018/2019. 
 
Appendix 

 
4. Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
5. None Specific 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Jason Firth – telephone (0116) 305 7627 
Chris Tambini – telephone (0116) 305 6199 

125 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME LEICESTERSHIRE 

Administered by 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

Pension Fund Annual Report 

Year ended 31st March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

127



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

2 
 

CONTENTS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................... 3 

2.     SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS …………………………………………………………………………………..4 

3.      RISK MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..6 

4.      FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 

5.      PENSION SCHEME ADMINISTRATION……………………………………………………………………………………… 10 

6.      INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE……………………………………………………………………………….14 

7.      LGPS CENTRAL POOL………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..18 

8.      ACTUARIAL STATEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..23 

9.      FINANCIAL STATEMENTS……………………….…………………………………………………………………………………25 

10.    GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT ………………………………………………………………………………..26 

11.    APPENDIX A - SUMMARY VALUATION OF FUNDS PERFORMANCE………………………………….Attached 

12.    APPENDIX B - PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS……………………………………………………………………….Attached 

 

 
The fund has a number of policy statements that are available on the links below. They have not 
been reproduced within the Annual report, as when taken in combination are sizeable and some 
have previously been seen by the Pensions Committee. 
 
13. Statement of Accounts - https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-
spending/accounts-and-payments 
 
14. Funding Strategy Statement - 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-
statement-v2.pdf 
  
15. Statement of Investment Principles - 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvest
mentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf 
 
16. Administration & Communication Strategy - 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-

and-Comms-Strategy.pdf 

 

 

128

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvestmentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvestmentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Leicestershire County Council is the administering body for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) within Leicestershire. Leicestershire County Council has a statutory obligation to administer a 
Pension Fund for eligible employees of all Local Authorities within the County boundary and also the 
employees of certain other scheduled and admitted bodies.  The Fund does not cover teachers, police 
or fire-fighters as they have their own schemes. 
 
This report has been produced in accordance with Section 57 of the Local Government Pension 
Regulations 2013. It sets out the way in which the Pension Fund is managed both in relation to the 
administration of benefits and to the investment of the Fund’s assets. 
 
The benefits within the scheme are determined by regulation and guaranteed by statute.  The pension 
fund exists to help defray the cost of paying pension benefits.  Contributions to the pension scheme 
are made by both employees and employers.  Any new employee is automatically brought into the 
scheme unless they opt out. 
 
The Fund’s membership increased by approximately 1,800 during 2018/19 and at the year-end stood 
at just over 93,000. During the year there was a small relative decrease in preserved members, 
however this was more than offset by increases in the number of pensioners and active members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

129



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

4 
 

2. SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS 

The Local Pension Committee is responsible for the management of the Fund, and focuses primarily 
on investment issues and the important policies that the Fund has to have. The Committee comprises 
of five County Council members, two from Leicester City Council, two members representing the 
District Councils, one representative of De Montfort/Loughborough Universities and three non-voting 
staff representatives. In order to ensure continuity, staff representatives, who are chosen at the 
Fund’s Annual General Meeting, are appointed to the Committee for a three year period but 
arrangements have been made to ensure that at least one staff representative place becomes 
available each year. The Local Pension Committee sets the overall investment strategy for the Fund 
and will deal with all investment governance issues. The Committee meets quarterly and also has a 
separate annual meeting to consider strategic issues relevant to the Fund. 

 
The Investment Subcommittee consists of six voting members (the Chair, Vice Chair, one other elected 
member of the County Council, the Universities representative and one member representing each of 
the City and District Councils, all of whom are members of the Local Pension Committee) and one non-
voting staff representative. Its role is to consider action that is in-line with the strategic benchmark 
agreed by the Board and to take a pro-active approach to the Fund’s investments, and also to deal 
with ‘tactical’ issues associated with implementing the strategy, such as investment manager 
appointments and the timing of asset allocation changes. 

 
The Committee and Subcommittee receive investment advice from Hymans Robertson LLP and are 
supported by Independent Advisor, Clare Scott. Other consultants will also be utilised if there is felt 
to be an advantage to this. 
 
The Local Pension Board is a statutory committee required under LGPS Regulations. This board 
consists of three member (i.e. employee) representatives – elected in the same manner as the 
employee representatives on the Local Pension Committee - and three employer representatives, with 
the latter being two elected members of Leicestershire County Council and one from Leicester City 
Council. Their role is to assist the administering authority in ensuring compliance with Regulations and 
the requirements of the Pensions Regulator, and as such their focus is on pension administration 
issues.  
 
There is a statutory requirement for the Fund to maintain a Governance Compliance Statement, 
and this is replicated in full in section 10. 
 
At a national level the LGPS is governed by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
government (MHCLG) and the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). The LGPS also takes account of 
guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator and Pensions Ombudsman determinations. 
 
The role of the Scheme Advisory Board is to help and support MHCLG and administering authorities 
fulfil their statutory duties and obligations. SAB aims to be both reactive and proactive. It will seek 
to encourage best practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical and standards issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

130



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

5 
 

Scheme Management and Advisors 

Local Pension Committee  

Leicestershire County Council  Leicester City Council 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) Cllr. D. Bajaj 

Mr. T. Barkley CC (Vice-Chairman) Cllr. R. Govind 

Mr. P. Bedford CC   

Dr. S. Hill CC District Council Representatives 

Mr. M. Hunt CC Cllr. C. Frost  

  Cllr. M. Graham MBE 

Employee Representatives University Representative 

Mr. R. Bone Dr. P. Cross 

Mr. N. Booth   

Ms. J. Dean   

Local Pension Board 

Employer Representatives Employee Representatives 

Mr. D. Jennings CC (Chairman) Ms. C. Fairchild 

Mrs. R. Page CC (Vice-Chairman) Ms. D. Haller 

Cllr. E. Pantling Ms. D. Stobbs 

Officers responsible for the Fund 

Finance Pensions Administration 
Chris Tambini - Director of Resources - Leicestershire 
County Council  

Ian Howe - Pensions Manager - Leicestershire County 
Council 

Investment Managers 

Investments managed by LGPS central Pool   
LGPS Central  
 Global equities (Harris, Schroders & Union)   

Others:   

Adams Street Partners Kames Capital 

Ashmore Kravis Kohlberg Roberts 

Aspect Capital Legal & General Investment Management 

La Salle Investment Management Macquarie Investments 

Catapult Venture Managers Partners Group 

Colliers Capital UK Permal (formerly Fauchier Partners) 

Cristofferson, Robb & Company Pictet Asset Management 

Industry Funds Management M&G Investments 

Millennium Global Investments Limited Ruffer LLP 

Internally Managed Stafford Capital Partners 

JP Morgan Asset Management Standard Life Aberdeen 

    

Pooled investments 

LGPS Central 

Fund Custodian Legal Advisor 

JPMorgan, Bournemouth County Solicitor, Leicestershire County Council 

Independent Investment Advisor Actuary and Investment Consultant  

Clare Scott Hymans Robertson LLP, Glasgow 

Auditor AVC Provider 

Grant Thornton LLP Prudential, London 

Banker Scheme Administrator 

National Westminster Bank, Leicester Leicestershire County Council 

 

 

131



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

6 
 

3. Risk management 

There are many risks associated with the Local Government Pension Scheme, covering both the 

investment of the assets and the administration of the benefits payable. It is almost impossible 

to create a definitive list of these risks and many of the on-going risks are monitored by Officers. 

Regular reports are brought to the attention of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension 

Board to provide the latest position on key risks. 

The biggest risk for the Fund is that the value of assets held will ultimately be insufficient to pay 

for all the benefits due. This risk is quantified by a triennial actuarial valuation, which compares 

the value of assets to the accrued liabilities and sets employer contribution rates that are 

considered appropriate to ensure that all benefits can be paid; the Fund is currently in deficit 

(i.e. the value of assets is less than the accrued liabilities) so the employer contribution rates, at 

a whole Fund level, include payment for not only future service as it accrues but also 

contributions towards the deficit. Given that many benefits will not become payable for a long 

time, and taking into account the financial strength of most employers, the actuary is able to 

take a long-term approach to recovery of the deficit. 

The performance of the assets of the Fund is an important element in helping to maintain 

affordable employer contribution rates – the higher the long-term investment return achieved, 

the more of the benefits will be funded by investment returns rather than employer and 

employee contributions. A long-term approach is taken to agreeing an asset allocation 

benchmark, with both return and risk considered. The Fund’s asset allocation policy is reviewed 

annually. 

Individual investment manager performance is of lower importance than the asset allocation 

benchmark, but individual manager performance does have an impact and their performance is 

considered and reviewed regularly. When there are doubts about a manager’s ability to 

generate future performance that is in line with the Fund’s requirements/expectations 

appropriate action will be taken, and this may include the release of a manager. It is not 

generally optimal to change managers on a frequent basis due to the associated costs (which are 

mainly the impact of bid/offer spreads and charges within markets), and as a result changes are 

considered very carefully before they are agreed. 

The Local Pension Committee receives advice from the investment practice of Hymans 

Robertson and is supported by an independent investment advisor, and this assists in making 

decisions in respect of both overall investment policy, manager selection/retention and good 

governance. 

The Fund employs a large number of investment managers, and all of these invest in a specific 

asset class and can be termed ‘specialist’. Many of these managers are required to have external 

assessments of their systems and operations and these are reviewed to ensure that there are no 

issues which put the Fund’s investments at risk. 

Other investment managers that the fund employs are appointed by LGPS Central Ltd, a 

company which pools together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the 

132



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

7 
 

Midlands. Leicestershire County Council along with 8 other pension funds is a joint owner of the 

company.  The company has its own governance and risk management structures in place. 

Under the Pensions Regulations all employers must pay over contributions deducted from 

employees, plus the required employer contributions, to the administering authority within 

certain timescales. These payments are monitored closely, and immediate action is taken in the 

event of a late payment. Late payment does not put the benefits of individuals at risk. 

Many of the risks associated with providing efficient and cost-effective Pensions Administration 

are mitigated by ensuring that officers involved in LGPS are knowledgeable and well-trained on 

an on-going basis. Ensuring that employers understand their responsibilities to the Fund and 

fulfil them efficiently is also crucial, and an on-going programme of support for them is in place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

133



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

8 
 

4. Financial Performance 

Non-investment cash inflows for the fund come via contributions from Employers.  There were a 

small number of incidences of late payment of contributions by employers over the year, and these 

were exclusively because of administrative failings on their part. On each occasion the employer 

was reminded of their responsibilities, and it was not felt necessary to levy interest on overdue 

contributions.  Employer contributions ranged from 15.0% to 33.0% with average employer rate 

being 23.8%. 

 

Administrative costs were at £7.1m for the year compared to £6.1m in the previous year (2017/18). 

This increase was largely due to additional investment in a new pensions administration system. 

Investment management fees are variable as they are based on market values that are impossible 

to predict in advance. Action was taken during the year to reduce investment management costs 

where there was opportunity to do so.  There were no material movements in non-investment 

assets and liabilities.  

 

The general trend of overall net cash flows is monitored, whether these are derived from 

investment or non-investment related sources. Non-investment cash flows were positive by almost 

£26m in 2018/19, compared to £22m in 2017/18. In addition, the Fund received investment income 

of £37m. In the context of the funds, £4 billion of assets, the cash flow movements are not material. 

Any short-term cash surpluses or shortfall can be managed through the funds passive investments 

that have good levels of liquidity. 

 

Cash flows are unlikely to reduce in the near future, despite cuts to budgets within Local Authorities 

that could reduce membership (and hence employee/employer contributions). Whilst benefits 

paid are increasing, due to increasing numbers of pensioners and inflation-linked annual increases, 

the value of this increase is offset by the increasing rate of employers’ contribution. A recent 

Government consultation indicated that the Universities and Colleges could cease their offer of 

LGPS to non-academic staff this could result in a reduction in the available cashflow and will require 

monitoring.  The Fund also has significant investments in accumulation funds where the investment 

income is reinvested rather than distributed, and these could, if required, be changed to income 

producing funds with the generation of an extra £30m+ cash flow p.a. 

The overall impact of a strong positive cash flow is that the Fund has flexibility in the selection of 
investments and fewer restrictions due to liquidity concerns. There are strong controls in place for 
ensuring that all income due is received and that benefits are not overpaid. A monthly automated 
check of pensioners is carried out through a reliable tracing agency to ensure that pensions cease 
upon death, and the Fund has a very low incidence of overpayments that occur either as a result 
of fraud, late notification or error. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

9 
 

Details of contributions in and payments out of the fund are shown below: 
 

2017/18   2018/19 

£m Payments in: £m 

(139.2) Employer Contributions (149.5) 

(38.3) Member Contributions (39.9) 

(12.4) 
Transfers in From Other Pension 
funds (10.3) 

(189.9) Total Inflows (199.7) 

     

  Payments out:   

115.0 Pensions 124.8 

31.8 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 32.5 

3.1 Lump Sum Death Benefits 4.6 

18.0 
Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers 11.9 

167.9  173.8 

     

(22.0) Net Cash (inflows) (25.9) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

135



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

10 
 

5. Pension Scheme Administration 

The number of scheme members who are either receiving a benefit or who have a future 
entitlement to one increased by 1,874 over the course of the year. This figure excludes the 4,000+ 
members who have no entitlement to a benefit from the fund but do retain the right to either a 
refund of contributions or a transfer to an alternative pension arrangement.  
 
Active membership increased by 774 from 33,638 to 34,412.  
Pensioners increased by 1,503 from 26,470 to 27,973.  
Preserved membership decreased by 403 from 31,064 to 30,661.  
 
The Fund’s employers have completed the auto enrolment process, with many of the larger 
employers completing this prior to 2017/18. The auto enrolment process forces employing bodies 
to bring almost all employees that are eligible to join the LGPS but are not currently scheme 
members into the scheme. This is reflected by the increase in active members over the past 5 years.  
 

The number of pensioners has been increasing at a rate of 4% per annum over the past 5 years, a 

trend that is expected to continue. 

 

Membership numbers over the last 5 years are shown in the graph below:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

34,000

36,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contributors

Pensioners

Preserved Benefit

  % increase over 5 years 
Contributors 5.3% 
Pensioners 21.5% 
Preserved Benefit 13.4% 

136



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

11 
 

Leicestershire Pension Fund contributions: 

 

There were 1,503 new pensioners in 2018/19 split out as follows: 

  
Ill 

Health 
Early 

Retirement 
Normal 

Retirement Other Total 

2018/19 New 
Pensioners 41 1,135 64 263 1,503 

 

The Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund provides services in line with the requirements of 

a fund of this nature. This includes the correspondence with members, calculation of benefits, 

maintenance of members records and data and Pension payments through the payroll service.  A 

service is also provided for members to log onto the online member site and a service for employers 

to upload member data monthly. 

The fund has 27.9 full time equivalent working in Pension Scheme Administration. Scheme 

membership is 93,000 equating to 3,340 members per FTE. 

The fund has several performance indicators in respect of administration performance, which are split 
between speed of processes and customer satisfaction. These are reported on a quarterly basis to the 
Local Pension Board.  
 
 

  
 Employer 

Contributions  
 Employee 

Contributions  
Employer Name    
  £000 £000 
Leicester City Council                       40,445                  10,729  
Leicestershire CC                       33,265                    8,755  
The Chief Constable & The OPCC                         8,798                    2,675  
Leics De Montfort University                         8,281                    2,683  
Loughborough University                         5,627                    1,524  
Charnwood Borough Council                         3,473                        769  
North West Leics DC                         3,069                        768  
Rutland CC                         2,481                        723  
Hinckley and Bosworth BC                         2,308                        641  
Blaby District Council                         2,150                        495  
ESPO                         1,714                        470  
Leics Fire Service (Civilians)                             882                        251  
Harborough District Council                         1,506                        348  
Oadby and Wigston BC                         1,152                        237  
Melton BC                         1,105                        260  
Academies, Free and Studio Schools                       24,821                    6,290  
FE and Sixth Form colleges                         5,634                    1,622  
Other organisations                         2,045                        484  
Town & Parish Councils                             725                        168  
Total                    149,481                  39,892  

137



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

12 
 

Leicestershire Pension Fund key administrative Performance Statistics 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other fund information: 

Help desk arrangements and information are as follows: 

Contact Type From To Contact 

MSS Helpdesk Phones 8:00am 17:00pm 
0116 
3057886 

Benefits Helpdesk 
Phone 8:00am 17:00am 

0116 
3054000 

Full Year - 1 April 2018 to 

31 March 2019               

Business Process 

Perspective Target 
    

Customer Perspective - 

Feedback Target 
    

Retirement Benefits 

notified to members within 

10 working days of 

paperwork received 92% 98% ▲ 

Establish members 

understanding of info 

provided - rated at least 

mainly ok or clear 95% 98% ▲ 

Pension payments made 

within 10 working days of 

receiving election 95% 95% ▲ 

Experience of dealing with 

Section - rated at least good 

or excellent 95% 93% ► 

Death benefits/payments 

sent to dependant within 

10 working days of 

notification 90% 90% ▲ 

Establish members thoughts 

on the amount of info 

provided - rated as about 

right 92% 96% ▲ 

        

Establish the way members 

are treated - rated as polite 

or extremely polite 97% 99% ▲ 

Good or better than 

target ▲     

Email response - 

understandable 95% 95% ▲ 

Close to target ►     

Email response - content 

detail 92% 94% ▲ 

Below target ▼     Email response - timeliness  92% 97% ▲ 

Accuracy of Data Common Data 99.20% 

  Scheme Specific (Conditional Data) 88.70% 

Average Cases Per Member of Staff Average per FTE (Completed tasks) 491 

Complaints 
5 stage 2 IDRP complaints in 
2018/19 

Less than 
0.5% 

Types of cases dealt with (only KPI 
tasks) Deaths 923 

  Pension Estimate 1,039 

  CETV Estimate 295 

  Retirement 2,585 

  Deferred Benefits 1,643 

  Transfers in and Out 119 

  Calculate and Pay a Refund 892 

  Formal notification of Joining 6,870 

138



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

13 
 

Pensions Benefits Queries Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk 

Email MSS Queries PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk 

General Pensions Queries Pensions@leics.gov.uk 

  

Address Pensions Section 

 Leicestershire County Council 

 County Hall 

 Glenfield 

 Leicester 

 LE3 8RB 
 

Internal Disputes 

If you are not satisfied with any decision given by either the Pension Section or your employer/ former 

employer, relating to your Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) benefits, you may appeal in 

writing under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP). You must write within 6 months of 

receiving the decision.  

Any points of difference should firstly be addressed with the Pensions Office on an informal basis. You 

can write to: 

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Section, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester, LE3 8RB 

Or, contact the Pensions Officer who has dealt with your case. Their name and contact details will be 

on your correspondence. 

We will then try to resolve the matter for you. Should you still be unhappy and wish to take the matter 

further you can request an information sheet and form to complete. This will contain the name and 

address of the ‘Specified Person’ nominated by your employer or former employer who would 

formally investigate your complaint. 

Following this, if you are still dissatisfied with their decision, a ‘second stage’ of complaint can be 

requested, which will be looked at by the Legal Services team at Leicestershire County Council in most 

cases. 

Should you be dissatisfied with the outcome of this, further details of the next stages of complaint 

would be provided at the time, should this be necessary. 

Further advice can be found at the following: 

   

   

   

   

   

139

mailto:Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk
mailto:PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Pensions@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

14 
 

6. INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE  

At the January 2019 meeting of the Local Pension Committee there were a number of relatively minor 

changes made to the Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark. At the year end the benchmark in 

place was: 

 

The setting of the strategic benchmark is the most important decision that the Committee makes. It 

is this decision that will have by far the most significant impact onto the investment return achieved 

and approximately 90% of the Fund’s overall risk is encompassed within the choice of benchmark. 

Individual investment manager choices are important as they can produce added value by 

outperforming their benchmarks, but their influence is small in comparison to the choice of 

benchmark. 

Although some investments have moved over to LGPS central as part of asset pooling, the Local 

Pension Committee still retain full responsibility for asset allocation and will continue to be 

accountable for the majority of the Fund’s investment performance. 

A comprehensive analysis of investment holdings by manager and their associated performance is 

provided in Appendix A.  A summary is provided below: 

 1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 
  Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 6.9 7.2 13.6 12.5 
Income Assets 6.6 5.4 10.3 

 

 

 

7.3 
Alternative 0.5 4.9 5.0 4.9 
TOTAL FUND 5.2 6.6 10.6 9.6 

 

The Fund has a large number of investment managers and it is inevitable that some of them will have 

periods of disappointing performance – sometimes this disappointing performance can last multiple 

years, and can be the result of a particular investment ‘style’ not being in favour with market 

sentiment. It is important to understand why managers are performing as they are – regardless of 

whether this is above or below their benchmark – and to assess whether this is of cause for concern. 

Knee-jerk reactions that are based on relatively short periods of poor performance are not sensible, 

and understanding the reasons for poor performance is vital. It is implausible to believe that all 

managers appointed by the Fund can simultaneously perform well, the Fund needs to have a 

140



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

15 
 

reasonable spread of management styles and asset classes and occasionally a manager is chosen 

specifically because they are different to other managers. 

It is worth noting the performance of the following managers at the end of the 2018/19 financial year: 

 Adams Street – Private Equity, 9.1% excess return over benchmark. The benchmark of 

listed markets can be misleading, in the short-term, due to the less frequent valuations 

of private equity assets. As a riskier asset class they have greater potential volatility.  

The 3-year return is more representative and exceeds benchmark by 0.6%. 

 IFM and KKR - global infrastructure, both managers show 10%+ return over benchmark. 

Similarly to private equity a long-term view needs to be taken, potentially incorporating the 

initial investment period. 

 Aspect Capital Partners – Targeted Return, (12.7%) below benchmark. The nature of the 

product is highly volatile, and some reassurance can be gained from the long-term 

performance of the manager (exceeds benchmark over 5-years). In the January strategy 

review the fit of the product in the portfolio was considered and the diversification from 

equity stressed as a key benefit. LGPS Central’s development of a Target Return product will 

provide a good opportunity to consider the Fund’s approach to this class. 

 Christofferson Robb & Company –Other Opportunities - 13.4% excess return over benchmark. 

The other opportunities allocation targets a higher return, at a higher level of risk. The 

investments in the opportunities area should be looked at as a collective, as not all will 

perform to target. 

The Local Pension Committee and Investment Subcommittee will continue to monitor the 

performance of managers and make changes when it is deemed appropriate, although the pooling of 

investments within the Local Government Pension Scheme mentioned earlier in this report means 

that there needs to be a greater awareness of when action is appropriate and when it is not and indeed 

action will be taken at a pooled level rather than an individual pension fund level. Since 1st April 2014 

all investment performance has been measured net of investment management fees and the figures 

quoted above are, therefore, after taking these into account. 

The management of the individual asset classes is carried out as follows:  
 
Equities  
 
The Fund has a global passive equity manager (Legal & General) that manages against both market 
capitalisation benchmarks and also against alternative benchmarks. There is also a specialist emerging 
market equity manager (Delaware Investments). During the 2018/19 financial year Global equity 
investments transitioned from Kleinworth Benson and Kempen to the LGPS Central Pool in the LGPS 
Global Active Equity Fund. 
 
Within equities the Fund also has private equity investments (i.e. investment in unquoted companies), 

the vast majority of which is managed on a global basis by Adams Street Partners.  

 
 

141



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

16 
 

Real Income Fund 
 
Property - Colliers Capital UK manage a directly owned property portfolio but have scope to invest in 
specialist pooled property funds which are in areas that they find attractive but would not be 
practical to buy directly, usually due to the size of individual investments (for example leisure 
complexes based around multiplex cinemas or Central London offices).  
La Salle Investment Management manage a portfolio of pooled property funds, which includes some 
covering a wide range of property types and some which are specialist in nature. Via their ability to 
research the underlying holdings and the skills of the property managers, it is expected that they will 
add value to the Fund.  
The Fund has also invested in two stand-alone property ‘recovery’ funds, managed by Kames Capital.  
 
Inflation-linked  
UK inflation is one of the Fund’s biggest risks, due to the direct link to benefits and the less-direct 
link to salary growth of active members. Protecting against this risk is, therefore, sensible but it is 
also very expensive – it would involve taking money out of assets that are seeking investment 
growth (e.g. equities) and investing it in safer, and therefore lower-returning, index-linked bonds. 
This would push up employers’ contribution rates to levels which are unaffordable, so cannot be 
implemented in a large scale manner.  
The most natural asset for protecting the Fund against its inflation risk is UK Government index-
linked bonds, but these are expensive as there are a number of price-insensitive buyers and a lack of 
supply. As a result the Fund has a three-pronged approach to obtaining some protection against 
inflation – investment in infrastructure and timberland (both of which have a good historic link to 
inflation, and also good return prospects), and also a global government index-linked portfolio.  
Kames Capital manages a portfolio of global index-linked stocks. The Fund has three global 
infrastructure managers - IFM, KKR and JPMorgan - whilst the timberland investment is managed by 
Stafford Timberland 
 
Alternative Assets  
 
Targeted return - The Fund’s targeted return exposure can generally be categorised as investments 
that are seeking to make a return of 4% p.a. more than could be achieved by an investment in cash 
(i.e. only slightly below the expected long-term return from equities), and with the expectation that 
the return will be achieved with relatively low volatility. There are many different ways of achieving 
this goal and the Fund has three different managers in this area - Aspect Capital Partners, Ruffer and 
Pictet Asset Management. 
 
Credit - The major exposure within credit is in a private debt fund managed by Partners Group, 
although there are also modest exposures to a ‘best ideas’ bond fund managed by JPMorgan .The 
Fund’s exposure to Emerging Market Debt is in a pooled fund manged by emerging market specialist 
manager Ashmore. 
 
Other opportunities Fund - The ‘Other’ weighting is often referred to as the ‘opportunity pool’. The 
broad principle of these investments is that they will offer the prospect of excellent returns, but they 
will not generally fit neatly into the Fund’s strategic benchmark. The high returns will often be 
available as a result of a market disconnection or a misunderstanding of the risks and this situation 
will not last indefinitely, and hence the opportunities cannot be considered for inclusion within the 
strategic benchmark. At the year-end the opportunity pool consisted of three different funds 
managed by M & G that have virtually identical investment aims. The intention is for the manager to 
utilise their expertise in restructuring the balance sheets of companies that are stressed, to the 
advantage of bond holders.  

142



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

17 
 

Other portfolios  
The Fund also has a currency portfolio that looks to profit from relative movements in currency 

values, which is managed by Millennium. No ‘cash backing’ is required, and this portfolio is not 

included within the strategic asset allocation benchmark. 

Foreign Exchange hedging is undertaken by Kames Capital to reduce the impact of currency 

fluctuations, rather than being held for an investment return. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

18 
 

7. LGPS Central Pool 

As mentioned earlier in the report the Fund is an investor in LGPS Central Ltd, a company which pools 

together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the Midlands. Leicestershire County 

Council along with 8 other funds is a joint owner of the company.  The company has its own 

governance and risk management structures in place.  The aim of the Company is to use the combined 

buying power of its partner funds to reduce costs, improve investment returns and widen the range 

of available asset classes for investment – all for the benefit of local government pensioners, 

employees and employers. 

LGPS Central ltd is based in Wolverhampton and their details can be found below: 

Address: 
LGPS Central Ltd,  
Mander House,  
Mander Centre,  
Wolverhampton,  
WV1 3NB 
 
Website: https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk 
e-mail: enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk 
 
During the 2018/19 financial year, 3 global equity investments were made via the pool by the 
Leicestershire Fund as follows: 

  
Value at 

31st March 2019 
LGPS Central  £m 
Harris 117.7 
Schroders 103.5 
Union 112.0 
Total 333.2 

 
As at 31st March 2019 all other assets held by the fund were held outside the Pool. However, £184m 
was invested into emerging markets equity funds via the pool in July 2019. 

 
There are also advisory and executions mandates held with the pool for the following assets: 

  

  Assets under 
management 

  £ 
Targeted Return          530,753,065  
Property           395,976,132  
Fixed Income          110,684,304  

 
 
 

 

 

144

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/
mailto:enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

19 
 

Post Pooling report 

The information request set out below reflects the information required by Partner Funds to meet the 

CIPFA Annual Report Pooling Disclosures in 2018/19.  Please note that the information request reflects 

the start-up nature of LGPSC, and the level and complexity of the disclosures required will increase in 

later years.   

The analysis provided by LGPSC relates to the Leicestershire Pension Fund.  The provision of the 

information by LGPSC to each Partner Fund should ensure consistent reporting across Partner Funds, 

and allow LGPSC to aggregate, and reconcile back the individual Partner Fund disclosures, to the 

Company’s financial statements. 

 
Set up costs 
Leicestershire’s share of the set-up cost associated with the pool were as follows: 

£000 Cumulative 
2014/15 to 
2018/19 Total  

Set Up Costs  

Recruitment 0 

Procurement 27 

Professional Fees 2 

IT 187 

Staff Costs 97 

Other Costs  142 

 Premises 49 

 Staffing-Related Costs 5 

 Travel and Expenses 1 

 Training and Events 1 

 FCA Fees 1 

 General Admin Costs 2 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 514 

Share Capital 1315 

Debt 685 

Other Costs  

Set-Up Costs After Funding 2514 

  

 
 

£000 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Cumulative 

Total 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 95 419 - 514 

Set-Up Costs After Funding 95 2,419 - 2,514 

Transition Costs     

 
 
 
 

145



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

20 
 

Recharges By Partner Funds to LGPSC in respect of Set-Up Costs 

£000 At 1 April-
18 

Recharges in  
Year 

Settled in 
Year 

At 31 March-
19 

Set-Up Cost Recharges 502 - (502) - 

 
Governance, Operator and Product Development Charged by LGPSC to Partner Funds 

£000 At 1 April-
18 

Charges in 
Year 

Settled in 
Year 

At 31 March-
19 

Governance Costs - 198 (170) 28 

Operator Costs - 406 (345) 61 

IMMC  - 16 - 16 

Product Development Costs - 102 (56) 46 

Total - 722 (571) 151 

 
 
The following Investment management costs have been charged by the pool to the Leicestershire 
Fund. 
 

 £000 Direct Total Bps 
Charge* 

1 Ad Valorem 46 46 11.64 

2 Performance - -  

3 Research - -  

4 PRIIPS Compliance - -  

5 Other (provide details) - -  

 Management Fees 46 46 11.64 

6 Commissions 4 4 1.14 

7 Acquisition/issue costs - -  

8 Disposal costs - -  

9 Registration/filling fees - -  

10 Taxes and Stamp Duty 1 1 0.35 

11 Other (provide details) - -  

 Transaction Costs 6 6 1.49 

     

12 Custody/Depositary 3 3 0.82 

13 Other (provide details)    

  Fund Accounting 1 1 0.15 

  Transfer Agent <1 <1 0.06 

  External Audit <1 <1 0.03 

 Total Costs 56 56 14.19 

 
*BPS= Basis points charged based on Assets under Management 

146



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

21 
 

£000  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 Total 

2018/19 

Costs 

  AUM at 

31 March 

2019 £m 

2018/19 

Bps 

Charge 

Global Multi-Manager  42     4    1  3 1 52   340 13.24 

ACS Sub-Funds  42     4    1  3 1 52   340  

Private Equity 2018 V’tage  4             4    22.65 

Alternative Vehicles   4             4     

Total  46     4    1  3 1 56   340 14.20 

 
 
The above table does not include advisory and execution mandates.  The costs for these did not start coming through to the fund till the 2019/20 financial 
year. 
Items 1 – 13 relate to the categories highlighted in the management costs table. 

Asset Under Management & Performance by Product / Service 

£000  AUM At  
1 April-18 £m 

AUM At  
31 March-19 £m 

 One Year Gross 
Performance % (*) 

One Year Net 
Performance % (*) 

Passive Benchmark 
Used 

One Year Passive 
Index % (*) 

Global Ex-UK Passive         

UK Passive         

Dividend Growth Fund         

Global Multi-Manager  0 340  2.60 2.59 FT: All World 3.43 

ACS Sub-Funds  0 340      

         

Private Equity 2018 Vintage  0 0      

Alternative Vehicles   0       

         

Total  0 340      

(*) Inception to 31 March 2019 

147



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

22 
 

Transition Costs 

Please note that Partner Funds are currently investigating the methodology which will be used to 

quantify transition costs for the purposes of the CIPFA Annual Report Pooling Disclosures.  The 

details provided reconcile the starting unit price of £100 to the unit price when the assets are 

handed over to the manage 

£000 Global Multi-
Manager Sub-

Fund 

Starting Unit Price (A) 100.00 

Manager Hand-Over Unit Price (B) 98.22 

Change in Unit Price (B-A/A = C) (1.78%) 

Index Performance (D) (1.24%) 

Out/Under Performance (C-D) (0.54%) 

Total Transition Costs = Financial Impact of Out/Under Performance Calculated Above  

  

Out/Under Performance Comprised of:  

(1) Out/Under-performance between assets entering sub-fund and point of transition   (0.12%) 

(2) Transition Costs/implementation Shortfall as reported by the Transition Manager  

- Commissions (0.016%) 

- Taxes (0.033%) 

- Market Impact (0.118%) 

- Spread (0.024%) 

- Forex + 0.011% 

- Opportunity Cost (0.126%) 

- Transfer Taxes (0.023%) 

- Other (provide details)  

(3) Out/Under-performance between transition commencement and manager handover (0.091%) 

Total Transition Costs Using Above Methodology  

148



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

23 
 

8. Actuarial Statement 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”)                                   

Actuarial Statement for 2018/19 

This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.   It has been prepared at the request of the Administering 

Authority of the Fund for the purpose of complying with the aforementioned regulation.  

Description of Funding Policy 

The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), 

effective from 15 February 2019.  In summary, the key funding principles are as follows: 

• to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long term view.  This will ensure 

that sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due 

for payment; 

• to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

• to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund by 

recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which 

balances risk and return (NB. this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers); 

• to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates.  

This involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each 

employer can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

• to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council 

Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the 

solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.  For employers whose covenant was 

considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised 

to return their portion of the Fund to full funding over 20 years if the valuation assumptions are borne 

out.  Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate that if these contribution rates 

are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the FSS, there is still at least a 

66% chance that the Fund will return to full funding over 20 years. 

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation 

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, 

which at 31 March 2016 were valued at £3,164 million, were sufficient to meet 76.2% of the liabilities 

(i.e. the present value of promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit 

at the 2016 valuation was £989 million. 

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full 

funding within a specified time period as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the 

period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out 

in its FSS.   

149



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

24 
 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities 

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2016 valuation report. 

Method 

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable 

membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to 

retirement or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership. 

Assumptions 

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of 

the Fund assets at their market value.  

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows: 

Financial assumptions 31 March 2016 

Discount rate 4.0% 

Salary increase assumption 3.2% 

Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.1% 

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy 

assumptions are based on forecasts my by the Fund’s actuary with improvements in line with the CMI 

2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has reached a peak and will converge to long 

term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 

are as follows:  

        

Males Females 

Current Pensioners  22.1 years  24.3 years 

Future Pensioners*  23.8 years  26.2 years 

*Aged 45 at the 2016 Valuation. 

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from the 

Administering Authority to the Fund.  

Experience over the period since 31 March 2016 

Since the last formal valuation strong asset returns have been secured, however real bond yields have 

fallen indicating that future returns are likely to be lower than previous expected.  Both events are of 

broadly similar magnitude with regards to the impact on the funding position. The next actuarial 

valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also be 

reviewed at that time.  

Richard Warden FFA 
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 
26 April 2019 
Hymans Robertson LLP20 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 6DB 

150



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

25 
 

 
9. Financial Statements  
 
The funds financial statements are attached in Appendix B to this report. The financial statements 
have been audited and an unqualified audit opinion given.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

26 
 

10.             GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This is the governance compliance statement of the Leicestershire Pension Fund. The Fund 

is a statutory one that is set up under an Act of Parliament and the administering authority 

is Leicestershire County Council (the Council). This statement has been prepared as required 

by the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 2007. 

2.0 FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 Leicestershire County Council has delegated the responsibility for decisions relating to the 

investment of the Fund’s assets to the Local Pension Committee (the LPC). This delegation 

to a specialist committee is in line with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA). 

2.2 The LPC meets five times a year and its members act in a quasi-trustee capacity. One of these 

meetings is specifically used to focus entirely on investment strategy. No substantive issues 

of investment policy will be carried out without the prior agreement of the LPC or, in extreme 

circumstances and where it is impractical to bring a matter to the LPC, following consultation 

with the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

2.3 The LPC may delegate certain actions to the Director of Resources. It is the expectation of 

the LPC that some of the more administrative matters relating to investment management, 

such as the appointment of a custodian, are carried out by the Director of Resources. 

2.4 An Investment Subcommittee, with its members drawn from the LPC, is a decision-making 

Committee and will generally deal with more technical aspects of investment (such as 

looking at potential new investment opportunities or dealing with the appointment of new 

investment managers). 

2.5 Pensions Administration issues are the responsibility of the Local Pension Board, where this 

is relevant to their role of assisting the administering authority to meet the requirements of 

Regulations or the Pension Regulator. Many of the day-to-day pension administration issues 

are the responsibility of the Director of Resources. 

3.0 REPRESENTATION 

3.1 The LPC is made up of 13 members – 5 members representing Leicestershire County Council, 

2 representing Leicester City Council, 2 jointly representing the District Councils, 1 jointly 

representing De Montfort/Loughborough Universities and 3 non-voting staff 

representatives. The 10 voting members are appointed using the due political process or, in 

the case of the two universities, by joint arrangement. There will be at least one staff 

representative position available annually and a vote will be held to fill any vacancies at the 

Annual Meeting of the Fund. 

3.2  The LPB is made up of 6 members – 3 employer representatives (2 elected politicians of 

Leicestershire County Council and 1 from Leicester City Council) and 3 member 

152



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

27 
 

representatives. There will be at least one member representative position available 

annually and a vote will be held to fill any vacancies at the Annual Meeting of the Fund. 

4.0 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

4.1 An Annual Meeting of the Pension Fund is held annually, usually in January, to which all 

employee members and other interested parties are welcome. The purpose of the meeting 

is to present the Annual Report of the Fund and to report on current issues, as well as to 

elect staff representatives for any vacant positions on the LPC and member representatives 

for any vacant positions on the LPB. 

4.2 A number of other initiatives to involve stakeholders also take place, including: 

- Presentations by the Fund/Actuary to employing bodies; 
- Pensions roadshows at various venues; 
- The Annual Report and Account of the Pension Fund; 
- Other communications to members. 
 

5.0 REVIEW AND COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE 

5.1 This statement will be kept under review and will be revised and published following any 

material change in the governance arrangements of the Pension Fund. 

                 5.2 The regulations require a statement as to the extent to which the governance arrangements 

comply with guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This guidance contains a number of 

best practice principles and these are shown below with the assessment of compliance. 

Principle Compliance/Comments 

Structure  

                               The strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with the main 

committee established by the appointing council. 

Fully compliant 

                                  That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted 

bodies and scheme members are members of the committee. 

Fully compliant 

                                 That where a secondary committee has been established, the 

structure ensures effective communication across both levels. 

Fully Compliant 

                                  That where a secondary committee has been established, at least 

one seat on the main committee is allocated for a member of the 

secondary committee 

                           All Investment Subcommittee 

will be full LPC members, 

so Fully Compliant 

Representation  

153



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

28 
 

                             That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be 

represented within the main committee structure (including 

employing authorities, scheme members, independent professional 

observers and expert advisors) 

Fully Compliant 

                                     That where lay members sit on a main committee, they are treated 

equally and are given full opportunity to contribute to decision 

making, with or without voting rights 

Fully Compliant 

Selection and Role of Lay Members  

                               That committee members are fully aware of their status, role and 

function they are required to perform. 

Fully Compliant 

Voting  

                                   The policy of the administering authority on voting rights is clear and 

transparent, including the justification for not extended voting rights 

to certain groups 

Fully Compliant 

Training/Facility Time/Expenses  

                          That the policy applies equally to all members of committees Fully Compliant 

Meetings (frequency/quorum)  

That the main committee meet at least quarterly Fully Compliant 

                              That secondary committees meet at least twice a year and the 

meetings are synchronised with the main committee 

                          The Investment 

Subcommittee meets 

regularly, so Fully 

Compliant 

                                 If lay members are not included in formal governance arrangements, 

a forum is available outside of these arrangements by which their 

interests can be represented 

                                Lay members are included 

on main committee, so 

Not Relevant 

Access  

                                          That, subject to any rules in the Council’s constitution, all 

members have equal access to committee papers, documents and 

advice that falls to be considered by the main committee 

Fully Compliant 

Scope  

                                         That administering authorities have taken steps to bring wider 

scheme issues within the scope of the governance arrangements 

Fully Compliant 

Publicity  

154



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

29 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                    That the administering authority have published details of their 

governance arrangements in such a way that stakeholders with an 

interest in the way in which the scheme is governed can express an 

interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements 

                            Fully Compliant. A copy of 

this statement has been 

sent to all employing 

authorities. 

155



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis  

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund  Period ending 31st March 2019

Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

157



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q1 2019 (Sterling) 

 
After a disappointing quarter and year ended December 2018 most markets bounced back in the quarter ended March 31 2019 to an extent that left the losses posted 
in 2018 largely recovered. 
 
The last quarter of 2018 saw markets fall due largely to increase uncertainty caused by a number of factors including central banks discussing raising rates and / or easing 
quantitative easing, slower global economic growth (of particular note was China) which some saw as being a precursor to a potential recession, trade war issues (US 
and China), increased market volatility, and some geopolitical concerns. The first quarter of 2019 saw many of these concerns reduce as the US authorities reduced the 
likelihood of short term interest rate hikes, the Chinese have undertaken measures to reduce the decline in economic growth due to monetary tightening, there have 
been positive steps gained in global trade discussions and inflation seems muted in developed markets. The response to this has been a rise global markets.  
 
Looking forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic growth and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly 
vulnerable. Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 2021 as the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive 
central bank actions and benign inflation. However despite this quarter many market commentators are discussing more defensive strategies going forwards, and many 
are also viewing emerging markets positively. 
 
 

 

1

158



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Within the UK the obsession and lack of resolution with Brexit has continued through the quarter. This continues to lower the economic growth outlook and reduce the 
willingness of both companies and investment managers to invest in the UK. The ‘high street’ sector continues to struggle with high costs and lower revenues whilst 
business is still reviewing how to proceed in the future. Despite posting significant equity market gains the concerns about the future outlook helps to explain the 
relatively lack lustre performance of UK stockmarkets when compared to many others. The more positive global outlook this quarter saw growth outperform value 
however the market return was very sector specific led by Technology, Basic Materials and Consumer Goods (except for Autos). Given market events over the last 12 
months UK equities have shown mixed results over time, however Technology Healthcare, Basic Materials and Oil & Gas sectors have been strong performers whilst 
Financials, Industrials, Consumer Goods and Consumer Services have dragged. 
 

 
 
Market volatility has continued to increase as a result of the outlook and in particular the risk levels between asset classes has also increased as diversification benefits 
reduce. Many commentators expect this to continue throughout 2019. 
 
For further information 
If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please contact Nick Kent or 
Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, comments and ideas 

contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

2

159

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.3bn

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

Benchmark Risk 5.5 5.3 5.3

Portfolio Risk 5.5 5.6 5.6

Excess Return -0.6 -1.2

Active Risk 1.8 1.7 1.7

-1.2 0.9

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return 5.0 5.2 5.2 10.4

Benchmark Return 5.7 6.4 6.4 9.5

Excess Return Analysis (%)

9.5

QTR

10.4

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending March 2019

0.9

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

-2.0

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

2.8%

5.6%

16.7%

13.9%

38.9%

5.6% 5.6%

11.1%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

160



Market Value: 4.3bn

#

0.0

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total Inflation 

Linked

0.0

0.0

1.5

-0.1

3.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1 -0.5

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-0.6

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

-0.1

0.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

100.0

100.0 11.4

Stock Selection

100.0

100.0

4.6

-0.30.0 0.0

-0.2

3.2

3.3

15.9

0.4

9.6

-9.3

1.9

-0.6

-0.1

0.5

9.8

0.0

0.0

10.0

26.5

-0.2

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

5.7

100.0

Total Real 

Income

-0.5 0.0

2.3

100.0 25.7

-0.5

-0.4

-0.3

8.0

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

-0.8

Benchmark Return 5.2

-0.6

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

-0.6

Total Fund 

(Gross)

9.6

Excess Return

100.0

5.0 8.85.1

5.7

44.0 10.0

0.0

-0.9

44.1100.0

99.3

-0.4

4.0

43.7

98.9 98.9

8.9

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

-0.1

44.0

Excess Return -0.6

99.3

-0.1

43.0

46.0

45.1

46.0

-0.1

-0.3

0.0

0.5

16.5

14.5

5.0

9.3

24.5

24.8 15.64.7

4.0

0.4

0.1

0.0

25.5

0.1

10.0

10.0

0.5

0.0

13.0

2.3

1.4

3.1

11.8

0.9

0.1

25.5

0.4

24.5

24.7

0.0

12.4

0.0

3.4

Total Other 

Opportunities

1.3

9.3

Total 

Targeted 

Return

4.3

1.2

2.5

0.0

Total 

Alternatives

3.1

1.3

1.8

8.9

Millennium 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

Cash

0.0

0.2

0.2

1.2

0.0

0.7

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.10.0

0.0

4.1

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2019

100.0

100.0

-0.5

-0.1

-0.4

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.5

4.7

5.2

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweight exposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset 
class/manager has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

4

161



Market Value: 4.3bn

#

-0.7

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-1.4

5.2

6.6

99.0

100.0

100.0

-1.4

98.9

9.1 1.3

Total Fund 

(Net)

Total Fund 

(Gross)
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportunitie

s

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return -1.2 -0.8 -0.3 -0.9 2.7 -4.4 -7.4 -2.0 -0.1 -0.4 0.1

Portfolio Return 5.2 5.6 6.9 6.8 19.9 6.6 4.9 7.6 0.5 -2.7 3.2 5.7 -0.4 0.8

6.4 6.4 7.2 7.7 10.7 5.3 5.6 4.9 4.9 4.7 5.2 5.9 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 47.1 46.1 3.7 23.5 9.1 14.4 24.0 12.7 8.1 3.1

8.9 3.4 0.0

0.0 1.7

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 45.1 44.1

24.5 10.0

15.6 24.7 12.44.7 24.8 9.3

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return -1.2 -0.8 -0.4 -0.4 0.3

26.5

-1.0

0.0

-0.2

4.1

0.1

11.4 10.0

-0.1

10.0

0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1

0.4 -0.1 0.4

0.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

-1.1

0.0

0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.0 -0.6 -0.3 -0.4

99.0

98.9

0.3 0.0 0.00.0 0.4 -1.1 -0.9 -0.2

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st March 2019

100.0

100.0

-1.0

-0.2

-0.8

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-1.0

5.6

6.6

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

%%

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

%%%% %%

5

162



Market Value: 4.3bn

1,937.4

1,892.2

1,377.1

313.6

532.5

108.1

229.2

113.0

80.7

333.2

0.0

0.0

181.9

45.2

203.4

1,066.2

398.0

30.2

99.8

204.3

27.6

36.2

668.2

317.1

73.9

45.9

92.9

138.3

1,059.3

531.2

129.4

253.7

147.7

0.4

383.4

110.7

27.4

245.4

144.7

74.4

48.9

13.6

7.8

-0.4

27.9

4,248.7

4,293.9

4,248.7

4,293.9

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index 
7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked 
6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged 
8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged 
4.00% FTSE All World

32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged

0.610.4 9.8-1.4 10.4 9.8 0.6-0.6 5.2 6.6 -1.4 5.2 6.6Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.9 4.6 5.2

13.3 13.6 -0.36.8 7.7 -0.9 6.8 7.7 -0.9Client Weighted Index Mar-16 44.1 8.0 8.9 -0.9

10.4 9.5 0.90.9-1.2 5.2 6.4 -1.2 10.4 9.5

1.3

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 5.0 5.7 -0.6 5.2 6.4

10.8 9.5-0.8 10.8 9.5 1.3-0.5 5.6 6.4 -0.8 5.6 6.4Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 5.1 5.7

7.4 4.7 2.7 5.14.5 0.6LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 3.2 1.7 1.2 0.6 7.4 4.7 2.7

17.0 4.7 12.3 19.2

8.6 8.2 0.4

1.1 -0.4 17.0 4.7 12.3

6.9 0.65.6 1.5 7.1 5.6 1.5 7.5

7.8 8.7 -0.9

Kames Capital Property Fund IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16 0.6 -0.1 7.1

0.1 5.6 5.6 0.1

11.7 7.8 3.9

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16 0.8 0.8 0.3 5.6 5.6

7.6 4.9 2.7 11.7 7.8 3.9

8.7

15.6 3.2 3.3 -0.2 7.6 4.9 2.7

0.4 0.5 0.00.8 0.7 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.00.2 0.2 0.0 0.8 0.7 0.1Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

Apr-18

None

0.7

5.7

3.4

Dec-13 0.0

LIBOR 1 MonthCash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Client Weighted Index

Millennium Currency Fund

Client Weighted Index

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund

Kempen Global Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

4.5

1.0 -0.1 0.8

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

-0.8

1.8

5.3 7.1 7.1 0.0 0.8

1.9 18.4

6.9

-0.3

9.6 8.5

6.9

13.3

10.2

0.0

9.59.4 -0.1

15.9 -0.1

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.2

13.6

13.1 0.013.2

13.7Client Weighted Index Mar-16 45.1 8.8 9.6 6.9 7.2 13.66.9

8.1

13.3 13.6 -0.3

7.2 -0.3 12.5

7.932.1 8.9 8.9 0.1

1.91.90.1

4.5 4.8 -0.4

7.9

6.8 5.4 9.4

-2.2

-1.5

9.4

0.4

1.8

3.5

3.1

6.5

1.8

6.0

-0.60.5

0.0

-0.1

4.5

-0.1

Apr-07

1.2 2.4

1.2Mar-16

2.2 -2.3

-8.3

0.3

0.0

1.2 -9.4

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index

0.0

Mar-13 7.7 7.7

4.5

ERBMPF

5.4

6.5

0.1

7.9 0.2

-0.3

-0.9

15.8

6.5

-0.9

-0.1

-0.4

0.11.6

1.0

6.4 0.2

9.4

6.4

-0.1 -0.9

-4.0

0.1

-4.0

0.2

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13 4.2

PF

1.1

-1.9

BM

FTSE All World Index

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

12.4Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13

14.8

8.1

FTSE All World Index

0.0 8.3

7.3

Dec-13

1.9

2.6

0.0

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

7.5 7.5

2.3 -1.7 0.5

0.4 9.64.7

9.3 0.5

1.2

1.9

1.3

2.3

0.5

0.0 0.5

1.2

1.2

1.2

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.8

7.6

-1.2

3.0

Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month

4.8

Client Weighted Index

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

Jun-16

Dec-13

24.8

-0.6

15.5 0.1

-9.3

6.66.0

15.7

1.9

7.5

1.6

0.4

-0.3

4.9 5.6 -0.7

5.6

6.4

5.3

11.9-0.5

9.1 19.910.719.9

Dec-13

0.4

1.2

5.8

6.6

-5.1 5.6

11.9 5.6 6.4

4.9

6.6

-5.1

-0.7

-12.3

6.9

14.9 0.9

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year 3 Year

-0.8

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

Dec-13FTSE All World Index

10.7

FTSE All Share Index

7.5

8.3

10.7

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.5

Dec-13

0.1

10.7

0.7

9.1 15.8

9.7 9.4

7.5 9.4 -1.9

6.0

13.3

14.8

14.2

12.3

11.0

12.2

1.6

12.3

-2.6

3.7

15.7 15.5

4.8

0.8

1.6 -0.614.8

6.9 1.8

-0.9 -0.1

-1.5

0.0

3.0

0.9

8.7

7.8 6.9

6.0

5.6

1.3

-0.8

10.35.3

1.3 -3.0

0.5 -12.8

14.8

8.7

ER

11.9 -1.8

-0.1

0.0

1.1

8.5

9.7 -0.1

-0.2

7.2 6.9

8.7

PF BM

5.6

14.6

13.2

9.9

12.6

5.7

0.915.8

1.1

0.5 -12.8-12.3

0.3

8.6

0.0

Since Inception

7.8 6.9 0.9

9.9 11.7 -1.7

14.5

13.1

14.9

7.3 3.0

12.0

6.1

6.6 0.7

Total Fund Benchmark

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

Mar-16 0.2 59.059.2

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

5.6

7.00% FTSE All Share

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

1.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.0

5.9

3.4

0.0

Apr-15 0.6

Client Weighted Index

1.1

0.2

FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 7.4

Mar-18

0.5 0.0

-2.2

0.5 6.90.2 3.0

7.31.3

11.2

3.90.25.6 5.6

12.510.0

5.8

10.3

8.1

10.2

5.9 0.00.0

9.9

-3.0

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund 0.51.15.9

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 18.5 4.7 13.8 17.8LIBOR 1 Month + 4% 18.5 4.7 13.8

5.5 0.05.5 5.5 5.5

13.34.5

4.5 14.8

4.9

8.915.7 6.8

12.0

4.9

-3.7

-12.7

-4.4

-7.4 -2.7 -7.4

-3.7

-4.4 0.5

4.7 -4.7

-2.0 4.7 -6.6

1.0 4.7

-8.1 4.7 -12.7

-16.2-11.5 4.7 -16.2

1.0 4.7

-8.1 4.7

0.0

4.7

5.0

4.6

0.0 4.7 -4.7

-2.0 4.7 -6.6

-11.5 4.7

-4.3 4.5 -8.8

4.9 4.5 0.4

-2.1

5.1

-12.5 4.5 -16.9

4.5 -0.93.6

11.2

5.6

8.4 2.7

14.8

4.4 4.5 -0.1

19.2

-2.1

4.5

4.5 0.6

4.5 0.3

4.6

5.0 4.9 0.0

2.4 4.5

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 31st March 2019

-0.1 3.0 -3.1

4.5 0.2

4.5 -0.3

4.8

4.2

4.0 1.2 2.9 1.9 4.7 -2.8 1.9 4.7 -2.8 2.6 4.5 -1.8

1.7 1.2 0.6 2.0 4.7 -2.7 2.0 4.44.7 -2.7 4.5 4.5 0.04.5 0.0

1.3 1.5 -0.1 5.7 5.9 -0.1 5.7 5.9 -0.1 11.7 5.0 6.7 11.7 5.0 6.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 1.7 2.3 1.2 1.2 -2.6 4.7 -7.3 -2.6 4.7 -7.3 9.0 4.5 4.5 9.0 4.5 4.5

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.1 0.5 1.8 -1.3 20.8 7.5 13.4 20.8 7.5 13.4 15.7 7.6 8.1

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.3 -0.8 1.8 -2.7 12.1 7.5 4.6 12.1 7.5 16.1 7.5 8.6

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 0.2 1.2 1.8 -0.6 7.0 7.5 -0.4 7.0 7.5 -0.4 6.8 7.5 -0.7

-0.4 0.0 -0.4 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.0 0.0-0.4 -0.6 0.0 -0.6 0.50.5

6.6

-0.4

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 24.7 3.1 1.3 0.5 5.0 4.9 0.0

2.4

Apr-16 8.9 2.3 1.4 1.5

-2.7 4.7 4.5

4.5 0.5

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 12.4 4.3

0.9 3.2 5.2 -2.0 3.2 5.2

1.0

1.57.1 5.6-2.0 7.1

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.6 3.2 2.2 6.2 6.6 -0.4 6.2 6.6 -0.4

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 7.8 -1.8 1.3 -1.8

Adams Street: Data is on a 4 month lag. We have received the Q4 2018 data, as we have not yet 

received the Q1 2019 data this is lagged.

9.8

9.6 5.0 4.5

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.9 4.7 5.2 -0.5 5.6 -1.0 5.6 6.6 -1.0 10.9

Q2 2019: Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund & Kempen Global Equity Fund transferred to the 

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund as at 15th February 2019. Therefore the returns quoted within this 

report for these funds are in effect 'partial period returns'.

Notes:

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, 

therefore please use with caution. If you require additional information please contact us.

10.9 9.8 1.11.1

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return  

6

163



Total Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund

Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund

Kempen Global Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Total Property Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Total Targeted Return Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund

Millennium Currency Fund

Cash Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

4,248,653 98.9 100.04,043,219 99.3 -0.7

0.0

31st Dec 2018

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.1

-0.1

-0.7

0.1

1.2

-1.0

-1.2

-0.3

-0.6

0.0

1.4

-0.1

0.1

0.1

-0.7

1.2

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

-0.1

0.0

-0.5

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

-0.1

0.0

0.0

100.0

31st Mar 2019

Net Exp

(%)

-2.3

-3.0

-2.8

-0.5

-1.4

-0.3

-0.4

0.1

-0.2

-0.3

0.0

0.7

0.0

-1.1

0.1

0.1

-1.3

-0.7

0.2

-0.8

1.0

-0.4

1.9

-0.6

0.0

-0.9

-0.1

0.2

-0.4

-0.8

-1.7

-0.7

-0.1

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.1

0.7

0.1

0.3

-0.6

0.0

0.3

0.1

1,892,238

Net Exp

(%)

1.1

0.1

(%)

0.7

44.11,749,958 43.0

1.1

13,410 0.3 13,552 0.3

48,639 1.2 48,878

245,396

144,698

246,459 6.1 5.7

72,774 1.8 74,425 1.7

0.7

-1,247 0.0

3.4

3,781 0.1

138,603 3.4

47,221 1.2 27,9411.2

-426

7,842 0.2

0.0

0.626,271 0.6 27,355

8.9

107,319 2.6 110,684 2.6

380,050 9.3

113,532 2.8

6.0244,912

383,436

531,163 12.4

253,704

359 0.0

120,469 3.0

392 0.0

15.6

130,138 3.2

73,944 1.7

1,059,296

647,413 15.9 668,205

317,139

997,957

0.6

36,411 0.9 36,205 0.8

27,837 0.7 27,593

203,403

229,201

45,208

0.0

4.2

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2019
Market Value: 4.3bn

Market Val Exposure

1,263,920 31.0

(£000s)

1,377,120

286,255 7.0

4.5

1.9

105,392 2.6

532,467

113,030

0

80,730

5.3

4.7

2.5108,134

1.1

2.6

7.3313,559

1,937,446 45.1

32.1

11.8

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

(%)

1,778,358 43.7

480,382

5.2

169,014

212,984

102,951 2.5

75,956

0 0.0

132,405 3.3

100.04,293,861

1,066,200

181,932

0

24.8

12.4

4,071,619 100.0

5.0

0.7

1.0

184,618

1,046,325 25.7

4.2

203,004

28,400

0.0

1.9

99,755

397,995

202,973 5.0

30,177

9.3

30,171 0.7

398,913 9.8

1.8

0.7

4.8

101,520 2.5 2.3

95,692 2.4

7.4

204,266

73,424

302,100 7.4

46,060 1.1

24.5

147,662 3.4

479,304 11.8

1.1

138,309 3.2

24.7

5.9

92,937 2.2

3.0129,437

45,876

333,186 7.8 -0.2

7

164



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Pension Fund 
 (Registration number: 00328856RQ) 

 

 
Introduction 
 

 The Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (the Fund) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) and is administered by Leicestershire County Council.  
 
General 
 
The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pension Act 2013.  The fund is administered in accordance with 
the following secondary legislation:  
 

• the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

• the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 
2014 (as amended) 

• the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 
 
It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by Leicestershire County Council to provide 
pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council, 
the district councils in Leicestershire and a range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the county 
area. Teachers, police officers and firefighters are not included as they come within other national pension 
schemes.  The fund is overseen by the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund Committee, which is a 
committee of Leicestershire County Council. 
 
The Pension Committee consists of ten voting members and three non-voting staff representatives. The voting 
members are split into five County Council members, two from Leicester City Council and two representing the 
District Councils and a single member representing Universities. The Committee receives investment advice from 
the funds Actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP, and meets quarterly to consider relevant issues. 
 

 Membership 
 
 Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme, remain in 

the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme. 
 
 Organisations participating in the fund include the following: 

• Scheduled bodies, which are automatically entitled to be members of the fund. 

• Admitted bodies, which participate in the fund under the terms of an admission agreement between the 
fund and the employer.  Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar not for profit 
organisations, or private contractors undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the 
private sector. 

 
  

165



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Membership details are set out below:  
 

 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 

Number of employers 254 263 

   

Number of employees in the scheme (Actives)   

County Council 7,832 7,875 

Other employers 25,806 26,537 

Total 33,638 34,412 

   

Number of pensioners   

County Council 10,724 11,177 

Other employers 15,746 16,796 

Total 26,470 27,973 

   

Deferred pensioners   

County Council 12,526 12,423 

Other employers 24,177 24,183 

Total 35,703 36,606 

   

Total number of members in the pension scheme 95,811 98,991 
 
 
Funding 
 
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of 
the fund in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% and 
12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2019.  Employers contributions are set based 
on triennial actuarial funding valuations.  In 2018/19 the average employer rate was 23.8% of pay (22.7% 
2017/18). 
 
Benefits 
 
Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based in final pensionable pay and length of 
pensionable service.  From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue 
benefits based on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th.  Accrued pension is uprated 
annually in line with the Consumer Prices Index.  A range of other benefits are also provided including early 
retirement, disability pensions and death benefits, as explained on the LGPS website,  
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

  

166



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Fund Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2019 
 

2017/18   2018/19 
£m  Notes £m 

  

Contributions 
   

     (139.2) Employer Contributions  6  (149.5) 
(38.3) Member Contributions 6  (39.9) 

  (12.4) Transfers in from Other Pension Funds 7  (10.3) 

(189.9) Total Contributions   (199.7) 

 Benefits    
115.0 Pensions 8  124.8 

31.8 
Commutation of Pensions and Lump Sum Retirement 
Benefits 

8 
 32.5 

3.1 Lump Sum Death Benefits   4.6 
 18.0 Payments to and on Account of Leavers 9  11.9 

167.9 Total Benefits   173.8 

22.0 Net Additions)/(Withdrawals) from Dealings with 
Members 

  
(25.9) 

6.4 Management Expenses 10  7.1 

(15.6) Net Additions/(Withdrawals) Including Fund 
Management Expenses 

  (18.8) 

     
 Returns on investments    
     (42.9) Investment income 11  (36.8) 

(144.0) 
Profit and Losses on Disposal of Investments and Changes 
in Value of Investments 

12 
 (173.1) 

     (186.9) Net Returns on Investments (Sub Total)   (209.9) 

     (202.5) 
Net Increase / (Decrease) in the Net Assets Available for 
Benefits fund During the Year 

  
(228.7) 

     
 Net assets of the scheme    

  (3,880.8) Opening   (4,083.3) 

 
   (4,083.3) 

Net assets of the scheme 
Closing 

   
   (4,312.0) 

 

Net Assets Statement as at 31 March 2019 
 

2017/18   2018/19 
£m  Notes £m 

4,076.1 
 
Investment assets 

 
12 4,361.2 

(1.2) 
 
Investment liabilities 

 
12 (54.0) 

4,074.9   4,307.2 

11.7 
 
Current Assets 

 
15 10.6 

(3.3) 
 
Current Liabilities 

 
15 (5.8) 

4,083.3 
 
Net Assets of the Fund at 31 March 

 
4,312.0 

 

167



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The financial statements summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at the disposal of 
the Council.  They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end 
of the Fund year.  The actuarial position on the Scheme, which does take account of such obligations, is set out 
in the Actuary’s Report. 
 

The notes on pages 88 to 109 form part of the Financial Statements. 

 

Notes to the Accounts 
 
 

 1. Basis of Preparation 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position 
as at 31 March 2019. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the Code) which is based upon International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector. 
 
The Code requires disclosure of any accounting standards issued but not yet adopted. No such accounting 
standards have been identified for 2018/19. 
  
The accounts report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. They do not take account of obligations 
to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year nor do they take account of the 
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. The Fund has disclosed this information, by appending 
a copy of the report to the Pension Fund accounts. 
  
The Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
   

2. Accounting policies 
 
The following principal accounting policies, have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements: 
 
Fund Account – Revenue Recognition 
  

a) Contribution Income 
 
Normal contributions are accounted for on an acruals basis as follows:  
 

• Employee contribution rates are set in accordance with LGPS regulations, using common percentage 
rates for all schemes which rise according to pensionable pay. 

• Employer contributions are set at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary for the 
period to which they relate.  
 

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the basis advised by the fund actuary in the rates 
and adjustment certificate issued to the relevant employing body.  Additional employers’ contributions in 
respect of ill-health and early retirements are accounted for in the year the event arose.  Any amount due in the 
year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset.   
 

b) Transfers to and from other Schemes 
 
Transfers in and out relate to members who have either joined or left the fund.  Individual transfers in/out are 
accounted for when received or paid.  Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional 
voluntary contributions to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in 
Transfers In, shown in Note 7. Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for in accordance with the terms of the 
transfer agreement. 
 

168



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 
c) Investments 

 
Interest Income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the financial 
instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination.  
  
Dividend Income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend.  Any amount not received by the 
end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset. 
  
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue.  Any amount not received by the end of the 
reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.  
 
Property related income consists primarily of rental income.  Rental income from operating leases on properties 
owned by the fund is recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the lease.   
  
Changes in the value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised and unrealised profit/ 
losses during the year. 
 
Fund Account – Expense Items 
  

d) Benefits Payable 
 
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the financial 
year.  Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities. 
  

e) Taxation 
 
The fund is a registered public service scheme under Section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as 
such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of 
investments sold.  Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless 
exemption is permitted.  Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises. 
  

f) Management Expenses 
 
The fund discloses management expenses for administration, oversight and governance, and investment 
management. The disclosures comply with the CIPFA guidance ‘Accounting for Local Government Pension 
Scheme Management Expenses (2016), except for investment management expenses which are disclosed as net 
payments charged as opposed to grossing up the payments. The authority is collating gross management 
expenses and will be fully compliant in 2019/20. 
 
Net Assets Statement 
 

g) Investments 
 
Equities traded through the Stock Exchange Electronic Trading Service (SETS) are valued at bid price. Other 
quoted securities and financial futures are valued at the last traded price. Private equity investments and 
unquoted securities are valued by the fund managers at the year end bid price, or if unavailable in accordance 
with generally accepted guidelines. Accrued interest is excluded from the market value of fixed interest 
securities and index-linked securities but is included in investment income receivable. 
 
Pooled Investment Vehicle units are valued at either the closing bid prices or the closing single price reported 
by the relevant investment managers, which reflect the accepted market value of the underlying assets. 
 
 

169



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Private equity, global infrastructure and hedge fund valuations are based on valuations provided by the 
managers at the year end date. If valuations at the year end are not produced by the manager, the latest 
available valuation is adjusted for cash flows in the intervening period. 
 
Property investments are stated at open market value based on an expert valuation provided by a RICS 
registered valuer and in accordance with RICS guidelines. 
 
Options are valued at their mark to market value. Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the year 
end are stated at fair value which is determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contract 
was matched at the year end with an equal and opposite contract. The investment reconciliation table in Note 
12 discloses the forward foreign exchange settled trades as net receipts and payments. 
  

h) Foreign currencies 
 
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year-
end. Income from overseas investments is translated at a rate that is relevant at the time of the receipt of the 
income or the exchange rate at the year end, whichever comes first. 
 
Surpluses and deficits arising on conversion or translation are dealt with as part of the change in market value 
of investments. 
 

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund’s external managers. 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value. 
 

j) Financial Assets   
  
Financial Assets classes as amortised cost are carried in the net assets statement at amortised cost, i.e. the 
outstanding principal as at the year end date. 
 

k) Financial Liabilities  
  

A financial liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the liability.  
The fund recognises financial liabilities relating to investment trading at fair value as at the reporting date, and 
any gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability between contract date, the year end 
date and the eventual settlement date are recognised in the fund account as part of the Change in Value of 
Investments.  Other financial liabilities classed as amortised cost are carried at amortised cost, i.e. the amount 
carried in the net asset statement is the outstanding principal repayable plus accrued interest.   

  
l) Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits  

 
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme 
actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS19 and relevant actuarial standards.   As permitted under the 
Code, the fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by appending 
a copy of the report to the Pension Fund Accounts. 
  

m) Additional Voluntary Contributions  
  

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of which are 
invested separately from those of the pension fund. AVC’s are not included in the accounts in accordance with 
Section 4(1)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 
2016, but are disclosed for information in Note 26.  

  
 

170



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

n) Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 
 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place giving rise to a plausible asset whose existence will 
only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events.  
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year end giving rise to a possible financial 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events.  Contingent 
liabilities can also arise in circumstances where a provision would be made, except that is not possible at the 
balance sheet date to measure the value of the financial obligation reliably.  
  
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the net asset statement but are disclosed by way of 
narrative in the notes. 
 
 

3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies  
    

Pension Fund Liability  
  
The net pension fund liability is recalculated every three years by the appointed actuary, with annual updates 
in the intervening years.  The methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines. The estimate is subject to 
significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions which are agreed with the actuary and 
have been summarised in the introduction to the accounts.  Actuarial revaluations are used to set future 
contribution rates and underpin the fund’s most significant investment management policies, for example in 
terms of the balance between longer term and short term yield/ return.  
  
Investment in LGPS Central Asset Pool 
  
This investment has been valued at cost on the basis that fair value as at 31 March 2019 cannot be reliably 
estimated.  Management have made this judgement because; a) the Pool only became licensed to trade in 
February 2018, b) no dividends to shareholders has yet been declared, and c) no published trading results are 
yet available.  
  
Directly Held Property  
  
The fund’s property portfolio includes a number of directly owned properties which are leased commercially 
to various tenants.  The fund has determined that these contracts all constitute operating lease arrangements 
under IAS7 and the Code, and therefore the properties are retained on the net assets statement at fair value. 
Rental income is recognised in the fund account on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.   
  
 

4. Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty  
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts.  Estimates and assumptions take account of historic 
experience, current trends and future expectations, however actual outcomes could be different from the 
assumptions and estimates made.  The items in the net asset statement for which there is a significant risk of 
material adjustment in the following year are as follows: 
 
 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

Actuarial 
Present Value 
of Promised 
Retirement 
Benefits 

Estimation of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate 
used, salary increases, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and returns 
on fund assets.  A firm of consulting 

For instance: 

• A 0.5% decrease in the discount rate 
used would result in an increase in the 
pension liability of £765m 

171



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

actuaries is engaged to provide the fund 
with expert advice about the assumptions 
to be applied. 

• A 0.5% increase in the pension increase 
rate would increase the pension liability 
by £599m 

• A one year increase in assumed life 
expectancy would increase the liability by 
between £209m and £348m. 

Private Equity 
Investments 

Private equity investment are valued at fair 
value.  Investments are not publicly listed 
and as such there is a degree of estimation 
involved in the valuation. 

Private equity investments are valued at 
£197m in the financial statements.  There is 
a risk that this investment may be under or 
overstated in the accounts by up to 28%, an 
increase or decrease of £55m. 

Freehold, 
Leasehold 
Property and 
Pooled 
Property 
Funds 

Valuations techniques are used to 
determine the carrying amount of pooled 
property funds and directly held freehold 
property.  Where possible these valuation 
techniques are based on observable data 
but where this is not possible management 
uses the best available data. 

Changes in the valuation assumptions used, 
together with significant changes in rental 
growth, vacancy levels or the discount rate 
could affect the fair value of property based 
investments by up to 15%, i.e. an increase 
or decrease of £58m on the carrying value 
of £386m. 

 
 

5.  Events after the Reporting Date 
 

There are no material events after the reporting date that would require an adjustment or additional disclose to 
the accounts.   

 
6. Contributions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional payments for early retirements are paid by employers, once calculated and requested by the Fund, 
to reimburse the Pension Fund for the cost to the Fund of employees who are allowed to retire before their 
normal retirement age. Additional payments for ill-health retirements are generally paid by the insurance 
company, where the employer has taken out ill-health insurance and the claim has been accepted as valid. On 
occasions employers without ill-health insurance are charged for at least part of the ill-health costs. Purchase of 
additional benefits by members allows either extra service to be credited on top of any service earned via 
employment, or an additional annual pension amount in cash to be paid following retirement. Termination 
valuation payments relate to the actuarially assessed deficit within an employer’s sub-fund when their last active 
employee leaves. 
 

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

   
 

132.0 
2.5 
0.1 
3.9 
0.7 

 
 

37.9 
0.4 

Employers 
Normal 
Deficit Repair 
Voluntary additional 
Advanced payments for early retirements 
Additional payments for ill-health retirements 

 
Members 

Normal 
Purchase of additional benefits 

 

 
143.1 

3.7 
0.1 
1.8 
0.8 

 
 

39.5 
0.4 

177.5 Total 
 

189.4 

172



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The contributions can be analysed by the type of Member Body as follows: 
 

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

 
    42.4 

 
Leicestershire County Council 

 
44.4 

126.4 
8.7 

Scheduled bodies  
Admitted bodies 

136.2 
8.8 

177.5 
 
Total 189.4 

 
 
7.   Transfers In 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

8. Benefits  
   
The benefits paid can be analysed by type of Member Body as follows:- 

 
2017/18 

£m 
 
 

2018/19 
£m 

53.4 Leicestershire County Council 57.3 
89.0 Scheduled bodies 96.4 

7.5 Admitted bodies 8.2 

 
149.9 

 
Total 

 
161.9 

 
 

9. Payments to and on Account of Leavers 
  

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

0.8 
0.1 

17.1 
0.0 

Refunds to members leaving the scheme 
Payments for members joining state scheme 
Individual transfers to other schemes 
Bulk transfers to other schemes 

0.9 
0.0 

11.0 
0.0 

18.0 
 
Total 11.9 

 
  

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

   
9.7 
2.7 

Individual transfers in from other schemes 
Bulk transfers in from other schemes 
 

10.3 
0.0 

12.4 
 
Total 10.3 

173



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

10.  Management Expenses 
  

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

 
4.9 
1.1 
0.4 

 
Investment Management Expenses 
Pension Scheme Administration Costs 
Oversight and Governance Expenses 

 
4.9 
1.8 
0.4 

6.4 
 
Total 7.1 

 
 

11.  Investment Income 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
12. Investments 

 
 Value at  

1 April  
2018 

Purchases at 
Cost and 

Derivative 
Payments 

Sales Proceeds 
and Derivative 

Receipts 

Change In 
Market Value 

Value at  
31 March 

2019 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Equities 80.3 57.4 (58.7) 3.4 82.4 

Government Bonds 0.7 28.2 0.0 0.0 28.9 
Index-linked securities 384.2 586.0 (600.4) 21.4 391.2 
Pooled investment 

vehicles 
 

3,332.0 
 

631.9 
 

(595.6) 
 

206.7 
 

3,575.0 
Properties 102.1 0.0 0.0 0.5 102.6 

Cash and currency 157.6 0.0 (28.5) 0.0 129.1 

Derivatives contracts 
Other investment 
balances 

14.9 
 

3.1 

40.0 
 

1.1            

0.0 
 

(2.2) 

(58.9) 
 

0.0         

(4.0) 
 

2.0 

Total 4,074.9 1,344.6 (1,285.4) 173.1 4,307.2 

  
  

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19  
£m 

                   2.9 
0.0 
2.2 

30.9 
7.0 
0.3 

(0.5) 
0.1 

Dividends from equities 
Income from Government Bonds 
Income from index-linked securities 
Income from pooled investment vehicles 
Net rents from properties 
Interest on cash or cash equivalents 
Net Currency Profit / (Loss)  
Insurance Commission 

                          2.4 
0.2 
2.2 

24.4 
7.0 
0.5 
0.1 
0.0 

 

42.9 Total 36.8 

174



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 Value at  
1 April  
2017 

Purchases at 
Cost and 

Derivative 
Payments 

Sales Proceeds 
and Derivative 

Receipts 

Change In 
Market Value 

Value at  
31 March 

2018 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Equities 77.5 47.0 (43.8) (0.4) 80.3 

Government Bonds 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 
Index-linked securities 373.3 289.7 (275.9) (2.9) 384.2 
Pooled investment 

vehicles 
 

3,070.1 
 

365.6 
 

(184.9) 
 

81.2 
 

3,332.0 
Properties 96.3 0.1 (0.1) 5.8 102.1 

Cash and currency 238.1 0.0 (80.5) 0.0 157.6 

Derivatives contracts 
Other investment 
balances 

15.6 
 

1.7 

6.7 
 

1.4 

(67.7) 
 

0.0 

60.3 
 

0.0 

14.9 
 

3.1 

Total 3,872.6 711.2  (652.9) 144.0 4,074.9 

 
 
The change in the value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market 
value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of 
investments during the year. 
 
The Fund has the following investments which exceed 5% of the total net value of assets: 
 

2017/18  2018/19 
£m  £m 

0 LGPS Central - Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund 313.1 
270.4 Legal and General North America Index Fund 267.8 
260.4 Legal and General FTSE RAFI North America Fund 264.3 

   

530.8 Total 845.2 

 

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

 
23.2 

1.3 
55.8 

Equities 
UK quoted 
UK unquoted 
Overseas quoted 

 
21.5 

1.3 
59.6 

80.3  82.4 

 Government Bonds  
0.7 UK Government Unquoted 0.7 
0.0 UK Government Quoted 5.8 
0.0 Overseas Quoted 22.4 

0.7  28.9 

 
347.1 

Index Linked Securities 
UK quoted 

 
358.0 

37.0 Overseas quoted 33.2 

384.1  391.2  

175



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

262.6 
152.5 
468.3 

0.3 
1,887.2 

12.1 
91.4 

142.1 
119.9 
195.6 

Pooled investment vehicles 
(unquoted) 

Property funds 
Private equity 
Bond and debt funds 
Hedge funds 
Equity-based funds 
Commodity-based funds 
Timberland fund 
Managed futures fund 
Targeted return fund 
Infrastructure fund 

 
 

283.0 
210.3 
520.7 

0.2 
1,909.4 

15.4 
132.5 
129.4 
147.7 
226.4 

3,332.0  3,575.0 

 Properties  

102.1 UK (Note 14) 102.6 

   

157.6 Cash and currency 129.1 

 
12.9 

0.1 
3.1 

(1.1) 
0.0 

Derivatives contracts 
Forward foreign exchange assets 
Currency option assets 
Other option assets 
Forward foreign exchange liabilities 
Currency option liabilities 

 
47.1 

1.4 
1.5 

(54.0) 
0.0 

15.0 Sterling Denominated (4.0) 

3.1 Other Investment Balances 2.0 

4,074.9 Total Investments 4,307.2 

  
 At 31 March 2019 pooled investment vehicles include investments in fund-of-funds which have an underlying 

value of £196.0m in private equity, £22.3m in illiquid corporate bonds and £132.5m in timberland. 

 
13.     Derivatives 

 
The Fund holds derivatives for a number of different reasons. Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to 
benefit from expected changes in the value of currencies relative to each other. Futures can be held to gain full 
economic exposure to markets without the requirement to make a full cash investment and can be held to 
ensure that the Fund’s exposures are run efficiently. Options are generally used to express an investment view 
but can give a much higher economic exposure than is required to be paid for the options – they also ensure 
that the potential loss is limited to the amount paid for the option. 
 
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 
All forward foreign exchange contracts are classed as ‘Over the Counter’ and at the year end the net exposure 
to forward foreign exchange contracts can be summarised as follows: 
 

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

0.3 
 
 

11.4 

Active currency positions (those whose purpose is 
solely to seek economic gain) 
 
Passive currency positions (those whose purpose is 
to hedge the Fund’s benchmark exposure to 
currencies back to sterling) 

(0.7) 
 
 

(6.2) 

11.7 Total (6.9) 

 
Options 

176



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

All options held by the Fund were exchange traded. The value of these options and the assets to which they 
were exposed can be summarised as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 

 
14.  Property Investments 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
All properties, with the exception of the Fund’s farm investment, were valued on an open market basis by Nigel 
Holroyd and Adrian Payne of Colliers Capital UK at 31st March 2019.  The Fund’s farm was valued on an open 
market basis by James Forman of Leicestershire County Council.  All valuers are Members of the Royal Institute 
of Chartered Surveyors. 

 
 
15.  Current Assets and Liabilities 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Contributions due at the year end were received by the due date. 
 
The amount due from the Ministry of Justice relates to the actuarially assessed deficit in respect of 
Magistrates’ Court staff that were formerly in the LGPS. The amount is payable over 10 years at £365,000 per 
annum, and at 31st March 2019 there were two more payments due. 
 
 
  

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

0.1 
3.1 

Currency-based  
Equity rate-based 

1.4 
1.5 

3.2 Total 2.8 

31 March 2018 
£m 

 31 March 2019 
£m 

71.3 
16.2 
14.6 

Freehold 
Long Leasehold (over 50 years unexpired) 
Medium/Short Leasehold (under 50 years 
unexpired)  

72.9 
16.2 
13.5 

102.1 Total 102.6 

2017/18 
£m 

 2018/19 
£m 

8.4 
1.0 
1.2 
1.1 

Contributions due from employers 
Cash Balances 
Other Debtors 
Due from Ministry of Justice 

 8.7 
0.0 
1.2 
0.7 

11.7 
 

(1.2) 
(0.9) 
(1.2) 

Current assets 
 
Due to Leicestershire County Council 
Fund Management Fees Outstanding 
Other Creditors 

10.6 
 

(3.6) 
 (1.2) 
(1.0) 

(3.3) Current liabilities (5.8) 

8.4 Net current assets and liabilities 4.8 

177



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

16. Analysis of Investments by Manager 
 

The Fund employs external investment managers to manage all of its investments apart from an amount of cash 
and a farm property, which are managed by Leicestershire County Council.  This structure ensures that the total 
Fund performance is not overly influenced by the performance of any one manager. 
 

 The market value of investments in the hands of each manager is shown in the table below:- 

At 31   March 
2018 

   At 31 March 
2019 

  

£m %   £m % 
  Investments managed by LGPS central Pool   

   LGPS Central - global equities     

0.0 0.0 Harris 117.7               2.7 
0.0 0.0 Schroders  103.5              2.4  
0.0 0.0 Union 112.0              2.6 

  
  Investment Manager 

                       

                          

1,369.4 33.6 Legal & General 1375.6           31.9  

391.4 9.6 Kames Capital 438.6            10.2  

251.7 6.2 Ruffer LLP 254.2              5.9  

199.4 4.9 Partners Group 245.4              5.7  

190.8 4.7 Aviva Investors (La Salle) 202.3              4.7  

144.0 3.5 Adams Street Partners 196.0              4.6 

177.5 4.4 Macquarie Investments 181.9              4.2  

119.9 2.9 Pictet Asset Management 147.7              3.4  

91.4 2.2 Stafford Timberland 132.5              3.1  

126.3 3.1 Colliers Capital UK 129.9              3.0  

142.1 3.5 Aspect Capital 129.4              3.0  

104.0 2.6 JP Morgan Asset Management 120.4              2.8  

103.9 2.6 Ashmore 110.7              2.6  

85.2 2.1 Prudential / M&G 76.0              1.8  

62.6 1.5 IFM Investors (UK) Ltd 73.9              1.7  

40.4 1.0 Cristofferson, Robb & Co 48.9              1.1  

52.0 1.3 Kravis Kohlberg Roberts & Co 45.9              1.1  

90.8 2.2 Internally Managed and Currency Managers 36.6              0.9  

3.9 0.1 Infracapital 13.6              0.3  

7.3 0.2 Standard Life Aberdeen 13.0              0.3 

1.1 0.0 Catapult Venture Managers 1.2             0.0  

0.4 0.0 Permal (formerly Fauchier Partners) 0.3              0.0  

187.1 4.6 KBI (formerly Kleinwort Benson Investors) 0.0 
                

0.0    

132.3 3.2 Kempen Capital 0.0 0.0                        

4,074.9   Total   4,307.2   
 

 
 
  

178



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

17.  Custody of Assets 
 
All the Fund's directly held assets are held by external custodians and are therefore not at risk from the financial 
failure of any of the Fund's investment managers.  Most of the pooled investment funds are registered with 
administrators that are independent of the investment manager. 
 
 

18.  Operation and Management of fund 
 
Details of how the Fund is administered and managed are included in the Pension Fund Annual Report. 
 
 

19.  Employing bodies and fund members 
 
A full list of all bodies that have active members within the Fund is included in the in the introduction to the 
accounts. 

 
 
20. Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value 

 
The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability 
of the information used to determine fair values. 

 
Level 1 
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprised quoted equities, quoted 
fixed interest securities, quoted index-linked securities and pooled investment vehicles where the underlying 
assets fall into one of these categories. 
 
Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation 
of the relevant stock exchange. 
 
Level 2 
Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an 
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to 
determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market 
data. 
 
Level 3 
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the 
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include unquoted equity 
investments, hedge funds and infrastructure, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require 
significant judgement in determining appropriate assumptions. 
 
The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the 
private equity funds in which Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund has invested. These valuations are 
prepared in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which 
follow the valuation principles of IFRS and US GAAP.  
 
The values of the investment in hedge funds and infrastructure are based on the net asset value provided by the 
fund manager. Assurances over the valuation are gained from the independent audit of the value.  
 
The following tables provide an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into 
levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which fair value is observable. 

179



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 

  
  

21. Classification of Financial Instruments 
  

  2017/18      2018/19    

  £m      £m   

Fair value 
through 

profit 
and loss 

Assets at 
amort-

ised cost 

Liabilities 
at amort-
ised cost 

  

Fair value 
through 

profit and 
loss 

Assets at 
amort-

ised cost 

Liabilities 
at amort-
ised cost 

      Financial Assets       

80.3     Equities 82.4     

0.7     Government Bonds 28.9     

384.2     Index-linked securities 391.2     

3,332.0     Pooled investment vehicles 3,575.0     

16.0     Derivatives contracts 49.9     

  157.6   Cash and currency   129.1   

  2.4   Other investment balances   1.6   

  1.1   Sundry debtors and prepayments   0.7   

3,813.2 161.1     4,127.4 131.4   

      Financial Liabilities       

(1.1)     Derivatives contracts (53.9)     

    (0.5) Other Investment Balances     0.0 

    (2.7) Sundry Creditors     (5.3) 

3,812.1 161.1 (3.2) Total 4,073.5 131.4 (5.3) 

 

 Quoted 
market 

price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 

Values at 31st March 2019  
Level 1 

 
Level 2 

 
Level 3 

 
Total 

 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets at fair value 2,994.0 
 

0.0 1,367.2 4,361.2 

Financial liabilities at fair value (54.0) 0.0 0.0 (54.0) 

Net financial assets 2,940.0 0.0 1,367.2 4,307.2 

     
 
 
 

Quoted 
market 

price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 

Values at 31st March 2018  
Level 1 

 
Level 2 

 
Level 3 

 
Total 

 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets at fair value 2,828.1 
 

0.0 1,248.0 4,076.1 

Financial liabilities at fair value (1.2) 0.0 0.0 (1.2) 

Net financial assets 2,826.9 0.0 1,248.0 4,074.9 

180



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The value of debtors and creditors reported in the Notes to the Statement of Accounts are solely those 
amounts meeting the definition of a financial instrument. The balances of debtors and creditors reported in 
the balance sheet and Notes include balances which do not meet the definition of a financial instrument, such 
as tax-based debtors and creditors. 
 
The following gains and losses are recognised in the Fund Account: 

 

2017/18  2018/19 

£m   £m 

  Financial Assets   

83.7 Fair value through profit and loss 231.5 

     

  Financial Liabilities   

60.3 Fair value through profit and loss (58.9) 

      

144.0 Total 172.6 

 
All realised gains and losses arise from the sale or disposal of financial assets which have been derecognised I 
the financial statements.  The fund has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be 
accounted for as financial instruments. 
 

 
22. External Audit Fee  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
23. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments  

 
Risk and risk management 
 
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. the promised benefits 
payable to members). Therefore, the aim of investment risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall 
reduction in the value of the Fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. 
The fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk 
and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to 
ensure that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s required cash flows. These investment risks are 
managed as part of the overall pension fund risk management programme. 
 
Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with Leicestershire County Council’s Local Pension 
Committee (formerly called the Pension Fund Management Board).  

 
a) Market risk 

 
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange 
rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its investment activities. The level of risk 
exposure depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix. 
 

2017/18 
£ 

 2018/19 
£ 

27,637 Payable in respect of external audit 
 

21,280 

27,637 Total 21,280 

181



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk within 
acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk. 
 
In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of 
geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, Leicestershire County 
Council and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark 
analysis. 
 
The Fund manages these risks via an annual strategy review which ensures that market risk remains within 
acceptable levels. On occasion equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual 
securities may be used to manage market risk on investments, and in exceptional circumstances over-the-
counter derivative contracts may be used to manage specific aspects of market risk. 
 
Other price risk 
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes 
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such 
investments in the market. 
 
The Fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which 
the future price is uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. For all investments held 
by the Fund, the maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the 
financial instruments. The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the 
selection of securities and other financial instruments is monitored to ensure that it is within the limits specified 
in the Fund’s investment strategy. 
 
Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
Following analysis of historic data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in 
consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, Leicestershire County Council has determined that the 
following movements in market prices risk are reasonably possible for the 2018/19 reporting period: 
 

 Asset type Potential market movements (+/-) 

Overseas government bonds 8% 

Global credit 10% 

Global government index-linked bonds 8% 

UK equities 16% 

Overseas equities 19% 

UK property 15% 

Private equity 28% 

Infrastructure 14% 

Commodities 14% 

Hedge funds and targeted return funds 12% 

Timberland 16% 

Cash 1% 

 
The potential price changes disclosed above are broadly consistent with one-standard deviation movement in 
the value of assets. The sensitivities are consistent with the assumptions contained in the annual strategy review 
and the analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, 
remain the same. Had the market price of the Fund’s investments increased/decreased in line with the above, 
the change in net assets available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year 
comparator is shown in the second table): 
 
 
 

 

182



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Asset Type Value at 31st 
March 2019 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

 £m % £m £m 

UK equities 24.5 16 28.4 20.6 
Overseas equities 55.8 19 66.4 45.2 
UK Corporate Bonds 0.7 10 0.8 0.6 
Global Government Bonds 28.2 8 30.5 25.9 
Global index-linked bonds 391.2 8 422.5 359.9 
Pooled property funds 283.0 15 325.5 240.6 
Pooled private equity funds 210.3 28 269.2 151.4 
Pooled bond and debt funds 520.7 10 572.8 468.6 
Pooled hedge funds 0.2 12 0.2 0.2 
Pooled equity funds 1907.1 19 2,269.4 1,544.8 
Pooled commodity funds 19.8 14 22.6 17.0 
Pooled targeted return funds 147.7 12 165.4 130.0 
Pooled timberland fund 132.5 16 153.7 111.3 
Pooled managed futures fund 129.4 12 145.0 113.9 
Pooled infrastructure fund 226.4 14 258.1 194.7 
UK property 102.6 15 118.0 87.2 
Cash and currency 129.1 1 130.4 127.8 
Options, futures, other investment 
balances, current assets and current 
liabilities  

2.8 
 

1 2.8 2.8 

Total assets available to pay benefits 4,312.0  4,981.7 3,642.5 

Asset Type Value at 31st 
March 2018 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

 £m % £m £m 

UK equities 24.5 16 28.4 20.6 
Overseas equities 55.8 19 66.4 45.2 
UK Corporate Bonds 0.7 10 0.8 0.6 
Global Government Bonds 0.0 8 0.0 0.0 
Global index-linked bonds 384.1 8 414.9 353.4 
Pooled property funds 262.6 15 302.0 223.2 
Pooled private equity funds 152.5 28 195.2 109.8 
Pooled bond and debt funds 468.3 10 515.2 421.5 
Pooled hedge funds 0.3 12 0.4 0.3 
Pooled equity funds 1,887.2 19 2,245.7 1,528.6 
Pooled commodity funds 12.1 14 13.7 10.4 
Pooled targeted return funds 119.9 12 134.3 105.5 
Pooled timberland fund 91.4 16 106.0 76.8 
Pooled managed futures fund 142.1 12 159.2 125.1 
Pooled infrastructure fund 195.6 14 223.0 168.2 
UK property 102.1 15 117.4 86.8 
Cash and currency 157.6 1 159.1 156.0 
Options, futures, other investment 
balances, current assets and current 
liabilities  

26.5 
 

1 26.8 26.2 

Total assets available to pay benefits 4,083.3  4,708.5 3,458.2 

183



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Interest rate risk 
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These  
investments are subject to interest rate risk, which represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Fund is not highly exposed to interest rate risk, but monitoring is carried out to ensure that the exposure is 
close to the agreed asset allocation benchmark. 
 
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018 is set out 
below. These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis 
The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the value of the 
net assets to pay benefits, A 1% movement in interest rates (100 BPS) is consistent with the level of sensitivity 
expected within the Fund’s asset allocation strategy and the Fund’s investment advisors expect that long-term 
average rates are expected to move less than 100 BPS from one year to the next and experience suggests that 
such movements are likely. The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange 
rates, remain constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 
BPS change in interest rates. 
 
 

 
 
 

Asset type 

Carrying 
amount as at 

31st March 2019 

 
Change in year in the net 

assets available to pay 
benefits 

  +100 BPS -100 BPS 
 £m £m £m 

Cash and Currency 129.1 1.3 (1.3) 
Fixed interest securities 420.1 4.2 (4.2) 

Total                    549.2 5.5 (5.5) 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Currency risk 
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk in financial instruments that 
are denominated in any other currency other than sterling. The Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary 
assets denominated in currencies other than sterling. 
 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

£m 

Asset type As at 31st 
March 2019 

£m 

157.6 Cash and Currency 129.1 
469.0 Fixed interest securities 420.1 

626.6 Total 549.2 

 
 

 
Asset type 

Carrying 
amount as at 

31st March 2018 

 
Change in year in the net 

assets available to pay 
benefits 

  +100 BPS -100 BPS 
 £m £m £m 

Cash and Currency 157.6 1.6 (1.6) 
Fixed interest securities 469.0 4.7 (4.7) 

Total 626.6 6.3 (6.3) 

184



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The Fund’s currency rate risk is actively managed and the neutral position is to hedge 50% of the exposure 
back to sterling. The table below summarises the Fund’s currency exposure if it was unhedged as at 31st 
March 2019 and as at the previous period end: 
 

Asset value as at 
31st March 2018 

 
Currency exposure – asset type 

Asset value as at 31st 
March 2019 

£m  £m 

55.8 Overseas equities 82.4 
0 Overseas government bonds 22.4 

37.0 Overseas government index-linked bonds 33.2 
151.4 Private equity pooled funds 209 

0.3 Pooled hedge Funds 0.4 
1,577.9 Overseas and Global equity-based pooled funds  1,577.6 

12.1 Commodity-based pooled funds 19.8 
195.6 Infrastructure pooled funds 226.4 

91.4 Timberland pooled fund 132.5 
103.9 Emerging Market Debt pooled fund 110.7 

2,225.4 Total overseas assets 2,414.4 

 
 
Currency risk – sensitivity analysis 
Following analysis of historical data in consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, it is considered that 
the likely volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements is 13% (as measured by one standard 
deviation). 

 
A 13% fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on the Fund advisor’s analysis of the long-
term historical movements in the month-end exchange rates over a rolling 36-month period. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

 
A 13% strengthening/weakening of the pound against the various currencies in which the fund holds 
investments would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:  
 
 

 
 

Current exposure – asset type 

Asset value as 
at 31st March 

2019 

Change to net assets 
available to pay benefits 

  +13% -13% 
 £m £m £m 

Overseas equities 
Overseas government bonds 
Overseas governmet index-linked bonds 
Private equity pooled funds 
Pooled hedge funds 
Overseas equity-based pooled funds 
Commodity-based pooled funds 
Infrastructure pooled funds 
Timberland pooled fund 

82.4 
22.4 
33.2 

209.0 
0.4 

1,577.6 
19.8 

226.4 
132.5 

93.1 
25.3 
37.5 

236.2 
0.5 

1782.7 
22.4 

255.8 
149.7 

71.7 
19.5 
28.9 

181.8 
0.4 

1,372.5 
17.2 

197.0 
115.3 

Emerging Market Debt pooled fund 110.7 125.1 96.3 

Total change in assets available 2,414.4 2,728.3 2100.6 

 
At 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018 the Fund has an active currency manager with a portfolio based on a 
notional value of £340m, and this is the maximum exposure that they are allowed to have. In order to achieve 
gains within their portfolios they utilise forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options.  
 

185



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The portfolios have an average target volatility of 2.5% and as a result the Fund is exposed to currency risk 
through these portfolios. The table below shows the likely impact onto the net assets available to pay benefits. 

 
 

Currency exposure – asset type 

Asset value as 
at 31st March 

2019 

Change to net assets 
available to pay benefits 

  +2.5% -2.5% 
 £m £m £m 

Active currency portfolios 340.0 348.5 331.5 

Total change in assets available 340.0 348.5 331.5 

 
 
 
Currency exposure – asset type 

Asset value as 
at 31st March 

2018 

Change to net assets 
available to pay benefits 

  +2.5% -2.5% 
 £m £m £m 

Active currency portfolios 340.0 348.5 331.5 

Total change in assets available 340.0 348.5 331.5 

 
b) Credit risk 

 
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or financial instrument will fail to discharge 
an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The market value of investments generally reflects an 
assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying 
value of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. 

 
In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the exception of 
derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive derivative position. However, 
the selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may 
occur through the failure to settle a transaction in a timely manner. 

 
Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment or receipt that remains outstanding, and the cost of 
replacing the derivative position in the event of a counterparty default. The residual risk is minimal due to various 
insurance policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties. 

 
Credit risk on over-the-counter derivative contracts is minimised as counterparties are recognised financial 
intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings determined by a recognised ratings agency. 

 
Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and have a high 
credit rating. Many of the Fund’s investment managers use the money market fund run by the Fund’s custodian 
to deposit any cash within their portfolios, although one manager (Kames Capital) lends cash directly to 
individual counterparties in the London money markets. Any cash held directly by the Fund is deposited in a 
Aberdeen Standard Life Money Market Fund. 

 
The Fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk and has never had any experience of default of 
uncollectible deposits. The Fund’s cash holding at 31st March 2019 was £129.1m  (31st March 2018: £157.6m).  
  
c) Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure that it has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. All of 
the Fund’s cash holdings are available for immediate access, although on some occasions this will involve 
withdrawing cash balances from the portfolios of investment managers. 
 
 

186



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

The Fund is allowed to borrow to meet short-term cash flow requirements, although this is an option that is only 
likely to be used in exceptional circumstances. 
 
The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid assets are 
those assets which will take longer than three months to convert to cash. As at 31st March 2019 the value of 
illiquid assets (considered to be the Fund’s investments in property, hedge funds, private equity, timberland and 
infrastructure) was £954.9m, which represented 22.1% of total Fund assets. (31st March 2018: £804.5m, which 
represented 19.7% of total Fund assets). 
 
The Fund remains cash flow positive for non-investment related items so there is no requirement to produce 
detailed cash flow forecasts. All investment related cash flows are known about sufficiently far in advance that 
they can be covered by taking action in a manner that is both cost-effective and in line with the Fund’s 
investment strategy. 
 
All financial liabilities at 31st March 2019 are due within one year. 
 
Refinancing risk 
The key risk is that the Fund will be forced to sell a significant proportion of its financial instruments at a time of 
unfavourable interest rates, but this appears a highly unlikely scenario. The Fund’s investment strategy and the 
structure of its portfolios have sufficient flexibility to ensure that any required sales are considered to be the 
ones that are in the best financial interests of the Fund at that time. There are no financial instruments that have 
a refinancing risk as part of the Fund’s treasury management and investment strategies. 
 
Securities Lending  
The Fund ceased to take part in securities lending activities towards the end of the 2017/18 financial year and 
there was no stock on loan at 31 March 2019 
 
Reputational Risk  
The Fund’s prudent approach to the collective risks listed above and through best practice in corporate 
governance ensures that reputational risk is kept to a minimum. 
 
 

24.  Related Party Transactions 
 
Leicestershire County Council is the administering authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
within Leicestershire and is one of the major employers within the scheme. Information regarding key 
management personnel is provided within the main accounts of Leicestershire County Council. Members and 
officers of the Council involved in managing the Fund are allowed to be members of the LGPS. All transactions 
between Leicestershire County Council and the Fund and all benefit payments from the Fund are in accordance 
with the regulations governing the LGPS. There are no transactions therefore that are made on a different basis 
from those with non-related parties. 
 
LGPS Central Ltd has been established to manage, on a pooled basis, investment assets of nine Local Government 
Pension Schemes across the Midlands. It is jointly owned in equal amounts by the eight Administering 
Authorities participating in the Pool. £1.3m is invested in the share capital and £0.7m in a corporate bond with 
LGPS Central Ltd.   
 
During 2018/19 a total of £0.8m was payable to LPGS Central Ltd for governance, operator and product 
development fees, and investment management and transaction fees. Of these £0.2m was a creditor balance at 
the year end. During 2018/19 £0.5m was received from LPGS Central Ltd as reimbursement for set up costs 
advanced in 2017/18. As at 31 March 2019, £350m of LCC LGPS investments were managed by LGPS Central Ltd. 
 
 
 
 
 

187



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

25. Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments 
 
When a member has left the Pension Fund before accruing sufficient service to qualify for a benefit from the 
scheme, they may choose either a refund of contributions or a transfer value to another pension fund.  There 
are a significant number of these leavers who have not taken either of these options and as their ultimate choice 
is unknown, it is not possible to reliably estimate a liability.  The impact of these ‘frozen refunds’ has, however, 
been considered in the calculation of the actuarial liabilities of the fund. 

 
If all of these individuals choose to take a refund of contributions the cost to the Fund will be around £1.7m, 
although the statutory requirement of the Fund to pay interest to some members would increase this figure.  
Should all of the members opt to transfer to another scheme the cost will be considerably higher. 
 
McCloud Judgement - a ruling has been made by the Court of Appeal regarding age discrimination arising from 
public sector pension scheme transition arrangements.  LGPS benefits accrued from 2014 may therefore need 
to be enhanced so that all members, regardless of age, will benefit from the protections.  The UK Government 
requested leave to appeal to the Supreme Court, but this was denied at the end of June 2019.   The Fund’s 
actuary has estimated the impact on the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund to be approximately £56m. 
This has been included in the IAS19 estimate shown within the Pension Fund Accounts Reporting Requirement 
report appended to the end of the Pension Fund Accounts. 
 
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions – a ruling has been made that (LGPS) defined benefit pension schemes must 
compensate members for differences attributable to guaranteed minimum pensions (GMPs). In broad terms, 
the GMP represents the minimum pension an occupational pension scheme must provide a scheme member 
as an alternative to the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (SERPS). GMPs are inherently unequal due to a 
number of factors including the different retirement ages for men and women and female GMPs accruing at a 
higher rate. Currently the Government have only agreed to an interim solution whereby LGPS Funds (and 
therefore employers within) have to pay all the increases on their GMP.  If the interim solution is made 
permanent it is estimated that the impact for the Authority could be up to a 0.5% increase in overall liabilities. 
This would add up to £35m to the overall net pensions liability.  Due to the uncertainty around the 
implementation and potential Government appeal against the ruling, the impact has not yet been included in 
the IAS19 estimate for the pension fund. 
 
At 31st March 2019, the Fund had the following contractual commitments:- 
 

 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 

 £m £m 

Adams Street Partners 151.4 143.2 

Catapult Venture Managers 0.5 0.5 

KKR Global Infrastructure 42.6 36.7 

Stafford International Timberland VI Fund 1.5 1.5 

Stafford International Timberland Funds VII & VIII 43.8 8.5 

M & G Debt Opportunities Fund IV  40.0 28.7 

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 21.3 23 

Aberdeen Standard Life Capital SOF III Fund  22.0 21.1 

Kames Active Value Property Unit Trust II 18.2 12.5 

Infracapital Greenfield Partners I Fund 26.9 19.3 

JPM Infrastructure Investment Fund 20.0 0.0 

Partners 2018 Multi Asset Credit Fund 78.0 0.0 

Total 466.2 295.0 

 
 
 

 

188



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

26.     Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC’s) 
 
The Fund has an arrangement with Prudential whereby additional contributions can be paid to them for 
investment, with the intention that the accumulated value will be used to purchase additional retirement 
benefits. AVCs are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with Regulation 4(2) (c) of the 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009. 
 
During 2018/19, £1.8m (2017/18 £1.8m) in contributions were paid to Prudential. At the year end the capital 
value of all AVC’s was £14.0m, (31.3.18, £14.1m). 
 
 

27. Policy Statements 
 
The Fund has a number of policy statements that are available on request from the Technical Accounting Team, 
Strategic Finance, Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester. LE3 8RB (email 
technical.accoutingteam@leics.gov.uk). They have not been reproduced within the Accounts as in combination 
they are sizeable, and it is not considered that they would add any significant value to most users of the accounts. 
The Statements are: 
 
Statement of Investment Principles (SIPs) 
Communications Policy Statement 
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) 

 
 

 28.     Compliance Statement 
 
Income and other taxes 
The Fund has been able to gain either total or partial relief from local taxation on the Fund’s investment 
income from eligible countries.  The Fund is exempt from UK Capital Gains and Corporation tax. 
  
Self-investment 
There has been no material employer related investment in 2018/19 (or 2017/18). There were occasions on 
which contributions were paid over by the employer later than the statutory date, and these instances are 
technically classed as self-investment. In no instance were the sums involved material, and neither were they 
outstanding for long periods.   
 
Calculation of transfer values 
There are no discretionary benefits included in the calculation of transfer values. 
 
Pension Increase 
All pension increases are made in accordance with the Pensions Increase (Review) Order 1997. 
 
Changes to LGPS 
All changes to LGPS are made via the issue of Statutory Instruments by Central Government. 

 

  

189

mailto:technical.accoutingteam@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”)                                   
Actuarial Statement for 2018/19 

 
This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013.   It has been prepared at the request of the Administering Authority of the Fund for 
the purpose of complying with the aforementioned regulation.  

Description of Funding Policy 

The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), effective from 
15  February 2019.  In summary, the key funding principles are as follows: 

• to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long term view.  This will ensure that 

sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment; 

• to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

• to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund by recognising 

the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and 

return (NB. this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers); 

• to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates.  This 

involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer 

can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

• to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax 

payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the 
solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.  For employers whose covenant was 
considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to 
return their portion of the Fund to full funding over 20 years if the valuation assumptions are borne out.  
Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate that if these contribution rates are paid and 
future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the FSS, there is still at least a 66% chance that the 
Fund will return to full funding over 20 years. 

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation 

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 
2016 were valued at £3,164 million, were sufficient to meet 76.2% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of 
promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £989 
million. 

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full funding 
within a specified time period as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS.   

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities 

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2016 valuation report. 

Method 

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable 
membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to 
retirement or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership. 

190



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Assumptions 

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund 
assets at their market value.  

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows: 

Financial assumptions 31 March 2016 

Discount rate 4.0% 

Salary increase assumption 3.2% 

Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.1% 

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy assumptions are 
based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current 
rate of improvements has reached a peak and will converge to long term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these 
assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:  

        

Males Females 

Current Pensioners  22.1 years  24.3 years 
Future Pensioners*  23.8 years  26.2 years 

*Aged 45 at the 2016 Valuation. 

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from the 
Administering Authority to the Fund.  

Experience over the period since 31 March 2016 

Since the last formal valuation, real bond yields have fallen placing a higher value on the liabilities but there 
have been strong asset returns over the 3 years.  Both events are of broadly similar magnitude with regards to 
the impact on the funding position. 

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also 
be reviewed at that time.  

 

Richard Warden FFA 
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 
26 April 2019 
 
Hymans Robertson LLP 
20 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 6DB 

 

  

191



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Pension Fund Accounts Reporting Requirement 

Introduction 

CIPFA's Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2018/19 requires Administering Authorities of LGPS 

funds that prepare pension fund accounts to disclose what IAS26 refers to as the actuarial present value of 

promised retirement benefits. I have been instructed by the Administering Authority to provide the necessary 

information for the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”). 

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is to be calculated similarly to the Defined Benefit 

Obligation under IAS19. There are three options for its disclosure in the pension fund accounts: 

• showing the figure in the Net Assets Statement, in which case it requires the statement to disclose the 

resulting surplus or deficit; 

• as a note to the accounts; or 

• by reference to this information in an accompanying actuarial report. 

If an actuarial valuation has not been prepared at the date of the financial statements, IAS26 requires the most 

recent valuation to be used as a base and the date of the valuation disclosed. The valuation should be carried 

out using assumptions in line with IAS19 and not the Fund’s funding assumptions. 

Present value of promised retirement benefits 

Year ended 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

Active members (£m) 3,789 3,063 

Deferred members (£m) 1,414 1,258 

Pensioners (£m) 1,827 1,820 

Total (£m) 7,030 6,141 

The promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2019 have been projected using a roll forward approximation 

from the latest formal funding valuation as at 31 March 2016.  The approximation involved in the roll forward 

model means that the split of benefits between the three classes of member may not be reliable.  However, I 

am satisfied that the total figure is a reasonable estimate of the actuarial present value of benefit promises.  

Note that the above figures include an allowance for the “McCloud ruling”, i.e. an estimate of the potential 

increase in past service benefits arising from the case affecting public sector pension schemes.  

The above figures include both vested and non-vested benefits, although the latter is assumed to have a 

negligible value.  Further, I have not made any allowance for unfunded benefits.  

It should be noted the above figures are appropriate for the Administering Authority only for preparation of 

the pension fund accounts. They should not be used for any other purpose (i.e. comparing against liability 

measures on a funding basis or a cessation basis). 

Assumptions 

The assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS19 report and are different as at 

31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.  I estimate that the impact of the change in financial assumptions to 31 

March 2019 is to increase the actuarial present value by £552m.  There is no impact from any change in the 

demographic and longevity assumptions because they are identical to the previous period. 

192



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Financial assumptions 

Year ended (% p.a.) 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

Pension Increase Rate 2.5% 2.4% 

Salary Increase Rate 3.5% 3.4% 

Discount Rate 2.4% 2.7% 

Longevity assumptions 

Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2013 model, 

assuming the current rate of improvements has reached a peak and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% 

p.a..  Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below: 

 Males Females 

Current pensioners 22.1 years 24.3 years 

Future pensioners (assumed to be aged 45 at the latest formal valuation) 23.8 years 26.2 years 

Please note that the longevity assumptions have not changed since the previous IAS26 disclosure for the Fund. 

Commutation assumptions 

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum additional tax-free cash 

up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post-April 2008 

service.   

Sensitivity Analysis 

CIPFA guidance requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used. 

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the liabilities are set out below: 

Sensitivity to the assumptions for the year ended 

31 March 2019 

Approximate % increase 

to liabilities 

Approximate monetary 

amount (£m) 

0.5% p.a. increase in the Pension Increase Rate 9% 605 

0.5% p.a. increase in the Salary Increase Rate 2% 118 

0.5% p.a. decrease in the Real Discount Rate 11% 771 

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption.  For sensitivity purposes, I estimate that a 

1 year increase in life expectancy would approximately increase the liabilities by around 3-5%.   

Professional notes 

This paper accompanies my covering report titled ‘Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2019 for accounting 

purposes’.  The covering report identifies the appropriate reliances and limitations for the use of the figures in 

this paper, together with further details regarding the professional requirements and assumptions. This 

replaces our paper dated 25 April 2019, as this now includes allowance for the “McCloud ruling”. 

Prepared by:- 

 
 
Richard Warden FFA 
10 July 2019 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

193



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

Statement of Responsibilities for Leicestershire County 
Council Pension Fund 
 

THE AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Authority is required to: 
 
▪ Make arrangements for the proper administration of the financial affairs of its Pension Fund and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this Authority, that 
officer is the Director of Corporate Resources. 

▪ Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 
▪ Approve the statement of accounts 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Pension Fund 
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper accounting practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code’). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Corporate Resources has: 
 
▪ Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 
▪ Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 
▪ Complied with the Local Authority Code. 
▪ Kept proper accounting records which were up to date, 
▪ Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
▪ Assessed  the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern; 
▪ Used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of the Pension Fund will 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and 
▪ Maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
I certify that the above responsibilities have been complied with and the Statement of Accounts herewith 
presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund as at 31 
March 2019 and its income and expenditure for the year ended the same date. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
C TAMBINI      
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   
29 JULY 2019 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

194



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Leicestershire County 

Council on the pension fund financial statements of Leicestershire 

County Council Pension Fund. 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (the ‘pension 

fund’) administered by Leicestershire County Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2019 

which comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and notes to the pension fund financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework 

that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on 

local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year ended 31 
March 2019 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s assets and liabilities, 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and  

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 

Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the pension fund’s 

financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 

us to report to you where: 

the Director of Corporate Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of 

the pension fund’s financial statements is not appropriate; or 

the Director of Corporate Resources has not disclosed in the pension fund’s financial statements any 

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to 

adopt the going concern basis of accounting for the pension fund for a period of at least twelve months 

from the date when the pension fund’s financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and 

Pension Fund accounts, other than the pension fund’s financial statements, our auditor’s report thereon 

and our auditor’s report on the Authority’s financial statements. Our opinion on the pension fund’s 

financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the pension fund’s financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the pension fund’s financial statements or our knowledge of the pension fund obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 

pension fund’s financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the  

195



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit 

Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the pension fund’s financial 

statements and our knowledge of the pension fund the other information published together with the 

pension fund’s financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual 

Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 

consistent with the pension fund’s financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 

we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 

Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 

audit; or;  

we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the 

course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or  

we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Corporate Resources and Those Charged with 

Governance for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on pages 114, the Authority is 

required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that 

officer is the Director of Corporate Resources. The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for 

the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund’s financial statements, in 

accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for 

such internal control as the determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the pension fund’s financial statements, the Director of Corporate Resources is responsible 

for assessing the pension fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an 

intention by government that the services provided by the pension fund will no longer be provided.  

The Corporate Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with 

governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the pension fund’s financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

196



Pension Fund Accounts 

 

 

 
 

 

 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 

Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 

part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report  

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters 

we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the 

Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

J Gregory 

 

John Gregory, Key Audit Partner 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 

Birmingham 

 

31 July 2019 

 

197



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT UPDATE. 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To purpose of this report is to consult the Committee on the updated draft 
Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) for the Leicestershire County Council Pension 
Fund, a copy of which is attached as the appendix to this report. 

 
 Background 
 
2. On 1st November 2016 new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

Investment Regulations became effective. These Regulations removed the 
restrictions on investments that were formerly in place for the LGPS (none of which 
had any practical impact onto the Leicestershire Fund) and, in effect, allowed 
individual Funds complete discretion about where and how to invest. The 
Regulations also introduced a requirement for administering authorities to 
formulate, publish and maintain an Investment Strategy Statement. 

 
3.  The Investment Strategy Statement was first agreed by the Local Pension 

Committee on 17 January 2017. The Appendix is a updated version, however the 
principals within it have remained the same. 

 
 

Statutory Background 
 

4. The Investment Strategy Statement must include: 
 

a) A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments;  

b) The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types 
of investments;  

c) The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be 
measured and managed;  

d) The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective 
investment vehicles and shared services;  

e) The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate governance 
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention 
and realisation of investments; and  

f) The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching 
to investments 

 
5. As with all policy documents it would be possible for the ISS to go into great depth, 

but this could potentially be counterproductive. Ideally a Pension Fund should have 

199 Agenda Item 9



 

flexibility to be able to take into account changes in the market situation in order to 
be able to enhance or protect returns.  

 
6. Within the Leicestershire Fund there is clearly defined governance around the 

setting of a Strategic Benchmark for the Fund by this Committee, with this strategy 
being implemented based on decisions agreed either by this Committee or the 
Investment Subcommittee. There is the ability to utilise the Director of Corporate 
Resources’ delegated powers, subject to consultation with the Chairman, but this is 
used sparingly and generally only within the parameters provided by the Strategic 
Benchmark. As a result, it is considered preferable that the ISS is written in such a 
way that it does not require regular amendment unless there are fundamental 
changes to the Fund’s approach. 

 
Next Steps  

 
7.  The report will be received by the Local Pension Board at the meeting of the 2 

December 2019 before final approval by the Local Pension Committee on 24 
January 2020. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
8.  It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee comment on the draft 

Investment Strategy Statement. 
   

  Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
  None specific. 
 
  Background Papers 
   
  17 January 2016 – Local Pension Committee - Draft Investment Strategy Statement  

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s125629/Appendix%20-%20Draft%20Investment%20Strategy%20Statement.pdf 
 

 
  Appendix 
 
  Draft Investment Strategy Statement 
 
  Officers to Contact 

 
  Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
  Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
  Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
  Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

200

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s125629/Appendix%20-%20Draft%20Investment%20Strategy%20Statement.pdf


  
 

1 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 
 
 

Effective: January 2020 

 
 

 
 
  

PENSION INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 

201

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

2 | P a g e  

 

Investment Strategy Statement  
 

1. Introduction and background 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”), of which the Fund is a part, is 

established under the Superannuation Act 1972 and is regulated by a series of Regulations 

made under the 1972 Act. 

 

All LGPS funds in England and Wales are required to have an Investment Strategy 

Statement (“ISS” or “Statement”).  This is the Investment Strategy Statement (“ISS”) of the 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is administered by 

Leicestershire County Council, (“the Administering Authority”). The ISS is composed in 

accordance with Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (“the Regulations”). 

 

The ISS has been prepared by the Fund’s Local Pension Committee (“the Committee”).  

Committee acts on the delegated authority of the Administering Authority. 

 

The ISS, which was approved by the Committee on 24th January 2020, is subject to periodic 

review at least every three years and without delay after any significant change in 

investment policy. The Committee has consulted on the contents of the Fund’s investment 

strategy with such persons it considers appropriate. 

 

The Committee seeks to invest, in accordance with the ISS, any Fund money that is not 

needed immediately to make payments from the Fund. The ISS should be read in 

conjunction with the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement dated 24th January 2020. 

 

The remaining parts of this statement will cover the following; policies for investments, asset 

allocation, risks, and our approach to pooling which will appear in the following order. 

 

 Governance  
 

 Fund Objectives  
 

 Fund Management  
 

 Asset Allocation 
 

 Risks 
 

 Asset Investment Pooling 
 

 Responsible Investment 
 

  

202

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

3 | P a g e  

 

2. Governance 

 

Leicestershire County Council, as the administering authority, has delegated responsibility 

for the management of the Fund to the Local Pension Committee (Committee).  The 

Committee has responsibility for establishing an investment policy and its ongoing 

implementation. 

 

Members of the Pension Committee have a fiduciary duty to safeguard, above all else, the 

financial interests of the Fund’s beneficiaries.  Beneficiaries, in this context, are the 

members of the Fund who are entitled to benefits (pensioners, previous and current 

employees) and the employing organisations. Other key stakeholders are the beneficiaries 

of the employing organisations services, for example local Council Tax payers. 

 

Decisions affecting the Fund’s investment strategy are taken with appropriate advice from 

the Fund’s advisers.  Only persons or organisations with the necessary skills take decisions 

affecting the Fund.  The Members of the Pension Committee do receive training as and 

when deemed appropriate, to enable them to critically evaluate any advice they receive. 

 

The Chief Financial Officer of Leicestershire County Council has responsibilities under 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and provides financial advice to the 

Committee, including financial management, issues of compliance with internal regulations 

and controls, budgeting and accounting. 

 

 
3. Fund Objectives 

 

The primary objective of the Fund is to provide pension and lump sum benefits as and when 

they fall due for members or their dependents.   

 

The funding position will be reviewed triennially through an actuarial valuation, or more 

frequently as required.  Payments will be met by employer contributions, resulting from the 

funding strategy, employee contributions or financial returns from the investment strategy.   

 

The funding strategy and investment strategy are therefore inextricably linked.  

Leicestershire County Councils funding strategy can be found at: 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-

statement-v2.pdf 

 

The Committee believes in a long term investment strategy with regular reviews, usually 

annually in the form of the asset allocation review.  We aim to maximise returns from the 

Fund whilst maintaining an acceptable level of risk. 

 

The Committee sets an investment strategy that focuses on the suitability of investments 
based on factors including, but is not limited to: 

 

 The level of expected risk 

203

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf


  
 

4 | P a g e  

 

 

 Outlook for asset returns 

 

 Liquidity and cashflow 

 

The Fund has a number of investment beliefs that are taken into account when agreeing an 

asset allocation policy.   

 

 The long term nature of LGPS liabilities allows for a long term approach to investing. 

 

 Liabilities influence the asset structure; funds exist to meet their obligations. 

 

 Risk premiums exist for certain investments, taking advantage of these can improve 

investment returns. 

 

 Markets can be inefficient, and mispriced for long periods of time, therefore there is a 

place for active and passive investment management. 

 

 Diversification across investments with low correlation reduces volatility, but over 

diversification is both costly and adds little value. 

 

 The Fund should be flexible enough in its asset allocation policy to take advantage of 

opportunities that arise from market inefficiencies, and also flexible enough to protect 

against identifiable short-term risks when this is both practical and cost-effective. 

 

 Responsible investment can enhance long term investment performance and investment 

managers will only be appointed if they integrate responsible investment into their 

decision-making processes. 

 

 Investment management costs should be minimized where possible but net investment 

returns after costs are the most important factor. 

 

4.  Fund management 

 

The Committee aims to structure the Fund in such a manner that, in normal market 

conditions, all accrued benefits are fully covered by the value of the Fund's assets and that 

an appropriate level of contributions is set for each employer to meet the cost of future 

benefits accruing.  The Fund considers the employers covenant to meet liabilities.  The Fund 

will work in partnership with these employers where their ability to meet liabilities may be in 

question in order to protect other Fund employers from the consequences of default. 

 

The Committee has translated its objectives into a suitable strategic asset allocation 

benchmark for the Fund. This benchmark is consistent with the Committee’s views on the 

appropriate balance between generating a satisfactory long-term return on investments 

whilst taking account of market volatility and risk and the nature of the Fund’s liabilities. 

 

204

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

5 | P a g e  

 

It is intended that the Fund’s investment strategy will be reviewed annually.  Information 

available from several sources, including the triennial actuarial valuation, will be used to 

guide the setting of the investment strategy, however, the strategy does not look to match 

assets and liabilities in such a way that their values move in a broadly similar manner.  Asset 

/ liability matching in this way would lead to employers’ contribution rates that are too high to 

be affordable, so there will inevitably be volatility around the funding level (i.e. to ratio of the 

Fund’s assets to its liabilities). 

 

It is recognised that the maturity profile of the Fund (in terms of the relative proportions of 

liabilities in respect of pensioners, deferred and active members), together with the level of 

disclosed surplus or deficit have a role to play in the setting of investment strategy.  As the 

Fund grows more mature it is likely that a more defensive investment strategy will be 

adopted, whereby a lower level of return is considered an attractive ‘trade off’ as it should be 

achieved at a lower level of volatility.  These issues do not currently have a material 

influence on the investment strategy adopted. 

 

In general terms the investment strategy approved will be a blend of asset classes that are 

diverse enough to dampen some volatility (e.g. if equity markets fall, other assets may rise 

or fall less significantly), without being so diverse that the strategy becomes unmanageable 

and costly.  Expected long-term returns, levels of volatility and correlation in the performance 

of different asset classes will all have a role to play in setting the strategy. 

 

By their very nature investment markets are unpredictable and it is impossible to have any 

certainty around future returns and volatility, so the setting of any investment strategy cannot 

be more than an imprecise way of arriving at an ‘appropriate’ split of assets.  As strategy is, 

however, the biggest driver of future investment returns it is important that sufficient time is 

spent in designing and implementing a strategy that is sensible for the Fund. 

 

The Fund’s actual allocation is monitored by Officers and Committee on a regular basis to 

ensure it does not notably deviate from the target allocation. 

 

5.   Asset Allocation  

 

5.1 Investing in a variety of asset classes 

 

The Fund may invest in quoted and unquoted securities of UK and overseas markets 

including equities, fixed interest, index linked bonds, cash, property, infrastructure and 

commodities either directly or through pooled funds.  These asset classes are only examples 

of the types of investments that may be held and are not intended to be an exhaustive list.  

The Fund may also make use of contracts for difference and other derivatives either directly 

or in pooled funds investing in these products for efficient portfolio management or to hedge 

specific risks. 

205

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

6 | P a g e  

 

The Committee reviews the nature of Fund investments on a regular basis, with reference to 

suitability and diversification. The Committee seeks and considers written advice from our 

advisors for such a review.  If, at any time, an investment in a security or product not 

previously known to the Committee is proposed, appropriate advice is sought and 

considered to ensure its suitability. 

 

The Fund’s target asset allocation as at January 2019 and January 2020 is set out below.  

As far as is practical and cost-effective, attempts will be made to maintain an actual asset 

allocation split that is close to the target strategy.   

 

5.2 Target Asset Allocation [UPDATE WITH JAN 20 ALLOCATION] 

  

As at January 2019, the expected return of this portfolio allocation was 3.4% p.a. above 
Consumer Price Inflation. 

 

5.3 Restrictions on investment 

 

Restrictions are based on the strategic asset allocation policy which is described in section 5 

above.   

 

In line with the Regulations, the authority’s investment strategy does not permit more than 

5% of the total value of all investments of fund money to be invested in entities which are 

connected with that authority within the meaning of section 212 of the Local Government 

and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

 

 

5.4 Managers 
 

The Committee has appointed a number of investment managers all of whom are authorised 

under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to undertake investment business.  The 

Committee, after seeking appropriate investment advice, has agreed specific benchmarks 

Asset class Notes

Listed Equities 40.0 44.0

Private equity 4.0 4.0

Total Equity 44.0 48.0

Index linked bonds 7.5 7.5

Infra / Timberland 9.0 9.0

Property 10.0 10.0

Real assets 26.5 26.5

Targeted Return 9.5 11.5

Emerging Market Debt 2.5 2.5

Global credit 7.5 7.5

Opportunity Pool 4.0 8.0

Alternatives 23.5 29.5

Target Allocation Jan 2019 % 

Lower & Upper limits

Target Allocation Jan 2020 % 

Lower & Upper limits

206

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

7 | P a g e  

 

with each manager so that, in aggregate, they are consistent with the overall asset allocation 

for the Fund. The Fund’s investment managers will hold a mix of investments which reflects 

their views relative to their respective benchmarks.  Within each major market and asset 

class, the managers will maintain diversified portfolios through direct investment or pooled 

vehicles. The manager of the passive funds in which the Fund invests holds a mix of 

investments within each pooled fund that reflects that of their respective benchmark indices. 

 

6.  Risks 
 

The Committee is aware that the Fund has a need to take risk (e.g. investing in growth 

assets) to help it achieve its funding objectives.  Officers, investment consultants and for 

relevant assets LGPS Central manage, measure, monitor and (where possible) mitigate the 

risks being taken, in order that they remain consistent with the overall level of risk that is 

acceptable to the Committee.  One of the Committee’s overarching beliefs is to only take as 

much investment risk as is necessary.   

 

The overall risk is that the Fund’s assets are insufficient to meet its liabilities.  The Funding 

Strategy Statement calculates the value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities and with the 

triennial valuation sets out how any difference in value will be addressed. 

 

The principal risks affecting the Fund are set out below.  They are grouped into 3 areas, 

funding risks, asset risk and other risk.  The Fund’s approach to managing these 3 types of 

risks are explained after each section.   

 

6.1 Funding risks 

 

 Financial mismatch – The risk that Fund assets fail to grow in line with the developing 

cost of meeting the liabilities. 

 

 Changing demographics – The risk that longevity improves and other demographic 

factors change, increasing the cost to the Fund of providing benefits. 

 

 Systemic risk - The possibility of an interlinked and simultaneous failure of several asset 

classes and / or investment managers, possibly compounded by financial contagion, 

resulting in an increase in the cost of meeting the Fund’s liabilities. 

 

6.11 How we manage funding risks 

 

The Committee measures and manages financial mismatch in two ways.  As indicated 

above, the Committee has set a strategic asset allocation benchmark for the Fund.  This 

benchmark was set after considering expected future returns from the different asset 

classes, and considers historic levels of volatility of each asset class and their correlation to 

each other.  The Committee assesses risk relative to the strategic benchmark by monitoring 

the Fund’s asset allocation and investment returns relative to the benchmark. 

 

207

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

8 | P a g e  

 

The Committee also seeks to understand the assumptions used in any analysis, so they can 

be compared to their own views and the level of risks associated with these assumptions to 

be assessed. 

 

The Committee seeks to mitigate systemic risk through a diversified portfolio, but it is not 

possible to make specific provision for all possible eventualities that may arise under this 

heading. 

 

6.2 Asset risks 
 

 Concentration - The risk that a significant allocation to any single asset category and its 

underperformance relative to expectation would result in difficulties in achieving funding 

objectives. 

 

 Illiquidity - The risk that the Fund cannot meet its immediate liabilities because it has 

insufficient liquid assets. 

 

 Currency risk – The risk that the currency of the Fund’s assets underperforms relative to 

Sterling (i.e. the currency of the liabilities). 

 

 Environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) – The risk that ESG related factors 

reduce the Fund’s ability to generate the long-term returns. 

 

 Manager underperformance - The failure by the investment managers to achieve the rate 

of investment return assumed in setting their mandates. 

 

6.21 How we manage asset risks 
 

The Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark invests in a diversified range of asset 

classes. The Committee has put in place rebalancing arrangements to ensure the Fund’s 

“actual allocation” does not deviate substantially from its target.  

 

The Fund invests in a range of investment mandates each of which has a defined objective, 

performance benchmark and manager process which, taken in aggregate, help reduce the 

Fund’s asset concentration risk.   

 

The Fund is currently cashflow positive, in that contributions from employees and employers 

are larger than benefits being paid.  The Fund invests across a range of assets, including 

liquid quoted equities and bonds, as well as property, the Committee has recognised the 

need for access to liquidity in the short term.  Whilst the fund has a growing proportion of less 

liquid assets we have a large proportion of highly traded liquid assets that can be sold readily 

in normal market conditions so that the Fund can pay immediate liabilities.   

 

The Fund invests in a range of overseas markets which provides a diversified approach to 

currency markets; the Committee also assess the Fund’s currency risk during their risk 

208

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

9 | P a g e  

 

analysis.  This currency risk is managed through a variable currency hedging programme 

designed to take account of both the risks involved with holding assets that are not 

denominated in sterling and the perceived value of overseas currencies relative to sterling.   

 

Details of the Fund’s approach to managing ESG risks are set out later in this document. 

 

The Committee has considered the risk of underperformance by any single investment 

manager and have attempted to reduce this risk by appointing multiple investment managers 

and by having a large proportion of the Fund’s equities managed on a passive basis.  The 

Committee assess the investment managers’ performance on a regular basis and will take 

steps, including potentially replacing one or more of the managers, if underperformance 

persists.  The Committee also recognises that individual managers often have an investment 

‘style’ that may be out-of-sync with market preference for prolonged periods, and that this 

could lead to lengthy periods of underperformance relative to the relevant benchmark.  If the 

Committee remain convinced by the quality of the investment manager, and the fact that 

their views remain relevant, underperformance will not necessarily lead to their replacement. 

 

6.3 Other provider risk 
 

 Transition risk - The risk of incurring costs in relation to the transition of assets between 

managers.  When carrying out significant transitions, the Committee seeks suitable 

professional advice. 

 

 Custody risk - The risk of losing economic rights to Fund assets, when held in custody or 

when being traded. 

 

 Credit default - The possibility of default of a counterparty in meeting its obligations. 

 

 Stock-lending - The possibility of default and loss of economic rights to Fund assets. 

 

6.31 How we manage these other risks 

 

The Committee expects Officers to monitor and manage risks in these areas through a 

process of regular scrutiny of the Fund’s investment managers and audit of the operations it 

conducts for the Fund.  In some cases, the Committee will have delegated such monitoring 

and management of risk to the appointed investment managers as appropriate (e.g. custody 

risk in relation to pooled funds).  The Committee has the power to replace an investment 

manager should serious concerns exist. 

 

A separate schedule of risks that the Fund monitors is set out in the Fund’s Funding 

Strategy Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

209

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

10 | P a g e  

 

7. Pooling  

 

Government instigated ‘pooling’ of pension fund investments in 2015 with the publication of 

criteria and guidance on pooling of Local Government Pension Scheme assets.  Pension 

funds formed their own groups and eight asset pools were formed, which are now all 

operational. 

 

The Fund is a participating scheme in the LGPS Central Pool (Central). The proposed 

structure and basis on which the LGPS Central Pool will operate was set out in the July 

2016 submission to Government. 

 

The LGPS Central Pool consists of the LGPS funds of: Cheshire, Leicestershire, 

Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands, the West Midlands Integrated 

Transport Authority and Worcestershire.   

Collective investment management offers the potential for substantial savings in investment 

management fees, increased opportunities for investor engagement and access to a shared 

pool of knowledge and expertise. 

 

The eight administering authorities of the pension funds within the LGPS Central Pool are 

equal shareholders in LGPS Central Limited.  LGPS Central Limited has been established to 

manage investments on behalf of the Pool and received authorisation from the Financial 

Conduct Authority in January 2018. 

 

7.1 Assets to be invested in the Pool 

 

The Fund’s intention is to invest its assets through the LGPS Central Pool as and when 

suitable Pool investment solutions become available.  LGPS Central has been operating 

since 1st April 2018. 

 

The Fund transitioned its first assets to Central, as part of the Global Equity Active Multi-

Manager Fund, at the end of February 2019.  The Fund contributed approximately 15% of 

the overall £2.1 billion assets managed in the Global Equity fund.  The Fund has since 

transferred funds into Central’s Global Emerging Markets Fund and also into the first vintage 

of the Private Equity fund.   

 

Central have a prioritised product development pipeline which takes into account the relative 

funds available from the Pool’s participants and interest to invest into each product type.     

 

8. Responsible Investing 

 

8.1 Overview and background 
 

Responsible investment is an approach to investment that aims to incorporate 

environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors into investment decisions, to better 

manage risk and generate sustainable.  It is recognised that ESG factors can influence long 

210

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

11 | P a g e  

 

term investment performance and the ability to achieve long term sustainable returns. The 

Committee consider the Fund’s approach to ESG in two key areas: 

 

 Sustainable investment / Environmental and social factors – considering the financial 

impact of environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors on its investments. 

 

 Stewardship and governance – acting as responsible and active investors/owners, 

through considered voting of shares, and engaging with investee company 

management as part of the investment process. 

 

In combination these two matters are often referred to as ‘Responsible Investment’, or ‘RI’ 

and this is the preferred terminology of the fund. 

 

8.2 Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) 
 

The Principles for Responsible Investment are recognised as the global standard for 

responsible investment for investors with fiduciary responsibilities. 

 

The Fund declares its support for the PRI and it’s 6 principles listed below.   

 

Signatories’ commitments adhere to the following including annual reporting to the PRI. 

 

“As institutional investors, we have a duty to act in the best long-term interests of our 

beneficiaries. In this fiduciary role, we believe that environmental, social, and corporate 

governance (ESG) issues can affect the performance of investment portfolios (to varying 

degrees across companies, sectors, regions, asset classes and through time). 

 

We also recognise that applying these Principles may better align investors with broader 

objectives of society. Therefore, where consistent with our fiduciary responsibilities, we 

commit to the following: 

 

Principle 1: We will incorporate ESG issues into investment analysis and decision-making 

processes. 

 

Principle 2: We will be active owners and incorporate ESG issues into our ownership policies 

and practices.  

 

Principle 3: We will seek appropriate disclosure on ESG issues by the entities in which we 

invest.  

 

Principle 4: We will promote acceptance and implementation of the Principles within the 

investment industry.  

 

211

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

12 | P a g e  

 

Principle 5: We will work together to enhance our effectiveness in implementing the 

Principles.  

 

Principle 6: We will each report on our activities and progress towards implementing the 

Principles. 

 

The fund is aware of RI duties and ultimately aim to balance our approach with the cost to 

LGPS employers, who in the main are providing social and environmental services to the 

local population. 

 

8.3 Responsible Investing and LGPS central 

 

In addition to support for the PRI, the Fund’s investments that LGPS Central manages and 

advises upon are subject to Central’s Responsible Investment and Engagement (RI and E) 

Framework.  The RI and E framework can be found at:  

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-

Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf 

 

Critical to the framework is Central’s Investment and RI beliefs, which the committee has 

endorsed and is summarised below: 

 

Long termism: A long term approach to investment will deliver better returns and the long 

term nature of LGPS liabilities allows for a long term investment horizon. 

 

Responsible investment: Responsible investment is supportive of risk adjusted returns over 

the long term, across all asset classes.  Responsible investment should be integrated into 

the investment processes of the Company and its investment managers. 

 

Diversification, risk management and stewardship: Diversification across investments with 

low correlation improves the risk return profile. A strategy of engagement, rather than 

exclusion, is more compatible with fiduciary duty and more supportive of responsible 

investment, because the opportunity to influence companies through stewardship is waived 

in a divestment approach.  Even well diversified portfolios face systematic risk.  Systematic 

risk can be mitigated over the long term through widespread stewardship and industry 

participation. 

 

Corporate governance and cognitive diversity: Investee companies and asset managers with 

robust governance structures should be better positioned to handle the effects of shocks and 

stresses of future events. There is clear evidence showing that decision making and 

performance are improved when company boards and investment teams are composed of 

cognitively diverse individuals. 

 

Fees and remuneration: The management fees of investment managers and the 

remuneration policies of investee companies are of significance for the Company’s clients, 

particularly in a low return environment.  Fees and remuneration should be aligned with the 

212

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/LGPS-Central-Responsible-Investment-and-Engagement-Framework.pdf


  
 

13 | P a g e  

 

long term interests of our clients, and value for money is more important than the simple 

minimisation of costs. 

 

Risk and opportunity: Risk premia exist for certain investments; taking advantage of these 

can help to improve investment returns. There is risk but also opportunity in holding 

companies that have weak governance of financially material ESG issues.  Opportunities 

can be captured so long as they are aligned with the Company’s objectives and strategy, 

and so long as there is a sufficient evidence base upon which to make an investment 

decision. 

 

Climate change1: Financial markets could be materially impacted by climate change and by 

the response of climate policymakers.  Responsible investors should proactively manage 

this risk factor through stewardship activities, using partnerships of likeminded investors 

where feasible. 

 
1
By highlighting climate change, rather than other RI risk factors, we are not asserting that climate risk has, for all 

assets, greater economic significance than other factors.  Our motivation for referring specifically to climate 

change risk derives from our recognition that it is a risk factor of particular importance to a number of 

stakeholders, and we have communicated our investment beliefs about climate change for reasons of 

transparency. 

 

LGPS Central is a signatory to the PRI and as such the Fund’s investments via Central will 

be in line with the principles outlined earlier in this report.  In addition, we have a pipeline of 

Fund transitions to Central as well as a number of advisory mandates which benefit from 

Central’s RI approach and resource.  

 

8.4 The Funds current ESG approach 

 

As institutional investors, we have a duty to act in the best long-term interests of the 

beneficiaries.  In this fiduciary role, we believe that environmental, social, and corporate 

governance (ESG) issues can affect the performance of investment portfolios to varying 

degrees across companies, sectors, regions, asset classes and through time.  

We also recognise that applying these Principles may better align investors with broader 

objectives of society.   

 

The Committee takes RI matters seriously and will not appoint any manager unless they can 

show evidence that RI considerations are an integral part of their investment decision-

making processes.  

 
The Committee understand the Fund is not able to exclude investments to pursue boycotts, 

divestment and sanctions against foreign nations and UK defence industries, other than 

where formal legal sanctions, embargoes and restrictions have been put in place by the 

Government. 

 

213

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


  
 

14 | P a g e  

 

To date, the Fund’s approach to Responsible Investment has largely been to delegate this to 

their underlying investment managers as part of their overall duties. 

 

8.5 The Fund’s planned ESG roadmap 
 

The funds outside of Central’s direct management will be transitioned over a period of years.  

This could be for an extended period of time, due to the cost implications of a transition.  The 

Fund has access to RI resource and expertise provided by Central which we will assess and 

help guide the Fund’s approach to RI whilst we transition funds to Central. 

 

8.6 The exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments 

 

The Committee has delegated the exercise of voting rights to the investment manager(s) on 

the basis that voting power will be exercised by them with the objective of preserving and 

enhancing long term shareholder value.  Accordingly, the Fund’s managers have produced 

written guidelines of their process and practice in this regard.  The managers are strongly 

encouraged to vote in line with their guidelines in respect of all resolutions at annual and 

extraordinary general meetings of companies under Regulation 7(2)(f). 

 

The Committee supports the Stewardship Code as published by the Financial Reporting 

Council.  The Committee expects both the LGPS Central Pool and any directly appointed 

fund managers to comply with the Stewardship Code as published by the Financial 

Reporting Council. 

 

 

Prepared by:  
Chris Tambini 

 

For and on behalf of the Local Pension Committee of the Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund. 

 

214

https://leics.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet
https://www.lgpsmember.org/index.php


 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8 NOVEMBER   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

‘ADVISOR’ OBJECTIVES 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval on the Advisor 
Objectives for Hymans Robertson LLP who are the ‘Advisors’ for the Leicestershire 
County Council Pension Fund. 

  
Background 

 
2. At the end of 2018, the Competition and Markets Authority (“CMA”) published its 

report following a review of the investment consulting and fiduciary management 
markets.  Earlier this year, following on from this review, the CMA issued an Order, 
setting out requirements for the appointment and governance of fiduciary 
managers, and for Pension Scheme Trustees to set objectives for their investment 
consultants. 

 
3. Pension Scheme Trustees means the trustees or managers of Occupational 

Pension Schemes that have their main administration in the United Kingdom. The 
CMA requirements extend to both Trust-based schemes, and Local Government 
Pension Schemes (i.e. Pension Committees). 
 

4. The relevant parts of the order come into effect on the 10th December 2019 and 
prohibits Pension Scheme Trustees (including LGPS scheme managers) from 
entering into a contract or continuing to obtain investment consultancy (IC) Services 
without setting strategic objectives for the IC provider. 
 

5. The order defines an IC service as the provision of advice, this includes advice on 
which investments are to be made, advice that the scheme manager is required by 
law to take (for LGPS this includes proper advice under regulation 7(1) of the 
Investment Regulations 2016), advice on investment strategy and advice on 
manager selection.   
 

6. Part 2 of the Order defines IC Service as: 
 
‘Investment Consultancy Services’ means the provision to Pension Scheme 
Trustees of services where the provider advises the Pension Scheme Trustees in 
relation to one or more of the following: 
 

 Investments that may be made or retained by or on behalf of the Pension 
Scheme Trustees; 

 
215 Agenda Item 10



 

 Any matters in respect of which the Pension Scheme Trustees are required 
by law to seek advice in relation to the preparation or revision of the 
statement of investment principles; 

 

 Strategic asset allocation; 
 

 Manager selection. 
 
The requirements 
 

7. The CMA has stipulated that Pension Scheme Trustees should set objectives for 
their investment consultants, and that such objectives should be: 
 

 ‘closely linked’ to the pension scheme’s strategic objectives; 

 reviewed at least every three years, and after a significant change to the 
investment strategy or objectives; 

 established no later than 10 December 2019 (i.e. 6 months following the date 
of the final Order published by the CMA) or prior to appointment of a new 
investment consultant. 

 
Advisor Objectives 
 

8. Officers have given consideration to the professional advice and guidance that the 
Fund requires from its Independent Advisor and drafted a set of Strategic 
Objectives (attached as an appendix) in conjunction with Hymans, that aims to 
ensure these requirements are met.  

 
Recommendation 

 
9. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee approve the Objectives for 

Consultants.  
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

10. None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Advisor Objectives for the Local Pension Committee. 
 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

216



Leicestershire County Council Advisor Objectives November 2019 

 
Our objectives Leicestershire County Council 

 

Consultant objectives Hymans Robertson LLP 

Strategic 

Ensure members’ benefits are met as they fall due. 

Support a long-term funding approach that is consistent with a stable and affordable 

contribution approach from the employers. 

The implications for required returns of this funding objective will be reassessed at each 

actuarial valuation. The current strategic return target is between 3-4% per annum in 

excess of CPI. 

Reduce the deficit recovery period for the Fund. 

Advise on a suitable investment strategy and amendments to the strategy reflecting changes 

in market conditions, to deliver the required real return to support progress towards a long 

term steady state of funding and reduction in the deficit recovery time period going forward.  

Deliver an investment approach with suitable diversification and focus on predictable returns 

that supports meeting the Fund’s cashflow, and likely evolution, and minimises the risk of 

forced disinvestment.    

 

 

Deliver strategic advice with an expected range of outcomes that captures the downside risk 

tolerance preferences of the Committee. 

 

 

 

 

Implementation 

Ensure the Fund’s investment approach is aligned with the objectives of pooling and 

associated guidance. 

Ensure cost efficient implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy. 
 
Ensure an orderly transition to LGPS Central (where applicable). 

Advise on the cost-efficient implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy. 

Advise on the use of solutions provided by LGPS Central as a vehicle for implementing the 

agreed investment strategy, and where appropriate help in the specification of LGPS Central 

solutions to meet the Fund’s needs. 

Governance 

Ensure the Fund’s approach reflects relevant regulatory and legislative requirements. 

Develop the Committee’s Responsible Investment policy and ensure this is reflected in 

ongoing governance and decision-making processes. 

Ensure the Fund’s investment objectives are supported by an effective governance 

framework. 

Ensure our advice complies with relevant pensions’ regulations, legislation and supporting 

guidance. 

Ensure our advice reflects the Committee’s own policies and beliefs, including those in 

relation to Responsible Investment considerations. 

Provide relevant and timely advice. 

Help the Committee develop knowledge and understanding of investment matters. 

Our services to support your ongoing governance shall be proportionate and competitive in 

terms of costs. 

  
 

217



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8TH NOVEMBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
ACTION AGREED BY INVESTMENT SUBCOMMITTEE (ISC) 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with details of two 
investments agreed by the Investment Subcommittee (ISC) at its meeting held on 
16th October 2019. 

  
 Background 
 
2. The Leicestershire Pension Fund has a requirement to maintain investment in its 

asset classes to maintain the Fund’s Funding Strategy as current investments are 
returned.  Two Investment managers were invited to present the investments to the 
ISC.  Hymans Robertson had provided a separate analysis of both investments to 
the Subcommittee. 

 
3. The Leicestershire Fund required investments into Private Debt and Private Equity 

asset classes.  Officers conducted cashflow analysis to ascertain proposed 
investments of £100m and £30m into Private Debt and Private Equity to maintain 
allocation in line with the agreed policy. 

 
4.  A relevant pooled product at LGPS Central was not available for either asset 

classes. As LGPS products become available the Fund will consider them at the 
Committee or Subcommittee. 

 
5. Attached as appendicies to this report are the reports that were produced for the 

ISC, which give further details on the investments and why they were felt to be 
appropriate. 

 
Partners Group MAC V Fund 

 
6. Following a presentation by the manager, an investment of £100m was agreed by 

the ISC and it is expected that this investment will be ‘drawn down’ over a period of 
about 12 months with the first £55m expected to be before the end of 2019.  

 
 Adam Street Partners Global Fund 2019 
 
7. Following a presentation by the manager, an investment of £30m was agreed by the 

ISC and it is expected that this investment will be ‘drawn down’ over a period of 
about 5-10 years, commencing with a small (c5%) draw down in December 2019. 

 
 
 

219 Agenda Item 11



  

 Recommendation 
 
8. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the content of the report. 
 
 Appendices 
 

Reports to the Investment Subcommittee – 16 October 2019. 
 
Appendix A - Recommended Investment: Adam Street Partners Private Equity 
Product. 
 
Appendix B- Recommended Investment into Partners’ Private Debt Product. 
 
Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
None specific 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199   
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668   
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           

220



  

 
 
 
 
 

221



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX A 

 

 
INVESTMENT SUBCOMMITTEE  – 16TH OCTOBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
RECOMMENDED INVESTMENT: ADAM STREET PARTNERS  

PRIVATE EQUITY PRODUCT  
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide information in respect of a recommended 
investment into the Adam Street Partners (ASP) Private Equity product, 2019 
Global Fund. 

 
 Background 
 
2. The Fund has a target allocation of 4% of total Fund assets to the ‘Private Equity’ 

asset class. In broad terms this investment class should be considered as 
investments that are expected to produce returns higher as those expected from 
equity markets.  Private equity is an alternative investment class and consists of 
capital that is not listed on a public exchange. Private equity is composed of funds 
and investors that directly invest in private companies, or that engage in buyouts of 
public companies.  These funds are generally illiquid and can have lock in periods. 

 
3. At present the Fund has c£235m invested (as at 30 June 2019) in a number of ASP 

products.  This equates to about 4.6% of total assets vs a 4.0% target allocation. 
 
4. It is projected that as a result of net distributions from ASP the Fund’s private equity 

target allocation will be underweight by 1.0%. This requires the Fund to invest 
c£40m into Private Equity by the end of 2021 to maintain its target allocation . 

 
5.  Given the time required to deploy committed funds by ASP and the Fund’s 

projected underweight target allocation, it is proposed the Fund invest £30m into the 
Adams Street Partners 2019 Global Fund. 

 
6.  With the preference to maintain vintage diversification it is expected the Fund would 

want to make an investment most years into a Private Equity product. 
  
7. A relevant pooled product at LGPS Central became available in 2018/2019 into 

which the Fund invested £10m.  However, with the Private Equity Investment 
Director leaving LGPS Central and no 2019/2020 product being available it is 
recommended the Fund invest with ASP until a new appointment is made at LGPS 
Central.  When a product becomes available at LGPS Central the Fund will begin to 
consider new investments into these products and bring them to the Subcommittee 
or Local Pension Committee for consideration.   

 
 
 Proposed investment opportunities  

223



 

 
Adam Street Partners 2019 Global Fund.   

 
8. The Leicestershire Pension Fund has a long history of investing with ASP.  Since 

2002 the Fund has committed to investing $592m with ASP.  The net internal rate of 
return since inception in GBP has been 11.8%.  
 

9. A detailed report by Hymans Robertson, the Fund’s Investment Consultant, on this 
investment opportunity, which includes exempt information, is included later in 
today’s agenda. A brief overview of the opportunity and why it is considered 
attractive is given below: 

 
o ASP is one of the longest established private equity managers and boasts a 

sizeable investment team that is one of the most experienced in the industry. 
The firm created the first ever fund of funds back in 1979 and has a long 
heritage in each private equity capability, establishing its annual global fund 
program in 1996.  

 
o The firm was originally very US-centric although it has significantly expanded 

its presence in Europe and Asia over recent years. One of the key benefits of 
ASP is its ownership structure, with the firm entirely employee-owned which 
we believe provides good alignment with its clients. We believe it has a 
strong investment process that is centred around identifying and exploiting 
market opportunities in a sensible, well-structured way which incorporates 
responsible investment considerations. We rate ASP as ‘Preferred’ for its 
private equity capabilities.  

 
o The 2019 Global Fund is the latest vintage of ASP’s annual global fund 

series which provides broad exposure across the private equity market. We 
believe its structure and target investments are appropriate in order for it to 
achieve its objectives, and do not believe there are any material changes 
relative to the previous vintages in which the Fund has invested.  

 
 
 Summary 
 
10. Taking into account the time taken from deployment of capital into relevant 

investments by ASP and the forecast of distributions from previous investments 
within the Private Equity asset class it is proposed the Fund makes a £30m 
commitment to the 2019 Global Fund.  Advice has been sought from Hymans 
Robertson which is included elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
 

Supplementary Information Informing the potential investment 
 
Exempt papers by Hymans Robertson and a presentation from ASP, are included 
as items x and x on the agenda. 

 
Recommendations 

 
11. The Investment Subcommittee is recommended to consider a £30m commitment to 

invest in the Adams Street Partners 2019 Global Fund; 

224



 

 
 Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199   
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668   
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

225



This page is intentionally left blank



 

         APPENDIX B 

 

 
INVESTMENT SUBCOMMITTEE  – 16TH OCTOBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
RECOMMENDED INVESTMENT INTO PARTNERS’ PRIVATE DEBT PRODUCT  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide information in respect of a recommended 
investment into the Partners Group Multi Asset Credit (MAC) V Fund.   

 
 Background 
 
2. The Fund has a target allocation of 7% of total Fund assets to the ‘Private Debt’ 

asset class. Private Debt sits within the ‘Total credit and emerging market debt’ and 
provides an element of diversification for the Fund. Private Debt is an asset class 
that supplies debt financing to private and public companies for a specified length of 
time during which a return is earned by the debt issuing company.  The returns can 
be secured against assets to reduce risk to the issuer.  

 
3. At present the Fund has c£235m invested in a number of Partners Group private 

debt products.  This equates to about 5.3% of total assets versus a 7% target 
allocation, a c75m shortfall.  

 
4.  In addition, it is forecast that there will be a requirement to invest a further £75m by 

the end of December 2020 as income and capital is returned to the fund from 
previous private debt investments in 2014, 2016 and 2017. 

 
5. Given the time required to deploy committed funds by Partners the Subcommittee 

will be asked to consider deploying more than the £75m shortfall to the target 
allocation to the MAC V product, taking the additional investment closer to £100m. 

 
6. A relevant pooled product at LGPS Central will not be available in a time frame that 

enable us to transition from legacy investment managers.  When a product 
becomes available the Fund will begin to consider available products and bring 
them to the subcommittee or Local Pension Committee for approval.   

 
 
 Proposed investment opportunities  
 

Partners Group Multi Asset Credit V Fund.   
 
7. Partners Group are a large investment manager whose sole focus is on private 

markets; they do not offer investment management in areas such as market-listed 
equities and bonds. One of their areas of expertise is in private debt, which can 
generally be described as the lending of money directly to a company; in many 
cases private debt lenders are taking the place traditionally occupied by banks. 

227



 

 
 
8.  The Fund has invested in the previous three iterations of the Multi Asset Credit 

Fund, in 2014 (£100m), 2016 (£70m) and 2017 (£120m). The investment process 
remains largely unchanged from that which has previously proven successful.  

 
 

9. A detailed report by Hymans Robertson, the Fund’s Investment Consultant, on this 
investment opportunity, which includes exempt information, is included later in 
today’s agenda. A brief overview of the opportunity and why it is considered 
attractive is given below: 

 

 Partners Group is one of only a few managers who has the required 
resource, credentials and infrastructure to manage this type of private 
lending strategy on a global basis, and their annual fund raising provides an 
efficient and effective governance process in appointing Partners for 
subsequent mandates, given the ISC is familiar with the manager and have 
had a positive experience to date investing in previous MAC funds.  

 

 The MAC V Fund is the latest in their Multi-asset credit range. The Fund has 
reviewed the documentation provided by Partners from an investment 
perspective. It is noted that the Fund’s review of the manager’s literature 
should not be deemed as replacing the need for the Subcommittee to 
understand the terms of the investment.  

 

 Having reviewed the mandate and on the basis of the Fund’s research, the 
mandate documentation, the size of the proposed allocation as a proportion 
of total LCCPF assets, we can confirm that in our opinion the MAC V Fund is 
an appropriate fund for LCCPF to invest in. 

 
 Summary 
 
10. Taking into account the time taken from deployment of capital into relevant 

investments by Partners and our forecast of capital and income within the Private 
Debt asset class we propose a £75m - £100m commitment to the MAC V fund.  We 
have taken advice from Hymans Robertson whose report is included elsewhere on 
the agenda. 

 
 

Supplementary Information Informing the potential investment 
 

11. Exempt papers by Hymans Robertson and a presentation from Partners Group 
MAC V, which are of a sensitive nature, are included as items 9 and 11 on the 
agenda. 

 
Recommendations 

 
12. The Investment Subcommittee is recommended to consider a commitment to invest 

in the Partner Group MAC V fund as detailed in paragraphs four and five. 
 
 Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 

228



 

None specific 
 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199   
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668   
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

229



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8 NOVEMBER 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 
Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of any changes relating to the 
risk management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the 
Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

 
Background 

 
2. The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) code of practise on governance and administration 

of public service pension schemes requires that administrators need to record and 
members be kept aware of ‘risk management and internal controls’. The code 
states this should be a standing item on each Pension Board and Pension 
Committee agenda. 

 
3. In order to comply with the code the risk register and an update on supporting 

activity is included on each agenda. 
 

Risk Register 
 

4. The updated Risk Register is attached as an appendix to this report. Progress 
updates have been made to risks 7,9 and 11.  
 

5. Risk 3 (Administration of the Firefighters pension scheme) has been removed from 
the register. This reflects the discussions that are taking place with the three Fire 
Authorities regarding the orderly transfer of the service to a new provider. 

 
Identified Risks of Concern 

 
6. There are currently no identified risks of concern. 

 
Recommendation 
 

7. The Local Pension Committee is asked to approve the revised risk register of the 
Pension Fund 
 

Appendix 
 
Risk Register 

 

231 Agenda Item 12



Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  

232



Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register November 2019             APPENDIX 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund  

fails to reconcile HRMC 

Guaranteed Minimum 

Pension (GMP) data 

with the Pension 

Section data there is a 

risk of overpayment of 

Pensions Increase 

 

From 2018 the pensions 

section has had 

responsibility for GMPs 

creating the need to ensure 

that this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

 

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to identify 

any discrepancies  

 

Full time person 

recruited to work on 

the project 

3 3 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

Working through cases 

Developed reporting 

tools to assist 

HMRC have closed their 

window for new 

submissions 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to implement a 

pension administration 

system, pensioner 

payroll and immediate 

payments system the 

Pension Section will fail 

to deliver its statutory 

duties for both LGPS 

and the 3 Fire 

Authorities. It will also 

be unable to pay 

pensioners and other 

single payments (e.g. 

lump sums) 

 

A new system has been 
implemented, with several 
features subject to a gradual 
roll-out. 
 

 
Unable to pay 
pensioners 
 
Unable to pay single 
payments 
 
Unable to meet 
statutory 
requirements 
 
Manual calculations 
 
Huge increase in 
administration time 
causing delays 
 
Increased appeals 
 
 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Gradual 

implementation of 

member self-service 

functionality  

Working in 

partnership with 

another Fund 

Phased approach to 

implementation, with 

single payment the 

most significant piece 

of functionality 

remaining. 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

 

Detailed project 

planning for final phase, 

accounting for other 

pressures in the section 

Pensioner payroll and 

MSS completed.  

Immediate payments to 

be completed by the 

end of 2019 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 

233



3 Pens 

 If the Pensions section 

fail to meet the  service 

requirements of the 

three Fire Authorities 

we may lose their 

business 

 

 

Changes in legislation on the 

Firefighters pension scheme 

has significantly increased 

the scheme’s complexity. 

Only limited knowledge in 

the Section in this area.  

Outstanding legal challenges 

could significantly impact on 

the Fire scheme rules and 

administration time 

 

 

 

 

 

Reputation 

 

Potential loss of 

business  

Increased 

administration  

 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Quarterly meetings 

take place with the 

Fire Authorities to 

resolve issues  

 

Membership of the 

Midlands Fire Officer 

Group enables us to 

identify and resolve 

issues early  

Resource on the team 

increased 

SLA and contracts 

produced 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Continue to monitor 

and develop 

improvements to work 

processes, guiding all 

three Fire Authorities to 

similar processes and 

decisions (where 

possible). 

Set up a joint pension 

board for the 3 Fire 

Authorities 

Refresh of contracts in 

progress 

Press the LGA and all 

relevant parties 

nationally  on 

regulatory changes 

2 2 4 

 
 

 

 

 

Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 
 

 

4 Pens 

If the pensions fund fail 

to receive accurate and 

timely data from 

employers scheme 

members pension 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

 

 

A continuing increase in 

Fund employers is causing 

administrative pressure in 

the Pension Section. This is 

in terms of receiving 

accurate and timely data 

from these new employers 

who have little or no pension 

knowledge 

 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided for 

new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

employers 

Amended  SLA and 

communication and 

administration guide 

distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect  a statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2020) 

 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

Inform the Local 

Pension Board each 

quarter on progress 

made 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

5 
Pens/ 
Invs 

The resolution  of the 

McCloud case could 

increase administration 

significantly resulting in 

difficulties providing 

the ongoing pensions 

Mr McCloud winning his 

appeal on age discrimination 

on public sector pension 

schemes and the protection 

afforded to older members 

during the move to career 

Ultimate outcome 

currently unknown 

but likelihood is; 

Increasing 

Ian 

Howe 

Guidance from LGA, 

Hymans, Treasury  3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat once 
details are 
confirmed 

 

Working with Hymans 

to include an estimated 

cost in the valuation 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
Ian 
Howe  

234



administration service  

The liabilities of the 

Fund are expected to 

increase for all 

employers 

average benefits, followed 

by Government losing their 

right of appeal. 

administration 

Revision of previous 

benefits 

Additional 

communications 

Complaints/appeals 

Increased costs 

 

Employer bulletin to 

employers making them 

aware of the current 

situation 

Await proposed 

resolution from the 

employment tribunal 

6 

 
 
 
 
Invs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and on 

time 

 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

 

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act 

 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored and late 

payments are chased 

quickly 

 

 

2 4 8 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 

 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

7 Invs 

Assets held by the Fund 

are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

individual members 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution rates 

over many consecutive 

actuarial valuations 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that actuarial 

assumptions are 

reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer contribution 

rates are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates with 

a view to calculating 

monetary contributions 

alongside employer 

percentages of salaries 

where appropriate. 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

8 
Pens/ 
Invs 

Sub-funds of individual 

employers are not 

Changing financial position 

of both sub-fund and the 

 

 
Ian 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 
5 2 10 

 
 
 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 
4 2 8 

 
 

235



monitored to ensure 

that there is the correct 

balance between risks 

to the Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

employer Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual employer. 

This will ultimately 

increase the deficit 

of all other 

employers.  

 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-going 

dialogue with them to 

ensure that the 

correct balance 

between risks and fair 

treatment continues. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual 

employers. 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-

public sector status, of 

further education, sixth 

form colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-

public sector status of 

higher education 

corporations is fully 

accounted for in the 

Funding Strategy 

 

 
 
 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

9 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are consistently 

poor and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns, most 

probably caused by poor 

economic conditions 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that strategic 

asset allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that the 

medium-term outlook 

for different asset 

classes is included as 

part of the 

consideration 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise, but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns 

4 2 8 

 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

10 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable but the 

performance achieved 

by the Fund is below 

Poor performance of 

individual managers, or poor 

asset allocation policy 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

2 2 4 

 
Bhulesh 

Kachra 

236



reasonable 

expectations 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation 

acted on where 

appropriate 

appropriate.  It should 

be recognised that 

some managers have a 

style-bias and that 

poorer relative 

performance will occur.  

Decisions regarding 

manager termination to 

consider multiple 

factors including 

performance versus 

mandate and it’s reason 

for original inclusion. 

 

11 Invs 

Failure to take account 

of ALL risks to future 

investment returns 

within the setting of 

asset allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a result of 

incorrect assessment of all 

risks inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into account 

when setting the asset 

allocation.  

Only appointing 

investment managers 

that integrate 

responsible 

investment into their 

processes. 

Utilisation of 

dedicated Responsible 

Investment team at 

LGPS Central 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

Asset allocation policy 

allows for variances 

from target asset 

allocation to take 

advantage of 

opportunities and 

negates the need to 

trade regularly where 

investments under and 

over perform in a short 

period of time. 

2 2 4 

 

 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

237



 

 

12 Invs 

Investment pooling 

within the LGPS fails to 

deliver a higher long 

term net investment 

return 

LGPS Central fails to deliver 

better net investment 

returns than the Fund would 

have expected to achieve it 

investment pooling did not 

occur 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been the case 

Chris 

Tambini 

Shareholders’ Forum, 

Joint Committee and 

Practitioners’ Advisory 

Forum will give   

significant influence in 

the event of issues 

arising. 

Appraisal of each 

investment products 

before a commitment 

to transition is made 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be 

the most difficult phase. 

The Fund will continue 

to monitor closely how 

the company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal audit 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds 

2 2 4 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

13 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at Committee, 

Officer and Consultant level 

is not sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns, which will 

require higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise to 

be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

14 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

successful 

Pooling does not reduce the 

on-going management costs 

of assets 

Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of selling 

the existing investments and 

buying new ones.  

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

running LGPS 

Central 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains the 

flexibility to run funds 

internally. 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed, with 

independent specialist 

oversight. 

Formal review follows 

each transition. 

Implementation being 

phased, allowing 

capacity to be 

managed and lessons 

learned. 

2 3 6 Treat 

Approach for each 

transition assessed 

independently. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

 

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

2 2 4 

Bhulesh 

Kachra 

 

238



Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 
 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

 

 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to  those 
in the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential  for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 
Investment Sub-
committee 

239



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase  
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 
Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 

 
Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably 
never happen/recur. 

<20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it 
to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do 

so. 

20-40% 

240



3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It 
might happen or recur occasionally. 

40-60% 

4 Probable  /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. 
Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 

persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL 
undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly 

frequently. 

>80% 

 

 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
     

       

 
Impact 

     

 
5  Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

 
4  Major 4 8 12 16 20 

 
3  Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

 
2  Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

 
1  Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

  
1 2 3 4 5 

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

        Probable/ 
Likely    Almost certain 

  

Likelihood of risk occurring over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

 

241



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 8 NOVEMBER   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

PENSION FUND TRAINING POLICY 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval on the draft Training 
Policy for members of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension Board. 

  
Background 

 
2. The Pensions Regulator (TPR) identifies good governance as essential for a 

pension scheme to be successful. The following extract from TPR’s website 
explains the link to training: 
 

“There is a clear link between good governance and good fund performance 
so it is an essential part of effective scheme management. Without good 
governance, you are unlikely to achieve good outcomes for members. Good 
governance is about having motivated, knowledgeable and skilled people 
involved with running the scheme. It’s also about having the right structures 
and processes to enable effective, timely decisions and risk management, 
and to provide clear scheme objectives. It helps you to effectively oversee: 

 administration and record-keeping 

 investment and funding (in local government schemes) 

 communications with members 
 

You should spend time and resources getting your scheme governance right. 
This will help you to minimise risk and maximise opportunities for your 
scheme and your members. Investing in good governance is likely to save 
you in the long run, delivering good value for members and employers, and 
improving member outcomes.” 
 

3. TPR places specific responsibilities on Pension Board members, they must: 
 

 be conversant with (i.e. have a working knowledge of) your scheme rules 
and any document recording policy about the administration of your scheme 

 have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions scheme 
rules and administration policies 

 You must have a working knowledge of your scheme rules and documented 
administration policies in enough detail to know where they are relevant to an 
issue understand and if necessary challenge any advice that you’re given. 
 

 
 

 
243 Agenda Item 13



 

Training Policy  
 

4. At its meeting on 5 July 2019, the Committee received a draft Training Policy and 
each Member was asked to complete a Training Needs Assessment questionnaire.  
Local Pension Committee members completed a Training Needs Assessment to 
assess the current knowledge of individual members of the Pensions Committee 
and Pension Board. The Local Pension Board considered the draft Policy and 
Training Needs Assessment questionnaire at its meeting on 14 October 2019.  The 
results of the questionnaire, together with the current priorities for the Fund were 
used to decide on the approach and topics of training offered.  
 

5. Officers will, on a regular basis, inform Committee and Board members of relevant 
training opportunities, including:  

 

 Face-to-face sessions provided by external bodies e.g. Local Government 
Association, Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association.  

 Face-to-face sessions held internally, delivered by officers and/or the Fund’s 
providers e.g. actuary, investment advisers, investment managers. Sessions 
may be held jointly with both Committee and Board, or held separately, 
depending on priorities and availability. Some sessions may be held adjacent 
to scheduled meetings and may be linked to specific issues on the agenda.   

 Recommended reading material to keep up-to-date with pensions issues.  
 

6. In addition, induction training will be made available for all new members of the 
Committee and Board, including potential substitute members.  
 

7. Each Member of the Committee will also receive an Information Pack which will 
contain information key to their role as set out in the Training Policy. The contents 
of this pack is shown below and will be subject to change over time. 

 
8.  Title Purpose 

1 AGM Presentation General Background 

2 Investment Strategy Statement Provides the structure in relation to how the Fund’s investments 

are managed 

3a Asset Strategy and Structure Details the allocation of assets to specific classes, the rational 

and expected return 

3b Investment Mapping to LGPS Central 

Pool 

Comparison of current investments to LGPS Central’s expected 

offering 

4 Responsible Investment and 

Engagement Framework (LGPS) 

Explains how Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance 

(ESG) factors are accounted for in the investment process 

5 Actuarial Valuation Report High level outcomes from the 2016 actuarial valuation 

6 Funding Strategy Statement Governs how employers pay their liabilities 

7 Active Equities Newsletter Explain use of Style Analytics in manager monitoring 

8 Investment Performance Overview 

2018/19 

Demonstration and Explanation of Portfolio Evaluation’s 

manager performance reports 

9 LGPS central accounts Updated annually.  Year end March.  Accounts available during 

Q2/Q3 later in the year. 

10 Hymans 2019 valuation Draft valuation results when available 

11 Summary of member benefits Shows the key features of the LGPS 

12 Local fund governance To cover: ToR for local pension committee and pension board, 

current members of both 

13 Web links covering National 

Governance 

To cover: Regulations for governance, benefits and investments, 

guidance, scheme advisory board, pensions regulator code of 

244



 

practice, section 13 review of funding by government actuary, 

cost cap mechanism 

14 Training Web link to pensions regulator toolkit 

Our training programme 

 
 

9. Members are asked to bring the pack to each future Committee meeting to help 
facilitate training at the end of meetings. 
 

Recommendation 
 

10. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee approve the draft Training 
Policy.  
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

11. None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Training Policy for the Local Pension Committee and the Pension Board 
 
 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 

245



This page is intentionally left blank



LEICESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND      APPENDIX 1 
 
TRAINING POLICY FOR THE LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD 
 
APPROVED BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE ON [8 NOVEMBER 2019] AND BY THE PENSION 
BOARD ON [16 SEPTEMBER 2019] 
 
 
Introduction 
 
This policy demonstrates to stakeholders the Pension Committee’s and Pension Board’s 
recognition of the importance of knowledge and understanding of pension issues in the 
effective management of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (‘the Fund’). 
 
This policy, and regular training, is deemed necessary due to:  

 the distinction of fiduciary duty owed to the Fund, compared to members and 
officers usual business.  

 the complexity of pension and investment issues.  

 inevitable changes in the membership due to the election cycles. 

 the Fund being treated by investment managers as a professional client.  

 the potential consequences of not administering the Fund in an appropriate manner.   
 
This policy applies to all members and substitute members of the Pension Committee, the 
Pension Board and officers involved in the management of the Fund.  
 
 
Programme of Training 
 
An assessment of the training needs of the members of the Pension Committee and Pension 
Board and relevant officers will be undertaken on a periodic basis to inform the programme 
of training.  Individual training plans will be developed.   
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
required to undertake induction training before taking up their role.  
 
Members of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are strongly encouraged to 
complete the Pensions Regulator’s Toolkit for Public Service Schemes.  
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
encouraged to undertake training on a regular basis. The Fund’s programme of training will 
have regard to relevant codes of practice and guidelines issued by the Pensions Regulator 
and CIPFA, the training needs of the Committee and Board, and the Fund’s current 
priorities.  
 
  

247



Key areas for training will include: 
- Governance, including legislation, role of the administering authority, stakeholders, 

Scheme Advisory Board, the Pensions Regulator and investment pooling; 
- Funding including the role of the actuary, the actuarial valuation, employer covenant 

and employers joining/exiting from the Fund; 
- Financial markets and investment strategy; 
- Pension’s administration.   

 
The depth of understanding required will vary depending upon the issues expected to be 
faced by the Fund and whether the individual is involved with the Pension Committee or the 
Pension Board. For Example Financial markets and investment strategy will be most relevant 
to Committee members and Pension’s administration matters most relevant to Board 
members. 
 
Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Officers will maintain records of attendance at training sessions, to support development of 
individual training plans.  
 
Members who attend external events will be required to report back to the 
Committee/Board (as relevant) to share their knowledge with other members.   
 
The Pension Committee and Pension Board will receive an update on progress made against 
this policy at least annually.   
 
A report on training will be included in the Fund’s annual report. 
 

248



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
8 NOVEMBER 2019   

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
THE PENSIONS REGULATOR – “DEEP DIVE” FINDINGS 

 
Purpose of the Report  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Pension Committee of The Pension 
Regulator findings, following their “deep dive” into the administration of ten 
Local Government Pension Funds. 

 
 Background 
 
2. Every November, the Pension Regulator (TPR) instructs all LGPS Funds to 

complete its national survey. The results of the 2018 survey caused some 
concern nationally on the governance and administration of the LGPS. 

 
3.  Following the 2018 survey, TPR then chose ten Funds at random, doing a 

“deep dive” into these Funds. The Leicestershire Fund was not one of the ten 
funds chosen. 
 

4. In October 2019 TPR published its findings in the report Governance and 
Administration risks in public service pension schemes, covering nine main 
areas, and made recommendations for each of these. 
 

5. A summary of the highlights TPR detailed to help Funds were;  
 

“Good governance and administration are essential to thriving schemes and 
this report includes recommendations that will make an impact to all public 
service schemes – not just local government pension funds. Real-life case 
studies illustrate some of the good practice we found, along with suggestions 
for improvement”. 
 
Findings include: 
 

 Good quality data and record-keeping standards underpin all aspects of 

successfully running a fund – and these areas should be treated as a priority.  

 A separation should be maintained between the fund and Local Authority to 

avoid overreliance on the Local Authority’s policies and procedures.  

 Many funds we spoke to lack a strong succession planning procedure – 

leaving the fund open to risk if there were unexpected departures. 

249 Agenda Item 14



 

 

 The pension funds clearly benefit from having an engaged s.151 officer 

directly involved. 

6. The nine main areas detailed in the report are as follows. To avoid repetition, 
this report does not duplicate the detail in the Regulator’s report (attached as 
Appendix A). 

 

 Record keeping 

 Internal controls 

 Administrator 

 Member communications 

 Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) 

 Pension Boards 

 Employer and contributions 

 Cyber Security 

 Internal fraud and false claims 
 
 

7. Implications for the Leicestershire Fund 
 

 
Generally, the Pension Manager is comfortable with most of the areas listed 
and is working towards improvements in these areas but highlights initial 
areas where further investigation need to be made. 

 
8.  Record keeping 

 
The Leicestershire Fund’s common and conditional data scores are detailed 
in the table below; 
 

 2018 2019 

Common data 94.0% 96.9% 

Conditional data 88.7% 95.5% 

 
The improvement in both common and conditional data results are positive, 
but the Pensions Manager is waiting for its system provider to provide a 
breakdown of the details of the 2019 results, to see where the figures need to 
improve further. 
 
The Fund’s actuary has confirmed the data provided by the Fund for the 
valuation, was of a very high standard. 

 
 

9. Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) 
 
There is already a detailed IDRP process, but the Fund is developing a clear 
internal policy on how to handle complaints, including escalation to senior 
managers. 

 

250



 

 

10.  Employers and Contributions 
 
Greater understanding of the financial positions is required to better manage a 
risk-based approach to employers. This process will commence following the 
draft results of the triannual actuarial valuation. 
 

11. Cyber Security 
 
A review of cyber security is suggested. 
 

 
 Internal Audit 

 
12. Leicestershire County Council’s internal audit team will carry out separate 

audit work streams throughout 2020/21 on the nine areas. Some of these 
areas may be grouped where common themes are found. The audit may 
compliment areas that are already being reviewed in 2019/20. 
 
The Pensions Manager has agreed with the Audit Manager to develop this 
during the planning of the 2020/21 work. 
 

   
Recommendation 

 
13.  It is recommended that the Committee notes The Pension Regulator’s  “deep 

dive” findings. 
 
 

Appendix 
 

 The Pension Regulator – Governance and administration in public service 
pension schemes – an engagement report.  

 
 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
      

251



This page is intentionally left blank



253

ctuohy
Typewritten Text
Appendix 



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
8 NOVEMBER 2019  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (LGPS) – TRANSFER OF PENSION 

RIGHTS  
 
Purpose of the Report  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to recommend some minor changes to the 
Leicestershire Local Government Pension Scheme regarding the acceptance 
of transfer values from certain pension scheme arrangements. 

 
 Background 
 
2. The current Fund rules on the acceptance of transfer values are detailed in 

the report to Employment Committee dated 21 September 2009. This is 
attached as Appendix A. 

 
 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme rules transfer values can be 

accepted into the scheme from a variety of different types of scheme. These 
are detailed in the report dated 21 September 2009 and remain; 

 

 Transfers from another Local Authority pension scheme, known as 
Inter Fund adjustments. 

 Transfers from other members of the Public-Sector Transfer Club. 

 Transfers from other approved pension schemes other than the 
above. 

 
3. Currently the Fund allows transfers in from other Local Authorities (known as 

Inter Fund adjustments) and Public-Sector Transfer Club schemes. Examples 
of Public Sector Club schemes are; Civil Service, NHS, Teachers, Police, 
Fire. The Fund does not accept transfers from other schemes, including Non-
Club schemes. 

 
4. As Public-Sector pension schemes have developed over recent time, some 

Public-Sector Transfer Club schemes now also provide Non-Club transfers for 
some of their scheme members. This evolving change in public sector 
pensions has resulted in some confusion on what can or cannot be accepted 
by Local Government Pension Funds.  

 
5. This report is to propose minor changes in the Leicestershire Fund rules and 

to avoid any possible confusion. 

283 Agenda Item 15



 

 

 
 
 
 Proposal - What transfers will be accepted in the Leicestershire Fund     
 
6. The Fund will accept; 
 

 Transfers from another Local Authority pension scheme, known as 
Inter Fund adjustments. 

 Transfers from Public-Sector – this includes Club and Non-Club 
transfers from these Schemes. 

 
The Fund will continue not to accept transfers from Non-Club schemes or 
other approved pension schemes. 
 
Transfers in Under Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employment 
(TUPE) arrangements 

 
7. Currently, the only exception to the above is for individual scheme members 

whose employment transfers into Leicestershire Fund employers via TUPE. 
These are extremely uncommon, but the Fund is sometimes asked if these 
members can transfer in any previous pension arrangements. This is referred 
to in Section 6 in the report dated 21 September 2009. 

 
The proposal for these cases is as follows; 
 
Proposal - What transfers will be accepted in the Leicestershire Fund for 
Members transferring under TUPE 
 

8. The Fund will accept; 
 

 Transfers from another Local Authority pension scheme, known as 
Inter Fund adjustments 

 Transfers from Public-Sector – this includes Club and Non-Club 
transfers from these Schemes. 

 
The Fund will no longer accept any non-related Non-Club scheme or non-
related other approved pension schemes. 
 
This change aligns the rules for all scheme members in the Fund and negates 
the risk of the receiving Fund employer in the TUPE arrangement, increasing 
the fund liability and their fund risk.    

 
General 
 

9. In all cases a member can only request a transfer in within 12 months of 
starting in the Leicestershire Fund. 

 

284



 

 

10. The rationale behind the current rules and these minor amendments, are to 
maintain an avoidance of unnecessary liabilities into the Fund, but also to 
clarify the position about Public-Sector schemes. 
  

   
Recommendation 

 
11.  That the Local Pension Committee approves the minor changes on the 

acceptance of pension transfers in as detailed in paragraphs 6 – 10 of the 
report. 

 
 Appendix 
 

Employment Committee Report 21 September 2009 – LGPS Transfer of 
Pension Rights. 

 
 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
      

285



This page is intentionally left blank



287

ctuohy_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix



288



289



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2019.
	6 Pension Fund Valuation.
	APPENDIX A - 91031 - 2019 Valuation Initial Results Report  - Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund
	APPENDIX B - Funding Strategy Statement 2019 (f 31102019)

	7 Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual Managers.
	1909-S277C001- Leicestershire Pension Fund
	LGPSC Strategic Asset Allocation Q3 19 Issue 7

	8 Pension Fund Annual Report.
	Pension Fund Annual Report 2018-19 v4
	Appendix A - Summary Valuation of Funds performance
	Untitled

	Appendix B -Pension Fund Accounts

	9 Investment Strategy Statement Update.
	Investment Strategy Statement Oct 19 v0.5

	10 Advisor Objectives.
	CMA Objectives for consultants

	11 Actions of the Investment Subcommittee.
	ISC Oct 19 ASP v2
	ISC Oct 19 Partners Private Debt v3

	12 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	Appendix Risk Register Nov 19 draft

	13 Pension Fund Training Policy.
	LiveRecovery save of Pension Fund Training Policy - Appendix.asd

	14 The Pensions Regulator "Deep Dive" Findings.
	Appendix  - Deep Dive

	15 LGPS Transfer of Pension Rights
	Appendix - Transfer of Pension rights 08112019




